
In The Matter Of:

INDIANA CIVIL RIGHTS COMMISSION

August 20, 2021

ACCURATE REPORTING OF INDIANA
543 PONDS POINTE DRIVE
CARMEL, INDIANA 46032

317.848.0088
accuratereportingofindiana@gmail.com

To open files, click on the desired file type in bookmark on left.
For quick saving or searching multiple files, click attachments tab (or paperclip) on left.

For best viewing/searching, use Adobe Reader/Acrobat ver. 9 or higher
(www.adobe.com).


	Files
	ScreenView Transcript (view/search)
	Condensed Transcript (view/search/print) 
	Full Size Format (view/search/print) 
	ASCII Transcript File





Page 1


 1              BEFORE THE STATE OF INDIANA
 2                CIVIL RIGHTS COMMISSION
 3                        -  -  -
 4
 5
 6           PUBLIC MEETING OF AUGUST 20, 2021
 7
 8
 9                        -  -  -
10                      PROCEEDINGS
11   in the above-captioned matter, before the Indiana
12   Civil Rights Commission, Adrianne L. Slash,
13   Chairperson, taken before me, Lindy L. Meyer,
14   Jr., a Notary Public in and for the State of
15   Indiana, County of Shelby, via Webex Conference
16   on Friday, August 20, 2021 at 1:33 o'clock p.m.
17                        -  -  -
18
19
20
21           ACCURATE REPORTING OF INDIANA, LLC
                   543 Ponds Pointe Drive
22                 Carmel, Indiana  46032
                 TELEPHONE: (317) 848-0088
23      EMAIL: accuratereportingofindiana@gmail.com


ACCURATE REPORTING OF INDIANA







Page 2


 1   APPEARANCES:
 2   COMMISSION MEMBERS:
 3      Adrianne L. Slash, Chairperson
        Alpha Blackburn
 4      Steven A. Ramos
        Holli Harrington
 5      James W. Jackson
        Terry Tolliver
 6
 7      INDIANA CIVIL RIGHTS COMMISSION
        By Gregory Wilson, Director
 8        & Tim Schultz, Deputy Director
        Indiana Government Center North
 9      100 North Senate Avenue, Room N300
        Indianapolis, Indiana  46204
10          On behalf of the Commission.
11
     OTHER COMMISSION STAFF PRESENT:
12
        Christiana Ojo
13      Frederick S. Bremer
        Stephanie Slone
14
15   ALSO PRESENT:
16      Michelle Allen
        Jacob Bradley
17      Brady Ripperger
        Rev. Daisy Myers
18      Lisa Shaffer
19                        -  -  -
20
21
22
23


ACCURATE REPORTING OF INDIANA







Page 3


 1                                   1:33 o'clock p.m.


                                     August 20, 2021


 2                        -  -  -


 3               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  We can go


 4   ahead and get started.


 5               MR. SCHULTZ:  Okay.  Well, in that


 6   case, before we officially begin and take roll


 7   call, I'd ask all non-Commission members to


 8   identify themselves at this time, please.


 9               MR. BREMER:  Frederick S. Bremer.


10   I'm a Commission staff attorney.


11               MR. BRADLEY:  This is Jacob Bradley.


12   I am counsel for the Respondent in the matter


13   that's going to be heard today.


14               MS. ALLEN:  Michelle Allen.  I'm the


15   Director of the Office of Administrative Law


16   Proceedings.


17               MR. RIPPERGER:  Brady Ripperger, with


18   the Fair Housing Center of Central Indiana.


19               REV. MYERS:  Rev. Daisy Myers, from


20   San Diego, California.


21               MR. SCHULTZ:  Any other individuals


22   joining us today who are non-Commission members?


23               MS. SLONE:  Stephanie Slone, with the
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 1   Indiana Civil Rights Commission.


 2               MS. OJO:  Christiana Ojo, from the


 3   Indiana Civil Rights Commission.


 4               MR. SCHULTZ:  And I'm Tim Schultz,


 5   with the Indiana Civil Rights Commission, and I


 6   am currently admitting one more person.  The


 7   individual who just joined the meeting, can you


 8   identify yourself, please?


 9               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Comm. Blackburn.


10               MR. SCHULTZ:  Okay.


11          All right.  Chair Slash, I believe all


12   participants have identified themselves.  Would


13   you like me to conduct the roll call for the


14   Commission members at this time?


15               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Yes, please.


16               MR. SCHULTZ:  Okay.


17          Comm. Blackburn, are you present?


18               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, here.


19               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Harrington?


20               COMM. HARRINGTON:  I'm here.


21               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Jackson?


22               COMM. JACKSON:  Present.


23               MR. SCHULTZ:  Vice-Chair Ramos?
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 1               COMM. RAMOS:  Here.


 2               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Tolliver?


 3               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Here.


 4               MR. SCHULTZ:  And Chair Slash?


 5               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Present.  Thank


 6   you.


 7               MR. SCHULTZ:  All right.  We have six


 8   Commission members present.


 9               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


10          Okay.  And at this time, we'll go ahead


11   and call our meeting to order at 1:34 p.m., the


12   Indiana Civil Rights Commission's August 2020


13   meeting [sic].  Thank you.


14          Shall we announce the agenda?  We have


15   quite a few people who are over the phone and


16   likely not in front of a screen today.


17               MR. SCHULTZ:  Yes.  So, today we


18   have, under Old Business, three appeals that were


19   previously assigned to Commissioners for final


20   decision.  Under New Business, we are appointing


21   Commissioners to consider a total of seven new


22   appeals.  And then under the Review of ALJ


23   Decisions and Orders, we have a total of four
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 1   decisions being considered -- or preliminary


 2   decisions being considered by the Commission


 3   members for deliberation and vote.  And I think


 4   that's -- that's it, aside from confirming the


 5   future Commission dates.


 6               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you very


 7   much.


 8          At this time, I'd like to hear a motion to


 9   approve the previous meeting minutes.  Is there


10   one?


11               COMM. RAMOS:  So moved --


12               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


13               COMM. RAMOS:  -- Comm. Ramos.


14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Is there a


15   second?


16               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Second, Blackburn.


17               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


18          Being moved and seconded, shall we call


19   the roll?


20               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Blackburn?


21               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, here.


22               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Harrington?


23               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.
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 1               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Jackson?


 2               COMM. JACKSON:  Aye.


 3               MR. SCHULTZ:  Vice-Chair Ramos?


 4               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.


 5               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Tolliver?


 6               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Aye.


 7               MR. SCHULTZ:  And Chair Slash?


 8               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.


 9               MR. SCHULTZ:  Motion passes, six,


10   zero.


11               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


12          Okay.  At this time, we'll have the ICRC's


13   Director's Report.


14               MR. SCHULTZ:  Yeah.  And I don't --


15   unless he didn't speak up, I don't believe


16   Executive Director Greg Wilson is on -- is in the


17   meeting today, so I guess that leaves it to me.


18          As you know, we didn't meet in July.  It's


19   been, you know, fairly busy.  We've had a number


20   of events that we've attended or presented at.


21   For example, we -- the Commission did have the


22   opportunity to present at the Black Expo


23   Education Conference about a month ago, I guess.
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 1          And that was a great opportunity, as


 2   always.  You know, we're always honored to be a


 3   part of that.  I believe that the audience was --


 4   it was virtual, of course, and the audience was


 5   somewhere around the number of 5,000, according


 6   to the Expo representatives, so that was -- of


 7   course, you know, very happy to do so.


 8          And I believe that the Executive Director


 9   Wilson is trying to enter the meeting now, so


10   I'll invite him to join.


11          Greg, did you just sign in?


12               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  His audio may not


13   be connected yet.


14               MR. SCHULTZ:  Director Wilson, did


15   you just join us?


16                     (No response.)


17               MR. SCHULTZ:  Well, maybe he's having


18   a tech issue, but just for the court


19   reporter's -- for the record, Greg Wilson did


20   just join the meeting.


21          We -- the agency also had the opportunity


22   earlier this month to have a booth at the Asian


23   Fest on the north side of the city.  That was
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 1   another wonderful event where we got to, you


 2   know, pass out literature and talk to individuals


 3   about our mission.


 4          The Governor presented at the event, as


 5   did the Mayor, and very successful.  I know I


 6   personally was there for a while, and a lot of


 7   people were very interested in asking questions


 8   about what we were doing -- or what we do.


 9          In addition to that -- I know I always


10   plug this, because I'm always very excited about


11   it -- our testing program has continued for Fair


12   Housing.  We have a number of those completed


13   tests subject to active investigations now, and


14   the testing is continuing.


15          We are looking to maybe modify that


16   program a little bit, instead of just doing kind


17   of, you know, tests that -- I don't want to say


18   at random, but without -- you know, that there's


19   no basis to begin a test, we're just collecting


20   housing projects for providers.


21          What we are now doing is we are working


22   with a vendor, maybe test housing providers that


23   have an active complaint, and that way it's
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 1   something that other organizations such as ICRC


 2   do to help build an investigation file.  And so,


 3   we're always looking to continuously improve that


 4   program and make it more useful, and I think it's


 5   just a great example of something new that we're


 6   doing that is very beneficial.


 7          And I think that's -- that's really the


 8   highlights that I wanted to touch on, but again,


 9   I'll ask if Director Wilson was able to join


10   us -- or if he's able to talk to us at the


11   moment.


12                     (No response.)


13               MR. SCHULTZ:  I don't think so, so


14   that's the Director's Report, Chair Slash.


15               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you very


16   much.


17          Does anyone have any questions regarding


18   the Director's Report, any of our Commissioners?


19               COMM. RAMOS:  Madam Chair, a couple


20   of comments.  Number one, I wanted to extend my


21   appreciation for the inclusion of the Cultural


22   Commissions Reports that you've had over the last


23   several months.  It really is very, very
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 1   valuable.  I find it fascinating, and that's good


 2   work.  So, I wanted to commend the Commission for


 3   that.  It's a great piece of work.


 4          And number two, looking at the reports, I


 5   also notice that in the month of June, you had


 6   440,000 hits, which normally it was like 10,000,


 7   and then it just spiked tremendously, and I was


 8   just curious what the phenomenon was that would


 9   cause that much of a spike.


10               MR. SCHULTZ:  I do not know.  I would


11   probably -- I'll have to check with our Internal


12   Affairs team to see if they can identify the


13   cause.  You know, the fact that we had some


14   presentations at some fairly large events might


15   be part of that.


16          And I can see Greg now, so I don't know,


17   Greg, if you are able to --


18               MR. WILSON:  Yeah.


19          So, good afternoon, everyone.  So, I had


20   some issues.  I'm sure we all have had those.  It


21   could be human error, but I think it was system


22   error.


23          So, anyway, a couple of things.  Tim's
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 1   correct -- and thank you, Comm. Ramos, for those


 2   comments.  We did a lot -- we're doing a lot of


 3   marketing, a lot of radio, talking about a lot of


 4   issues that were important to people, everything


 5   from, you know, the moratorium and where


 6   resources that were available if you needed help.


 7   That's between our partnership that we have with


 8   IACDA.


 9          Again, then we did some radio interviews,


10   where we talked about, you know, our mediation


11   program and talked about Civil Rights and how


12   that if you feel like you've been discriminated


13   against, you could go to our Web site and get


14   more information.


15          And so, we've done a lot of little things,


16   and I think the fact that people have a lot more


17   time to use technology since they've been doing


18   it all through COVID, I think that's helped our


19   engagement a lot.  So, it's just been a lot of


20   things we've been doing.  We have a great


21   External Affairs team that have been working


22   extremely hard.


23          And I don't know where we are on the
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 1   report.  It was a struggle in getting in here,


 2   but I wanted to add, too, is that if Tim hasn't


 3   said so yet, now we're working on filling a lot


 4   of our positions, especially in the Internal


 5   Affairs area, where we now actually hired a


 6   really strong education and outreach person,


 7   somebody who can actually do more of our actual


 8   training and education in the community.  We


 9   didn't have that component before, and Virgil


10   just hired a very talented person, and I think


11   everybody will appreciate when they see some of


12   the work that she'll be doing out there.


13          And then also, McKenzie has really been


14   doing a lot with our Web site, and you'll see --


15   you're going to see a great update.  We're moving


16   some of the things that are not relevant and some


17   of the things that we know need to go away or


18   disappear.  It's been a long process, and Chair


19   Ram -- I mean Comm. Ramos and Slash, Chair Slash


20   and others, you know that we had so many


21   different things we had to fix or improve


22   throughout the last couple of years.


23          And finally, I think we're at a point
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 1   where we can make social media more valuable to


 2   us, as well as our Web site, because we find more


 3   people want to know more information about what


 4   we're doing, how can we help them, and what


 5   services that we provide, because we have been


 6   doing those partnerships, like I said, with


 7   IACDA, which is not what we've done in the past,


 8   which talks about the support and the financial


 9   resources for those who are renters or those who


10   just need help with the mortgage payments.  So, I


11   think that's -- that's made a lot of opportunity


12   for engagement.


13          But we have a lot of new people coming on,


14   I think, in the Intake area, and I don't know if,


15   Tim, you covered this or not, but stop me if you


16   have so I don't bore them with it, but in Intake,


17   especially since we have Christiana, she's been


18   doing some great things with improving those


19   processes, making them more customer-service


20   friendly, as well as now we've given her more


21   tools and resources to process the inquiries a


22   lot faster than what we were able to do it in the


23   past.
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 1          So, you're going to see the numbers go up


 2   tremendously, I believe, with the way she has now


 3   changed how we do business in the Intake area.


 4   So, I'm very excited for her as well as some of


 5   the other new components that we have.


 6          I think everybody knows Adoley has went on


 7   to -- that's one thing.  People come, and I


 8   always say, "Just give me a year, give me what


 9   you've got."  I know we have a lot of talent they


10   bring, but it's just been fantastic that we've


11   gotten this talent, which has helped us improve


12   processes that I think has made us more


13   effective.


14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.  Thank


15   you for your additions.  We had -- we were just


16   getting to the end of the Director's Report, so


17   it was perfect timing, so thank you.


18               MR. WILSON:  Yeah.  I'm sorry if I


19   took more time out.


20               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  No, no, it was


21   perfect.  Thank you.


22          Are there any questions for Director


23   Wilson?
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 1                     (No response.)


 2               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Thank you


 3   so much.  And I do echo Vice-Chair Ramos.  The


 4   updates have been really great to really


 5   understand how the Cultural Commissions are


 6   working, but also I just applaud the Commission's


 7   presence at larger events and taking advantage of


 8   all of the virtual opportunities to reach larger


 9   audiences.


10               MR. WILSON:  Thank you.


11               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Hearing that,


12   we'll move on to Old Business, and we will start


13   with the case Mayers versus Marion Superior


14   Court, Case No. EMra19120129.


15          Vice-Chair Ramos, do you have a


16   recommendation?


17               COMM. RAMOS:  Yes.  And the


18   recommendation in the Mayers versus Marion


19   Superior Court, I recommend that we uphold the


20   Director's finding of no probable cause.


21               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


22          Is there a motion?


23               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I move we accept
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 1   that recommendation.


 2               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


 3          Is there a second?


 4               COMM. JACKSON:  Second, Comm. Jack --


 5               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Comm. Harrington,


 6   second.


 7               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  That was


 8   Comm. Blackburn with the motion, Comm. Harrington


 9   with the second.


10          Shall we call the roll?


11                     (No response.)


12               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  I can do it if


13   you want me to.


14               MS. OJO:  Comm. Blackburn?


15               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, aye.


16               MS. OJO:  Vice-Chair Ramos?


17               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.


18               MS. OJO:  Comm. Harrington?


19               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.


20               MS. OJO:  Comm. Tolliver?


21               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Aye.


22               MS. OJO:  Comm. Jackson?


23               COMM. JACKSON:  Aye.
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 1               MS. OJO:  Chair Ramos -- I'm sorry.


 2   Chair Slash?


 3               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.


 4               MS. OJO:  Vice-Chair Ramos?


 5               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.


 6               MS. OJO:  Motion passes, six.


 7               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


 8               MR. SCHULTZ:  My apologies on that.


 9   I didn't realize I was muted, which, of course,


10   you would think by now I would catch that kind of


11   thing.


12               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  It's okay.  Just


13   remember when we said we were going to extend


14   some grace today?  Lots of grace today, because


15   technology is being, you know, a little special.


16               MR. SCHULTZ:  Yeah.


17               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Last week was


18   Friday the 13th, but today we're just extending


19   grace.


20          Okay.  In the second case, Castillo versus


21   MV Lofts at Roberts LLC.  That's Case


22   No. HOha20060206.


23          Comm. Jackson, do you have a
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 1   recommendation?


 2               COMM. JACKSON:  I recommend to uphold


 3   the Director's finding, no probable cause.


 4               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


 5          Is there a motion?


 6               COMM. RAMOS:  So moved, Ramos.


 7               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


 8          Is there a second?


 9               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Second,


10   Comm. Harrington.


11               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Shall we call the


12   roll?


13               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Blackburn?


14               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, yes.


15               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Harrington?


16               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.


17               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Jackson?


18               COMM. JACKSON:  Aye.


19               MR. SCHULTZ:  Vice-Chair Ramos?


20               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.


21               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Tolliver?


22               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Aye.


23               MR. SCHULTZ:  Chair Slash?
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 1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.


 2               MR. SCHULTZ:  Motion passes, six,


 3   zero.


 4               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


 5          The next case -- and I apologize for


 6   messing this name up -- Capodagil -- Capodagli


 7   versus Chris Allan Tompkins.  That's


 8   Case HOse21020055.


 9          Comm. Tolliver, do you have a


10   recommendation?


11               COMM. TOLLIVER:  I'd recommend that


12   we uphold the Commission's administrative


13   dismissal due to lack of jurisdiction.


14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


15          Is there a motion?


16               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I move we accept.


17               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


18          Is there a -- and that's Comm. Blackburn?


19               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Yes.


20               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


21          Is there a second?


22               COMM. RAMOS:  Ramos, aye -- or


23   second.
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 1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


 2          Shall I call the roll?


 3               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Blackburn?


 4               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, aye.


 5               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Harrington?


 6               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.


 7               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Jackson?


 8               COMM. JACKSON:  Aye.


 9               MR. SCHULTZ:  Vice-Chair Ramos?


10               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.


11               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Tolliver?


12               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Aye.


13               MR. SCHULTZ:  And Chair Slash?


14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.


15               MR. SCHULTZ:  Motion passes, six,


16   zero.


17               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


18          Okay.  Moving to New Business, we have


19   quite a few cases to assign today, and I'll try


20   my best to call them off and read them off.


21   However, we'll just ask that they be sent


22   directly to the Commissioners as well.


23          In the first case -- I do not want to mess
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 1   this last name up.  Can I just call the case


 2   number?  Is that possible?  Okay.


 3               MR. SCHULTZ:  Sure.


 4               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  In the first


 5   case, EMha21030073, I will assign that one to


 6   Comm. Blackburn; in the next one, EMha20120853,


 7   Comm. Harrington; Case PAra21050133,


 8   Comm. Jackson; Case EMra20110814, Comm. Ramos;


 9   Case EDra19090496, Comm. Tolliver;


10   Case EMno20120052, Chair Slash; and the final


11   one, Case 24D-2020-00267, Comm. Harrington.


12          Okay.  That might have been a pretty


13   efficient way to do that.  And for clarity,


14   Commissioners, they'll be sent to you for more


15   clarity, just to make sure that we have the


16   proper assignments.


17          Okay.  At this time, we do not have any


18   motions or other filings in New Business, and so


19   we will move to reviewing ALJ Decisions and


20   Orders, and our first case is the case that we


21   have parties present for oral arguments.


22          And so, I'll just kind of give us a brief


23   intro, ICRC -- Case of ICRC versus Varin/River
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 1   Pointe, LLC, Case HOha151001734.  The case was


 2   submitted to the Commission on April 15th, 2021.


 3   The ALJ conducted a hearing on the merits and


 4   dismissed the matter.


 5          Subsequently an objection was submitted


 6   for consideration by the Commission.  The


 7   Commission set a briefing for June 21st and an


 8   oral argument for August 2021.  The parties have


 9   submitted their briefing materials concerning the


10   Complainant's objection to the ALJ's initial


11   decision.


12          At this time, I'll ask that party


13   representatives introduce themselves, beginning


14   with the representative for the Respondent.


15               MR. BRADLEY:  Good afternoon, Chair


16   Slash.  My name is Jake Bradley.  I am the


17   attorney for the Respondent.


18               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


19          And on the Complainant's side?


20               MR. BREMER:  Yes.  My name is Fred


21   Bremer.  I'm a staff attorney at the Indiana


22   Civil Rights Commission, here for the


23   Complainant, the Director.
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 1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


 2          At this time, we'll begin the oral


 3   argument.  As staff counsel for the agency filed


 4   objections to the ALJ decision, that party will


 5   have the first opportunity to present to


 6   Commission members.  Presentations will be


 7   limited to 15 minutes, and each party will have


 8   four minutes to respond after the initial


 9   presentations are complete.  Commission members,


10   if you have questions, you may ask them at any


11   time.


12          Do we have a timekeeper, and is there


13   going to be a show of time on screen?  This is an


14   administrative question that I think we should


15   have asked slightly earlier.  If not, I can --


16               MR. SCHULTZ:  I --


17               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  -- set my own


18   timer.


19               MR. SCHULTZ:  This is Tim Schultz.  I


20   will keep time and provide --


21               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.


22               MR. SCHULTZ:  -- a five-minute and


23   three-minute and one-minute warning.
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 1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Thank you.


 2          Mr. Bremer?


 3               MR. BREMER:  Thank you.


 4          We're here today to present on behalf of


 5   the objections filed by Commission -- Director


 6   Wilson in the case of Wilson versus River Pointe


 7   Apartments.  I'm not going to get into the


 8   factual background right now.  We have seven


 9   objections.  I'm not going to treat those in the


10   same order in which they were treated in brief


11   and in the objections filing.


12          So, I'll start out with -- the first one


13   has to do with the basic decision of the


14   Administrative Law Judge, recommending that you


15   find that the aggrieved person, Carrie Shroff,


16   did not qualify for protected status as a


17   disabled person.  And our objection to that is


18   that she does qualify under applicable federal


19   law.


20          She had enough of a recitation of how her


21   asthma affected her life.  It wasn't just


22   general, it was a lot of detail.  She had to


23   use -- take an inhaler with her at all times.
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 1   She had to use it two times a week.  She had


 2   episodes in her past when she encountered


 3   environmental factors such as smoke, the smell of


 4   urine and other noxious odors, where this would


 5   cause her to become unable to breathe and would


 6   have to use that device, and in some cases would


 7   have to also use a nebulizer, which provided some


 8   medication that caused the airways to be


 9   constricted.  And she also had situations where


10   she couldn't breathe and it was very frightening,


11   she had panic attacks, and so there was a lot of


12   detail about that.


13          The Administrative Law Judge was saying


14   that there wasn't, but the case that should be


15   applied and we cited in the brief is the AutoZone


16   case, where it does set the standard, and it


17   lines up with what Mrs. Shroff testified about.


18   What we're saying is that Ms. Shroff, on that


19   issue, should have prevailed.  Now, there was no


20   analysis otherwise, because the Judge cut this


21   off at the kneecaps by saying that she was not --


22   she didn't qualify as a protected person.


23          Now, going on to the -- another objection,


ACCURATE REPORTING OF INDIANA







Page 27


 1   this was one that the Administrative Law Judge


 2   came up with gratuitously, saying that even if --


 3   even if Ms. Shroff was a person that qualified


 4   for protection under the Indiana Fair Housing


 5   Act, there was -- the case should still fail


 6   because there was not a nexus between her


 7   disability and what she was asking to do, which


 8   what was happening here -- and I'm going to get a


 9   little bit into the facts -- when she encountered


10   this apartment, she had leased it and walked into


11   it the first time after she had leased it, and


12   encountered a lot of environmental factors,


13   smells and so forth, that was causing her to


14   begin to have the signs of an asthmatic episode.


15          And so, eventually -- many things


16   happened, but eventually she did demand her money


17   back -- she had paid a deposit and the first


18   month's rent and other things -- and to be let


19   out of the lease, and the Respondent did refuse


20   that.  So, the Administrative Law Judge is


21   speaking of that in terms of asking for an


22   accommodation.


23          There is also a straight-out
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 1   discrimination issue in the case, but there was a


 2   nexus between the disability that she has, the


 3   asthmatic condition, and what she asked to do.  I


 4   mean she -- her particular disability is related


 5   to environments, and what we're talking about


 6   here is an environment that would last for months


 7   under a lease.


 8          She would have to live in this place.  She


 9   wouldn't be let out of the lease.  She'd be in


10   all kinds of trouble if she just left, because


11   that would be on her record, she couldn't rent


12   someplace else.  So, there is a tremendous nexus


13   between the two.


14          Go on to the third objection that I'm


15   going to speak about, and this is a very


16   important one, and a very plainly evident


17   erroneous decision by the Administrative Law


18   Judge not to treat this case using the -- or


19   utilizing the issue of whether or not the


20   Respondent engaged in activities that would be in


21   violation of the Indiana Civil Rights Law.


22          In fact, there's a step back from that,


23   because the issue is whether that should even be


ACCURATE REPORTING OF INDIANA







Page 29


 1   an issue in the case at all.  What the


 2   Administrative Law Judge came up with was that


 3   the only issue was whether there was a violation


 4   of the Indiana Fair Housing Act.  The Director


 5   found that there wasn't any issue.


 6          Now, that was despite the fact that


 7   Mr. Bradley and I had submitted a joint


 8   prehearing statement specifying that that was one


 9   of the issues in the case.  So, Ms. Shroff, way


10   back to the beginning of the thing, when she


11   filed her claim of housing discrimination, that


12   recited that she was requesting relief under both


13   the Indiana Fair Housing Act and the Indiana


14   Civil Rights Law.


15          Plus, we have a regulation of the


16   Commission that is very specifically, as I've


17   cited it in the brief and quoted it, that it is


18   possible for the parties to agree to issues -- to


19   litigate issues that were not issue -- were not


20   issues going into the case; in other words, in


21   the course of the hearing, and even after there's


22   a final order.


23          This whole thing is very possible.  The
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 1   Administrative Law Judge would decline to do


 2   that, and there's going to be a big difference in


 3   how this case might be determined, because the


 4   standards for who is disabled under the Indiana


 5   Civil Rights Law appear to be relaxed and less


 6   detailed than what it takes to get protection as


 7   a protected person under the Indiana Fair Housing


 8   Act.  I'm frankly surprised that we are not here


 9   today with the Indiana Civil Rights Law liability


10   not being something we're talking about.


11          The next issue is the whole thing about


12   the Administrative Law Judge not having authority


13   to enter a -- an order granting the Respondent's


14   motion for summary judgment -- not for summary


15   judgment, for judgment on the evidence.  This is


16   what happened:  At the two-day hearing, I was


17   presenting on behalf of the Director, his case,


18   and then that went over into the second day, and


19   then the Director rested his case, and it was


20   time for Mr. Bradley to present on behalf of the


21   Respondent.


22          At that point, Mr. Bradley submitted a


23   written motion for judgment on the evidence; in
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 1   other words, asking that the Judge rule on the


 2   evidence that was -- I presented on behalf of the


 3   Director up to that point, and up to when I


 4   rested.


 5          And the ulti -- ultimately there was


 6   briefing and so forth, the Judge did not rule


 7   that day, but we went ahead and agreed that


 8   Mr. Bradley should go ahead and put on the


 9   evidence that the Respondent was prepared to


10   offer provisionally and pending briefing and


11   argument, which we had on the motion, and whether


12   that motion, there was even any authority for the


13   Administrative Law Judge, on behalf of the


14   Commission, to grant such a motion.


15          Now, the Commission does not have the


16   authority to grant such a motion.  If you were --


17   had -- way back in December for this hearing, had


18   tried this case, which you have every right to do


19   as a group en banc, as referred to in legal


20   terminology, you could not have entertained such


21   a motion.  You would have had to have listened to


22   the entire thing.


23               MR. SCHULTZ:  Five minutes remaining.
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 1               MR. BREMER:  And I got that from the


 2   law, the powers of the Commission.  It says that


 3   you may enter findings of fact and conclusions of


 4   law after a hearing, not in the middle of the


 5   hearing, not before it's over with, but after a


 6   hearing.


 7          The same thing should apply here.  You


 8   have no regulations which permit you to get into


 9   the trial rules except for a summary judgment


10   motion and for purposes of discovery.  This whole


11   thing of granting a motion like was granted here


12   is not a topic that was available at the time


13   this hearing took place.


14          And then the next objection has to do with


15   what the Administrative Law Judge -- the standard


16   of evidence that the Administrative Law Judge


17   used to determine whether the motion should be


18   granted.  We have submitted material in our -- in


19   our brief that the standard should have been


20   whether there was a rebuttable inference, whether


21   there was an inference.


22          But what the Administrative Law Judge was


23   holding us to was whether there had to be
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 1   substantial and reliable evidence, so a more


 2   rigorous standard was imposed.  This -- this case


 3   should be sent back for various reasons, and we


 4   have specific suggestions.  We may not have time


 5   within the time that's left, but I'm going to


 6   start through them, and tell you what the


 7   Complainant wants to happen.


 8          The Complainant, on that first issue --


 9               MR. SCHULTZ:  Three minutes


10   remaining.


11               MR. BREMER:  -- the Complainant asks


12   that the Commission reject the recommendation and


13   find that Ms. Shroff was qualified for protection


14   as a disabled person, and to make other


15   findings -- direct her to make other findings


16   that would be consistent with that and issue --


17   and address the other issues in the case.


18          We also ask that the Commissioners find --


19   remand and have the Direct -- the Administrative


20   Law Judge, in her decision, find that a nexus did


21   exist between what Ms. Shroff's disability was


22   and what she was asking for as a reasonable


23   accommodation.
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 1          We also ask that the Commission remand


 2   with instructions that the Indiana Civil Rights


 3   Law should be considered by the Administrative


 4   Law Judge in -- as an issue to rule on in this


 5   case.


 6          We also ask that the matter be remanded,


 7   that -- with instructions that the Administrative


 8   Law Judge is to rule on the full record of the


 9   hearing and not just on the Complainant's case.


10          And we also ask that the Commission


11   instruct the Administrative Law Judge to use the


12   correct standard, the rebuttable inference


13   standard, instead of substantial and reliable


14   standard.


15          Thank you.


16               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


17          At this time, we'll hear the Com -- we'll


18   here from the Respondent.  You have 15 minutes.


19               MR. BRADLEY:  Thank you, Chair Slash.


20          This Commission should affirm the ALJ's


21   ruling for four reasons.  First, Indiana law


22   explicitly provides that the ALJ may grant


23   motions presented to her.  There's authority from
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 1   the Indiana Court of Appeals that explains the


 2   standards that apply to such rulings.  The


 3   Complainant's argument today fails to acknowledge


 4   this controlling precedent disposing of that


 5   issue.


 6          Second, the ALJ properly applied Indiana


 7   precedent that prohibits parties from consenting


 8   to jurisdiction.  Because the parties cannot


 9   consent to jurisdiction over the ICRL claims, the


10   ALJ and the Commission lack authority to rule on


11   it, because there was never a probable cause


12   finding, which is required by the law.


13          Third, asthma is not a disability, and


14   even if it was, Ms. Shroff failed to present any


15   evidence that the cause is substantial limitation


16   of a major life activity.  And even if her asthma


17   could be a disability, she did not present any


18   evidence linking her normal use of the apartment


19   to that disability.


20          Fourth, if we have time to get to it, the


21   Indiana statutes do permit River Pointe to


22   recover its attorneys fees and costs.  The


23   Complainant's briefing improperly asks this
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 1   Commission to ignore that controlling precedent.


 2          I'm going to point out just a couple of


 3   key pieces of evidence that are material here.


 4   As Mr. Bremer has discussed, the aggrieved


 5   person's asserted disability is asthma.


 6   Ms. London, who is Ms. Shroff's daughter, did not


 7   present any evidence that she experienced any


 8   asthma symptoms or concerns.  Her claim should


 9   just outright be dismissed.


10          As for Ms. Shroff, the Director's


11   recitation of her medical history is not relevant


12   here, because the evidence establishes she did


13   not experience any asthma symptoms during her


14   normal use of the apartment.  Her September 3rd,


15   2015 letter to River Pointe didn't mention any


16   asthma concerns or symptoms.  That's Exhibit 19


17   in the record.


18          Instead, the evidence establishes she only


19   experienced asthma symptoms after she violently


20   and destructively ripped up the carpets in the


21   apartment.  She did not present any expert


22   medical testimony or evidence regarding these


23   life symptoms, and her symptoms were so minor
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 1   that either she did not need her rescue inhaler,


 2   she did not need a nebulizer, or, if needed, her


 3   rescue inhaler immediately resolved her symptoms.


 4          But again, she -- the record shows she


 5   only had symptoms after she tore out the carpets


 6   and padding.  It's also important to note she


 7   never went to a doctor or hospital due to these


 8   alleged symptoms, and she continued to return to


 9   the apartment after experiencing what she claimed


10   were breathing problems.


11          It's also important to point out that


12   Ms. Shroff did not have any specialized training


13   in identification of pet urine or mold, nor did


14   she present any third-party evidence or testimony


15   that the carpets were contaminated.


16          To the contrary, there were four different


17   nonparties who presented uncontroverted evidence


18   that establishes that the carpets were not


19   contaminated:  A man named Ed Frutig of Chem-Dry,


20   who Ms. Shroff selected as a carpet cleaning


21   company; Aladdin's, a carpet installation


22   company; Enviro-Decon, a company who conducted


23   mold testing and found no issues; and the
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 1   Mishawaka Department of Code Enforcement, who


 2   inspected the entire apartment.


 3          Mr. Bremer's recitation of what attorneys


 4   call the procedural history, just how we got


 5   here, is largely correct.  There was a hearing, a


 6   final hearing, on December 3rd and 4th.  The


 7   Complainant presented its case-in-chief -- well,


 8   I guess in this case the Director presented his


 9   case-in-chief -- that included testimony,


10   cross-examination, and a number of exhibits that


11   were admitted.


12          Neither party ever presented rebuttal


13   evidence, and that's important, because once the


14   Director rested, the Complainant had put forth --


15   or the Director had put forth all of his evidence


16   in support of his allegations.  All of that


17   evidence is at issue in the motion today.


18          And as Mr. Bremer pointed out, once the


19   Com -- once the Director rested, River Pointe


20   made an oral and written motion for involuntary


21   dismissal, which the ALJ ultimately granted, and


22   that's why we are here.


23          So, River Pointe's motion for involuntary
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 1   dismissal is limited to the evidence presented


 2   during the Director's case-in-chief, but as a


 3   practical matter, if this Commission reverses


 4   that ruling and returns the case to the ALJ, the


 5   ALJ will have the full panoply of evidence


 6   available to her to review the case.


 7          That will include River Pointe's evidence,


 8   and although it's not at issue, I will submit to


 9   you, Commissioners, that nothing in River


10   Pointe's compels a different result other than


11   judgment for River Pointe.  So, a reversal here


12   is most likely going to result in the same


13   substantive outcome.  River Pointe will succeed.


14   But there's no need to reverse, because there's


15   no evidence to support the Claimant's -- or the


16   Director's claims, and the ALJ properly granted


17   involuntary dismissal here.


18          Let's first address the authority issue


19   that Mr. Bremer raised.  The Administrative Law


20   Judge has authority to adjudicate the motion at


21   issue.  Both of the parties agreed that the Civil


22   Rights Commission, like all state administrative


23   agencies, enjoy those powers that are conferred
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 1   on it by the General Assembly.


 2          The parties also agree to the Commission's


 3   expressive statutory authority as found in


 4   Indiana Fair Housing Act, in Indiana Civil Rights


 5   Law, and the Administrative Orders and Procedure


 6   Act.  Each of these statutory schemes authorize


 7   an ALJ to rule on motions.  The Indiana Civil


 8   Rights Law says an Administrative Law Judge


 9   appointed under this subsection has the same


10   powers and duties as a Commissioner sitting as an


11   ALJ.  I'm going to come back to that in just a


12   moment.


13          The Indiana Fair Housing Act says that


14   Indiana Code Section 4-21.5 governs hearing on


15   Fair Housing Act claims.  Of course, we know


16   Indiana Code Section 4-21.5 is the Administrative


17   Orders and Procedures Act.  So, AOPA is


18   referenced in both the Civil Rights and the Fair


19   Housing Acts.


20          AOPA says that the Administrative Law


21   Judge may, among other things, rule on, quote,


22   any other motion.  That's Indiana


23   Code 4-21.5-3-25(e).  Similarly, 910 Indiana
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 1   Administrative Code, Article 2, Rule 7, Section 2


 2   empowers the ALJ to, quote, dispose of motions,


 3   procedural requests, and similar matters.


 4          These statutory provisions, the Indiana


 5   Administrative Procedures Act and the


 6   Administrative Code, govern this Commission, and


 7   they empower the ALJ to rule on motions, without


 8   limitation of the type of motion.  That includes


 9   River Pointe's motion here.  The Complainant


10   argues that the Civil Rights Commission has not


11   adopted the Trial Rules, thus, 41(b) motions are


12   improper, but that ignores the statutes in the


13   Administrative Code that I just described.


14          Courts do not interpret statutes in the


15   manner that renders any part of them meaningless,


16   but that's what the Director is asking you to do


17   here today; interpret the AOPA statute and the


18   Administrative Code in a manner that renders


19   meaningless the provision that authorizes ALJ's


20   to grant motions.  That's impermissible.


21   Instead, this motion was properly before the ALJ.


22          We also cited the case of Bankhead versus


23   Walker in our materials, where the Indiana Court
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 1   of Appeals adjudicated a nearly identical motion


 2   without any question of whether it was


 3   procedurally proper.  So, the ALJ has authority


 4   to rule on the motion.


 5          That brings us to the standard.  Trial


 6   Rule 41(b) provides the standard.  It's upon the


 7   weight of the evidence.  That typically means


 8   preponderance of the evidence under Indiana law.


 9   This is the lowest of three standards.  A civil


10   procedure professor once described it in football


11   terms as the ball is just over the 50-yard line


12   into the enemy territory.


13          The next standard's a little more


14   amorphous; it's clear and convincing.  It's kind


15   of the intermediate standard between


16   preponderance, but less than beyond a reasonable


17   doubt, and from our crime shows on TV, we all


18   know beyond a reasonable doubt is the standard


19   that applies in criminal proceedings.


20          The Court of Appeals has confirmed that


21   the preponderance of the evidence test is


22   essentially a test of sufficiency of the


23   evidence.  This is from the cases that the ALJ
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 1   relied on in her ruling.


 2          But all of this is nothing more than an


 3   academic exercise, because the ALJ correctly


 4   found there was no reliable evidence to create a


 5   rebuttable inference in favor of Complainant's


 6   claims.  We're not at the 50-yard line.  The ball


 7   hasn't even been kicked off yet.


 8          Similarly, the Director's argument


 9   regarding the standard of review is a red


10   herring.  The Bankhead case I mentioned earlier


11   resolves the Complainant's -- the issue that the


12   Director raises here that provides the standard


13   of review, which I just discussed.  So, the


14   Director's argument about the standard is just


15   simply a red herring and not in concert with


16   controlling law.


17          That brings us to the substance of the


18   motion, and there's four reasons why it should be


19   granted -- or affirmed, rather.  First, the


20   parties cannot convert jurisdiction via consent.


21   I explained earlier that the parties agreed


22   Indiana legislature creates the administrative


23   agencies and gives them their powers.
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 1          The Indiana Court of Appeals has


 2   consistently held that the parties cannot confer


 3   jurisdiction upon an administrative agency by


 4   consent or agreement.  The cases cited there were


 5   the Howell and the Gorman cases.  The ALJ was


 6   proper in finding that it lacked jurisdiction to


 7   rule on the ICRL claim, because there was no


 8   probable cause finding.  A probable cause finding


 9   is necessary to proceed with a Civil Rights Law


10   claim.


11          Now, the Director does not dispute that


12   there was a lack of probable cause.  Instead, he


13   incorrectly argues that the parties consented,


14   but jurisdiction issues trump procedural issues.


15   Simply because the parties consented is


16   irrelevant.  If the Court lacks jurisdiction, it


17   cannot proceed, or in this case, if the ALJ or


18   the Commission lacks jurisdiction, it can't


19   proceed to the procedural rules.


20               MR. SCHULTZ:  Five minutes remaining.


21               MR. BRADLEY:  Thank you.


22          The Indiana Court of Appeals has held that


23   you can't consent to jurisdiction.  That disposes
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 1   of the Civil Rights Law issue.


 2          Second, as described in our briefing,


 3   asthma is not a disability recognized in the law.


 4   The parties don't really meaningfully dispute


 5   that the person's entitled to protection under


 6   the Fair Housing Act, the Civil Rights Laws, or


 7   the ADA if she is substantially limited in a


 8   major life activity.  Of course, what's key here


 9   is the word "substantial."


10          The Director cites the federal cases


11   interpreting the ADA in support of his arguments.


12   It is a concession that federal cases control in


13   these situations.  One such case the Director


14   mentioned, I believe, was the EEOC versus


15   AutoZone case that explains "substantially


16   limited" means considerable or to a large degree.


17          Although this is a general proposition of


18   law that River Pointe does not dispute, the


19   AutoZone case is distinguishable because it does


20   not address asthma, nor do any of the cases cited


21   in it.  Instead, the party in AutoZone suffered


22   from a back injury that caused myofascial


23   tenderness.  That prevented him from doing things
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 1   like the major life activity of chair upholstery.


 2          There's no evidence here that Ms. Shroff


 3   had a substantial impairment.  River Pointe


 4   instead cited five cases, each of which held that


 5   asthma, combined with other maladies, does not


 6   rise to the level of a disability.


 7          Moreover, there's no evidence here that


 8   Ms. Shroff presented any evidence of a


 9   substantial limitation of her life activity, and


10   that's the point:  Substantial.  Nor does


11   Complainant's briefing address this issue.  At


12   best, Ms. Shroff testified that her asthma is


13   controlled by the use of her inhaler.  This is


14   hardly a substantial limitation, and the ALJ was


15   correct here.


16          Third, even assuming Ms. Shroff's asthma


17   is a substantial limitation of a major life


18   activity, there's no evidence of a nexus between


19   the apartment and her asthma.


20               MR. SCHULTZ:  Three minutes


21   remaining.


22               MR. BRADLEY:  Thank you.


23          The Complainant failed to present any
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 1   reliable evidence of contamination in the


 2   apartment.  As I mentioned, four separate


 3   nonparties all reviewed it.  None of them found


 4   any issues.  Ms. Shroff does not have any


 5   training to identify mold or toxic substances.


 6   So, all that's left is her lay, self-serving


 7   testimony that the apartment had some


 8   contamination in it.


 9          This lack of credible evidence is crucial,


10   because Ms. Shroff's presence in the apartment,


11   by itself, did not trigger any asthma symptoms.


12   Nor did Complainant point to any contrary


13   evidence in its briefing or its presentation


14   today.  Ms. Sharp's testimony is wholly


15   irrelevant, which is addressed in the briefing,


16   because it lends nothing to the fact that


17   Ms. Shroff did not experience these symptoms


18   during normal use.


19          Instead, the evidence established that


20   Ms. Shroff experienced asthma symptoms only after


21   she destructively ripped up the carpets and the


22   padding, and this bears repeating, I think, for


23   the third time.  The only time Ms. Shroff
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 1   experienced any alleged asthma symptoms is after


 2   she voluntarily undertook to tear out the carpets


 3   and the padding.  This is hardly a normal,


 4   ordinary, or customary use of an apartment.


 5          And that's the point that the


 6   Administrative Law Judge made.  Ms. Shroff's use


 7   of the apartment in its normal condition did not


 8   cause any issues.  It wasn't until she misused


 9   the apartment that she began to allegedly


10   experience issues.


11          Even then, there's no evidence that


12   suggests anything in the apartment caused those


13   symptoms.  For all we know, it could have been


14   the physical activity of tearing out the carpets


15   that caused her to suffer symptoms.  The ALJ


16   correctly found that the Complainant failed to


17   establish a nexus between the apartment and


18   Ms. Shroff's asthma.


19          Fourth, and finally, the Administrative


20   Law Judge correctly interpreted Indiana law


21   regarding the recovery of attorneys fees and


22   costs.  There's a statute here that's at issue,


23   and one section of the Administrative Code.
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 1   Indiana Code 22-9.5-9-1 says that the


 2   Commission --


 3               MR. SCHULTZ:  One minute remaining.


 4               MR. BRADLEY:  Thanks.


 5          -- in any administrative hearing may award


 6   reasonable attorney fees to the prevailing party.


 7   Similarly, 910 IAC 2-7-9-G says that the


 8   prevailing party, except for the ICRC, may apply


 9   for attorneys fees.  There are two sections here


10   that unambiguously state River Pointe is entitled


11   to its fees.  Those sections must be applied as


12   they are written, which is exactly what the ALJ


13   did.


14          An award of fees would not frustrate the


15   purpose of the Civil Rights Law, or be


16   inconsistent with the legislature's intent,


17   because the Commission cannot get that far.  When


18   faced with an unambiguous statute, it must be


19   applied as it is written.  For these reasons, the


20   Commission should affirm the ALJ's decision in


21   all respects.


22               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


23          At this time, we'll allow for four minutes
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 1   each in response to one another.  We can begin


 2   with Mr. Bremer.


 3               MR. BREMER:  Thank you.


 4          The Administrative Law Judge does refer to


 5   the fact that if there is a limiting factor, that


 6   the whole idea that the Administrative Law Judges


 7   can dip into the trial rules and grant similar


 8   kinds of motions that are found in the trial


 9   rules -- I'm sorry; I don't have my video on.


10   Someone turned me off here.


11                (Pause in proceedings.)


12               MR. BREMER:  Okay.  I'm on now.


13   Thank you.


14          So, the limiting factor is that the


15   Commission has the authority to issue findings of


16   fact and conclusions of law only after a hearing.


17   It does not -- that's the limiting factor.  There


18   is an indication that there is a legal restraint


19   on just wholesale bringing in the Trial Rules,


20   and particularly this kind of a motion that was


21   granted in this case.


22          Now, also, the Commission has cited to --


23   I mean we have cited to you the -- a number of
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 1   cases, almost all of them, 56 different


 2   decisions, that are -- all have to do with the


 3   same agency, the Utility Regulatory Commission,


 4   and they did explicitly have a rule that said


 5   that they could draw upon the Trial Rules for


 6   guidance in ruling on motions.  So, the Civil


 7   Rights Commission does not have anything similar


 8   to that.


 9          She did have symptoms when she was in the


10   apartment before she got into the uncovering the


11   carpet, bringing it up to see if there were urine


12   stains on the reverse of the carpet from cats and


13   dogs and that sort of thing.  She was having


14   trouble breathing.  She had to leave the


15   apartment early.  That's in the record.


16          And the real point is this:  She had a


17   lifetime of experience with asthma and asthma


18   symptoms.  She knew what caused her -- and what


19   jeopardized her to get into a state where she


20   would have difficulty breathing.  She was faced


21   with the prospect of living in the place for


22   months on end that would -- showed all of the


23   warning signs of something --
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 1               MR. SCHULTZ:  One minute remaining,


 2   Mr. Bremer.


 3               MR. BREMER:  -- that was going to


 4   make her exhibit the symptoms of asthma.  The


 5   testimony of Ms. Sharp, who rented -- leased the


 6   apartment after Ms. Shroff left, and did not


 7   continue in the apartment, is that there was --


 8   there were noxious odors in that place.


 9          And this is exactly what Ms. Shroff


10   identified as something that would prompt her to


11   have constriction of her airways, have to use her


12   equipment, to deal with that.  It's not


13   reasonable to think that someone with asthma is


14   going to have to be left with the choice of


15   living in a place that's going to make them


16   vulnerable to asthma outbreaks.


17          Now, as far as the --


18               MR. SCHULTZ:  That's four minutes.


19               MR. BREMER:  -- ability of the


20   Commission --


21               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Mr. Bremer, I


22   believe that's the end of your time.  We've


23   reached the four-minute mark.


ACCURATE REPORTING OF INDIANA







Page 53


 1               MR. BREMER:  Oh, I didn't hear what


 2   he said.  I'm sorry.


 3               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  That's okay.


 4   Thank you very much.


 5          Okay.  We'll hear from Respondent.


 6               MR. BRADLEY:  Yes.  Thank you, Chair


 7   Slash.


 8          I just have two quick points that I'll


 9   make in response.  The first one is:  The statute


10   and the Administrative Code sections that I began


11   with today both authorize an ALJ to rule on any


12   motion.  There's no limitation there.  We don't


13   disagree with the Director or Mr. Bremer that he


14   cited 56 different cases from the IURC, and the


15   IURC has adopted the Trial Rules, but that's not


16   relevant here, because the Code and the


17   Administrative Code both authorize the ALJ to


18   grant motions.


19          As to the symptoms, I simply -- I disagree


20   with Mr. Bremer's statement.  I have found no


21   evidence in the record, and the ALJ found no


22   evidence in the record, that Ms. Shroff suffered


23   from breathing problems before she began taking
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 1   out the carpets, and that's what's key here.


 2          Ms. Shroff testified that things like


 3   smoke and pet urine would exacerbate her asthma,


 4   yet there was evidence in the record presented


 5   that she is a smoker, or was a smoker, and that


 6   she maintains pet birds, which I learned during


 7   the hearing pet birds also urinate, and she can


 8   clean that urine with no problem.


 9          So, what this might have come down to is


10   the fact that there just simply wasn't any


11   evidence that while Ms. Shroff was in the


12   apartment in its normal and ordinary condition,


13   that it was -- that that caused her symptoms.


14   And I'm confident that we can say there's no such


15   evidence in the record.


16          And so, based on that, even if


17   Ms. Shroff -- even if, I'm sorry, asthma was a


18   disability, which we do not concede, because it's


19   not a substantial limitation according to the


20   controlling precedent, there's just no nexus


21   between the apartment and her asthma.  And for


22   those reasons, we would ask that you affirm the


23   Administrative Law Judge's order.
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 1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Thank you.


 2   That concludes the discussion portion of this


 3   oral argument.


 4          At this time, I want to make sure that we


 5   are going through the objections in a way that we


 6   are able to follow clearly for the record.  Let's


 7   see here.  Deputy Director Schultz, would you


 8   want to call each of the objections as they were


 9   submitted so that we might call for motions


10   should they exist?


11               MR. SCHULTZ:  So, unless there is an


12   objection from the parties, I think procedurally


13   the easiest thing to do, since we are dealing


14   with a number of objections that have to be


15   addressed individually, would be simply to have


16   Mr. Bremer read off each individual one.


17               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.


18               MR. SCHULTZ:  Read it off, discuss if


19   warranted, and then vote.  But again, I -- I


20   don't want to -- I want to allow opposing counsel


21   the opportunity to object to that procedure.


22               MR. BRADLEY:  I think that's


23   perfectly fine with me.  Mr. Bremer's going to
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 1   represent his objections as stated, so that's


 2   fine.


 3               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.


 4          And as we get started here, Commissioners,


 5   I did not -- I apologize that I did not call for


 6   any questions from Commissioners.  We didn't have


 7   any during the arguments, but I want to make sure


 8   that if there were any, that we have time to


 9   address them.


10                     (No response.)


11               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  We can


12   proceed with the procedure as stated a moment


13   ago, Mr. Bremer.


14               MR. BREMER:  I'm going to address


15   these in the order in which the objections are


16   raised in the brief --


17               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


18               MR. BREMER:  -- this time around.


19          The first objection was that the


20   Administrative Law Judge lacked the statutory


21   authority to grant the Respondent's motion.  And


22   with regard to that, we're asking that the


23   Commissioners reject that opinion and remand to
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 1   the Administrative Law Judge with instructions to


 2   issue a decision based on the entire record of


 3   the hearing and not just at the point when the


 4   Complainant rested.


 5               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


 6          Commissioners, is there a motion or


 7   interest in this objection?


 8                     (No response.)


 9               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  I'm likely going


10   to get some interesting pauses here, just in case


11   there are folks that need to get off mute or need


12   to think briefly.


13                     (No response.)


14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  We will


15   move to -- hearing none, we will move to


16   objection no. 2.


17               MR. BREMER:  That is the objection


18   that involved the inappropriate evidentiary


19   burden that was utilized by the Administrative


20   Law Judge in valuating the -- a motion for


21   judgment on the evidence.  Now, that's assuming


22   that you agree that the Judge had the authority


23   to grant that motion.
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 1          So, this is a fallback one, where we're


 2   saying when you -- or asking that if you don't --


 3   if you -- if it comes to a point where that is --


 4   you feel that was appropriate to even entertain


 5   that motion, that the Administrative Law Judge


 6   receive this case back to evaluate the motion in


 7   light of the rebuttable inference standard


 8   instead of the substantial and reliable evidence


 9   standard that seems to have been used.


10               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


11          Commissioners, is there a motion or


12   interest in further discussion on this objection?


13                     (No response.)


14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Hearing none,


15   we'll move to objection no. 3.


16               MR. BREMER:  The third objection has


17   to do with the fact that the -- although the


18   parties went into the hearing planning to


19   adjudicate claims under both the Indiana Fair


20   Housing Act and the Indiana Civil Rights Law, the


21   Administrative Law Judge disregarded that, and


22   also the regulation that permitted the parties to


23   take that kind of action, which is cited in full
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 1   in the brief.


 2          What we want is for the Commissioners to


 3   remand this case back to the Administrative Law


 4   Judge with instructions to adjudicate the claim


 5   both under the Indiana Civil Rights Law -- under


 6   the Indiana Civil Rights Law as well as the


 7   Indiana Fair Housing Act.


 8               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


 9          Commissioners, is there a motion or


10   interest in this objection?


11                     (No response.)


12               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Hearing


13   none, we'll move to objection no. 4.


14               MR. BREMER:  The next objection has


15   to do with the finding of the Administrative Law


16   Judge that Ms. Shroff did not qualify for


17   protected status under the Indiana Fair Housing


18   Act.


19          On this one, we ask that the Commission


20   not accept that and remand with instructions to


21   the Administrative Law Judge to find that


22   Ms. Shroff did have the status as a protected


23   person, and to make other findings that would
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 1   be -- go along with that on the balance of the


 2   issues in the case.


 3               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


 4          Commissioners, is there a motion or


 5   further interest in objection no. 4?


 6                     (No response.)


 7               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Hearing


 8   none, we'll move to objection no. 5.


 9               MR. BREMER:  The next objection has


10   to do with the Administrative Law Judge ruling


11   that there was not a nexus as required by law


12   between the disability of Ms. Shroff and the


13   accommodation she sought, which was to be


14   relieved of the obligation to live in the


15   apartment under the lease.


16          And on this one, we're asking that that be


17   rejected and that the Administrative Law Judge,


18   on remand, would be instructed to find that there


19   was a sufficient nexus between the two.  Of


20   course, that depends on the treatment of the


21   objection that we just talked about before that.


22               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


23          Commissioners, is there a motion or
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 1   interest in objection no. 5?


 2               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I do have a


 3   question.


 4               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Uh-huh.  Please


 5   proceed.


 6               COMM. BLACKBURN:  At what point after


 7   Ms. Shroff moved in did she complain that the


 8   environment was so unhealthy she could not stay


 9   there?  How long had she been there before she


10   complained?


11               MR. BREMER:  Is that addressed to me?


12               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Comm. Blackburn,


13   are you addressing that question towards


14   Mr. Bremer?


15               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Yes.


16               MR. BREMER:  Well, I have to add


17   this:  Ms. Shroff never really did move in.  She


18   just -- the situation she encountered, she took a


19   few personal possessions there, never moved in


20   any furniture in, never lived there overnight,


21   anything like that.  But with that understanding,


22   it was very soon.  It was like by the next day


23   she was bringing this problem with the odor in
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 1   the apartment to the attention of the property


 2   manager.


 3               MR. BRADLEY:  Chair Slash, may I say


 4   something as well?


 5               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Sure.


 6               MR. BRADLEY:  I think the record


 7   evidence will show that the complaints escalated


 8   as time went on.  We don't disagree that


 9   Ms. Shroff really didn't move in.  There were a


10   few minor things -- when the Varin -- the River


11   Pointe folks went in, they thought no one lived


12   there because there was no major furniture or


13   anything.


14          She did almost immediately complain about


15   the smell and the odor, but that complaint, which


16   is the Complainant's Exhibit No. 5, said nothing


17   of asthma symptoms, trouble breathing or anything


18   like that.  It wasn't until later that she began


19   to complain about her asthma symptoms, at least


20   that's what we believe the record evidence shows.


21               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


22          I'll ask the question once more:  In


23   regards to objection no. 5, Commissioners have a


ACCURATE REPORTING OF INDIANA







Page 63


 1   motion in regards to objection no. 5?


 2               COMM. BLACKBURN:  No.


 3               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Hearing


 4   none, we'll move to objection no. 6.  Thank you.


 5               MR. BREMER:  This has to do with the


 6   prevailing party provision.  The


 7   Administrative -- the award of attorneys fees,


 8   possibly against the Director, that was implied


 9   in what the Judge put in the recommended order,


10   that that could be a possible outcome or a


11   possible -- possibility, that the Respondent


12   could seek and obtain the cost of their attorneys


13   fees from the Director as a consequence of them


14   winning this case.


15          We have submitted extensive material in


16   our brief on that, and we're recommending and


17   asking that the Commissioners find that that is


18   not going to be an avenue under the proper


19   interpretation of the -- of the law for the


20   Respondent to be able to recover attorneys fees


21   like that, and to let the Administrative Law


22   Judge know that that kind of thing should not be


23   entertained.
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 1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


 2          Commissioners, is there a motion or


 3   interest in objection no. 6?


 4                     (No response.)


 5               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Hearing none,


 6   we'll move to objection no. 7.


 7               MR. BREMER:  This is minor.  There --


 8   we objected on the basis of there being material


 9   quoted in a footnote in the order that the


10   Administrative Law Judge is asking you to adopt


11   as a final order, in which the footnote itself


12   explains that this material was not relied upon


13   and was not in the record.  So, we're asking that


14   the Administrative Law Judge's decision -- that


15   particular footnote be purged from the decision.


16               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Thank you.


17          Commissioners, is there a motion or


18   interest in objection no. 7?


19               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Would you repeat


20   it, please?


21               MR. BREMER:  Yes, I'd be happy to.


22   This was the objection, the seventh objection,


23   that had to do with the impropriety of the
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 1   Administrative Law Judge specifying evidence that


 2   was not proper to be relied upon, again, in the


 3   decision as a whole, in a footnote, and we were


 4   objecting to that information appearing -- that


 5   footnote actually being in there with that


 6   information, because if this goes up on further


 7   review, we do not want that in there.  It wasn't


 8   used anyway.


 9               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


10          With that clarity, Commissioners, is there


11   a motion or interest in objection no. 7?


12               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I would support its


13   being removed.


14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


15          Is there a second to that motion?


16                     (No response.)


17               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Hearing none,


18   thank you for the motion; however, we will move


19   on to motion [sic] no. 8.


20               MR. BREMER:  I've ran out of


21   objections.


22               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.


23               MR. BREMER:  There were seven.
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 1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.  I


 2   just wanted to make sure that if there was


 3   anything further, that we were in good shape


 4   here.  I appreciate that, and thank you for


 5   following that procedural exercise in this way,


 6   making sure that since we are virtual and we are


 7   not holding things in the same space, that we are


 8   all on the same page.


 9          Okay.  So, with that, we have had the oral


10   argument, we have had opportunity for both


11   parties to address one another -- one another's


12   objections and discussion.  We did not have any


13   adoption of any of the objections as submitted,


14   so at this time a motion is needed to affirm or


15   to dissolve the ALJ's orders.  Is there a motion?


16                     (No response.)


17               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  At this time, is


18   there a motion to affirm or dissolve the ALJ's


19   order from the Commissioners?


20               UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Mine's just a


21   case.  This isn't even a productive meeting.


22   It's a -- it's literally a -- like a trial.


23               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Slash, I believe
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 1   that was not a -- not one of the attorneys, and I


 2   went ahead and muted the individual.


 3               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you very


 4   much.


 5          Commissioners, at this time we do need a


 6   motion to affirm or dissolve the ALJ's order in


 7   regard to this case.


 8               COMM. RAMOS:  Madam Chair, I'm sorry;


 9   I was on mute.  So, I recommend that we affirm


10   the ALJ's decision.


11               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


12          Is there a second?


13               COMM. JACKSON:  Comm. Jackson,


14   second.


15               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


16          At this time, we shall call the roll.


17               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Blackburn?


18               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, aye.


19               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Harrington?


20               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.


21               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Jackson?


22               COMM. JACKSON:  Aye.


23               MR. SCHULTZ:  Vice-Chair Ramos?
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 1               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.


 2               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Tolliver?


 3               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Aye.


 4               MR. SCHULTZ:  Chair Slash?


 5               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.


 6               MR. SCHULTZ:  Motion passes, six,


 7   zero.


 8               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you very


 9   much.


10          That concludes today's oral argument.


11   Thank you both for being present with us and for


12   participating.


13               MR. BREMER:  Thank you.


14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  We still


15   have a little bit of our agenda remaining here


16   for the day.  The next case that we have in this


17   section of our agenda is ICRC/Rickard/Small


18   versus Varsity Properties Management Corporation,


19   Case No. HOfs20060223.  It was submitted to the


20   Commission of June 30th, 2021, and the ALJ


21   dismissed the Indiana Fair Housing Act claims


22   based on notice of election, and the ALJ


23   dismissed the Indiana Civil Rights Law claim as
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 1   nonjurisdictional, and the objection period has


 2   passed and this matter is closed.


 3          I do not believe we have a vote on this


 4   one, but I'm going to ask for clarity.


 5               MR. SCHULTZ:  This is -- a vote is


 6   required to affirm or deny or modify this one.


 7               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


 8          Commissioners, is there a motion to


 9   affirm, modify or dissolve; right?  That's the


10   three on this one, too?


11               MR. SCHULTZ:  Or vacate, yes.


12               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Move we --


13               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Or vacate.


14               COMM. BLACKBURN:  -- affirm.


15               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Is there a


16   motion?


17               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I move we affirm.


18               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.  That


19   was Comm. Blackburn.


20          Is there a second?


21               COMM. HARRINGTON:  This is


22   Comm. Harrington.  I second.


23               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
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 1          Shall we call roll?


 2               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Blackburn?


 3               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, aye.


 4               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Harrington?


 5               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.


 6               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Jackson?


 7               COMM. JACKSON:  Aye.


 8               MR. SCHULTZ:  Vice-Chair Ramos?


 9               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.


10               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Tolliver?


11               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Aye.


12               MR. SCHULTZ:  Chair Slash?


13               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.


14               MR. SCHULTZ:  Motion passes, six,


15   zero.


16               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


17          The next case is Johnson versus Brook


18   Knoll Village, Case No. EMra18040 --


19               MS. SHAFFER:  Hi.  Am I able to ask a


20   quick question?


21               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Sure.  Can you


22   state your name for the record, please?


23               MS. SHAFFER:  Yeah.  My name is Lisa.
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 1   I'm just a student paying attention to the


 2   Commission today.  What was the motion that was


 3   passed on that first case?


 4               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Are you speaking


 5   in regard to the oral argument that we just held?


 6   This is a great teaching moment, I suppose.


 7               MS. SHAFFER:  Yes, I am.


 8               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Yes.  So, we did


 9   the -- the call on that one was we had a motion


10   to affirm the ALJ's original finding in the ALJ's


11   order.


12               MS. SHAFFER:  Okay.  Perfect.  Thank


13   you.


14               THE REPORTER:  Chair Slash, could you


15   have her state her last name, please?


16               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Yes, please.


17          Can you please state your first and last


18   name?  And spelling is always helpful for the


19   court reporter.


20               MS. SHAFFER:  Yeah.  It's Lisa


21   Shaffer, L i s a, S h a f f e r.


22               THE REPORTER:  Thank you.


23               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thanks.
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 1          Okay.  And I'll return back to the


 2   agenda.  The next case that we have, this was one


 3   that I was beginning as a -- just a moment ago,


 4   Johnson versus Brock Knoll Village, Case


 5   No. EMra18040181, submitted to the Commission on


 6   July 14th, 2021.  The ALJ dismissed the matter on


 7   its merits by granting a motion for summary


 8   judgment filed by the Respondent.  The objection


 9   period in this matter has closed.


10          Is there a motion to affirm, modify or


11   vacate this?


12               COMM. RAMOS:  Ramos, motion to


13   affirm.


14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


15          Is there a second?


16               COMM. JACKSON:  Comm. Jackson,


17   second.


18               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


19          Shall I call the roll?


20               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Blackburn?


21               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, aye.


22               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Harrington?


23               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.
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 1               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Jackson?


 2               COMM. JACKSON:  Aye.


 3               MR. SCHULTZ:  Vice-Chair Ramos?


 4               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.


 5               MR. SCHULTZ:  Vice-Chair Ramos?


 6               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.


 7               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Tolliver?


 8               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Aye.


 9               MR. SCHULTZ:  Chair Slash?


10               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.


11               MR. SCHULTZ:  Motion passes, six,


12   zero.


13               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


14          The next case is Banks versus Taco Bell,


15   Bell American Group, LLC, Case No. PAra18050248,


16   submitted to the Commission on July 19th, 2021.


17   The ALJ dismissed the matter after the parties


18   reached a settlement.  The ALJ recommended that


19   the Commission accept the consent agreement filed


20   by the parties.  The objection period in this


21   matter has closed.


22          Is there a motion to affirm, modify or


23   vacate the ALJ's order?
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 1               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I move to affirm.


 2               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


 3   That's Comm. Blackburn.


 4          Is there a second?


 5               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Comm. Harrington,


 6   second.


 7               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


 8          Shall we call the roll?


 9               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Blackburn?


10               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, aye.


11               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Harrington?


12               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.


13               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Jackson?


14               COMM. JACKSON:  Aye.


15               MR. SCHULTZ:  Vice-Chair Ramos?


16               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.


17               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Tolliver?


18               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Aye.


19               MR. SCHULTZ:  Chair Slash?


20               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.


21               MR. SCHULTZ:  Motion passes, six,


22   zero.


23               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
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 1          The next section of our agenda, ALJ


 2   Decisions that are Automatically Confirmed.  At


 3   this time we do not have any, and we also would


 4   not need a vote at all, either, because they're


 5   automatically adopted and approval is not needed.


 6   So, thank you very much for that.


 7          We'll now move to meeting dates for the


 8   remainder of 2021.  I'm glad to have everybody


 9   here with us today.  We have made it through the


10   summer, which tends to be a little bit difficult


11   for scheduling and making sure that we are all


12   present.


13          For the time being, we look that we should


14   still be virtual, and hope that everyone remains


15   safe and healthy and well.  The coming date that


16   we have is September 17th.  Does any -- do any


17   members of the Commission have conflicts with


18   that date?


19               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I have a distinct


20   possibility that I won't be able to be in the


21   meeting.  It's the day after my birthday, and I


22   may not be around here, so I may have been


23   assigned a case.  If you need to reassign that --
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 1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Thank you.


 2               COMM. BLACKBURN:  -- you could.


 3               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Thank you.


 4               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Thank you.


 5               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  I will actually


 6   go ahead and do that.  I'll make an amendment to


 7   the further -- to the earlier record, if you


 8   don't mind me doing that here.  Slightly


 9   confusing moment, but I'll go ahead and do it,


10   because you do have a birthday the day before.


11   The Case EMha21030073 I will assign to myself,


12   Chair Slash, and remove from Comm. Blackburn.


13               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Thank you.


14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  You're welcome,


15   and Happy Early Birthday.


16          Do any other Commissioners have conflicts


17   with the September date?


18                     (No response.)


19               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  And then


20   looking ahead, does anyone have an issue with the


21   October date?


22                     (No response.)


23               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  I personally have
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 1   an issue with the October date, but I do not have


 2   to stop the show.  I just would like to get it on


 3   the record to date that I may not be available


 4   for the October date.


 5               COMM. TOLLIVER:  I will not be


 6   available for the October date.


 7               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  So, shall


 8   we do a little bit of an out-of-class activity


 9   via e-mail to make sure that we have the right


10   date for October, so that we have the right


11   amount of Commissioners present?


12               MR. SCHULTZ:  Yeah, we'll -- the ICRC


13   staff will work with the Commissioners to


14   identify an alternative date.


15               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.  And


16   we can look at November and December at a further


17   time.  I do like to get us just a couple of


18   months in advance, if that's okay with the other


19   Commissioners.


20          Okay.  So, at this time, we do not have


21   any Election, Training or Other.  Thanks to the


22   Commissioners that were able to participate in


23   our earlier training.
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 1          Are there any Announcements?


 2               MR. SCHULTZ:  Just -- if I may, Chair


 3   Slash.  It's Tim Schultz.  Just a reminder that


 4   our ability to conduct these meetings 100 percent


 5   virtually is contingent on the emergency health


 6   order from the Governor that is currently in


 7   effect to the end of this month, but there's no


 8   way of knowing if that will be extended beyond


 9   August.


10          So, just be mindful that if it's not


11   extended, we have to go back to the regular


12   open-door requirements, which would require three


13   members to physically be present in order for


14   the -- in order to conduct the meeting.


15               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


16          Any Commissioners have any -- any


17   questions or concerns in regarding to that?


18               COMM. RAMOS:  No.


19               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.


20          Are there any Announcements?


21                     (No response.)


22               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Is there


23   anyone here for Public Comment today?
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 1                     (No response.)
 2               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  I didn't
 3   recall hearing anyone at the beginning, but I
 4   wanted to make sure, just in case.
 5          With that being said, we've used almost
 6   every minute of our time today, and we have
 7   arrived at 2:56, and I will go ahead and -- we'll
 8   go ahead and dismiss today's meeting.
 9               COMM. RAMOS:  Thank you.
10               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Bye, everybody.
11               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Thank you.
12               MR. SCHULTZ:  Bye.
13               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Bye.
14                        -  -  -
               Thereupon, the proceedings of
15             August 20, 2021 were concluded
                    at 2:57 o'clock p.m.
16                        -  -  -
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
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 1                      CERTIFICATE


 2          I, Lindy L. Meyer, Jr., the undersigned


 3   Court Reporter and Notary Public residing in the


 4   City of Shelbyville, Shelby County, Indiana, do


 5   hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and


 6   correct transcript of the proceedings taken by me


 7   on Friday, August 20, 2021 in this matter and


 8   transcribed by me.


 9


10                        _________________________


11                         Lindy L. Meyer, Jr.,


12                         Notary Public in and


13                         for the State of Indiana.


14


15   My Commission expires August 26, 2024.


16   Commission No. NP0690003
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 1                                  1:33 o'clock p.m.
                                    August 20, 2021
 2                       -  -  -
 3              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.  We can go
 4  ahead and get started.
 5              MR. SCHULTZ: Okay.  Well, in that
 6  case, before we officially begin and take roll
 7  call, I'd ask all non-Commission members to
 8  identify themselves at this time, please.
 9              MR. BREMER: Frederick S. Bremer.
10  I'm a Commission staff attorney.
11              MR. BRADLEY: This is Jacob Bradley.
12  I am counsel for the Respondent in the matter
13  that's going to be heard today.
14              MS. ALLEN: Michelle Allen.  I'm the
15  Director of the Office of Administrative Law
16  Proceedings.
17              MR. RIPPERGER: Brady Ripperger, with
18  the Fair Housing Center of Central Indiana.
19              REV. MYERS: Rev. Daisy Myers, from
20  San Diego, California.
21              MR. SCHULTZ: Any other individuals
22  joining us today who are non-Commission members?
23              MS. SLONE: Stephanie Slone, with the
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 1  Indiana Civil Rights Commission.
 2              MS. OJO: Christiana Ojo, from the
 3  Indiana Civil Rights Commission.
 4              MR. SCHULTZ: And I'm Tim Schultz,
 5  with the Indiana Civil Rights Commission, and I
 6  am currently admitting one more person.  The
 7  individual who just joined the meeting, can you
 8  identify yourself, please?
 9              COMM. BLACKBURN: Comm. Blackburn.
10              MR. SCHULTZ: Okay.
11         All right.  Chair Slash, I believe all
12  participants have identified themselves.  Would
13  you like me to conduct the roll call for the
14  Commission members at this time?
15              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Yes, please.
16              MR. SCHULTZ: Okay.
17         Comm. Blackburn, are you present?
18              COMM. BLACKBURN: Blackburn, here.
19              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Harrington?
20              COMM. HARRINGTON: I'm here.
21              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Jackson?
22              COMM. JACKSON: Present.
23              MR. SCHULTZ: Vice-Chair Ramos?
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 1              COMM. RAMOS: Here.
 2              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Tolliver?
 3              COMM. TOLLIVER: Here.
 4              MR. SCHULTZ: And Chair Slash?
 5              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Present.  Thank
 6  you.
 7              MR. SCHULTZ: All right.  We have six
 8  Commission members present.
 9              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
10         Okay.  And at this time, we'll go ahead
11  and call our meeting to order at 1:34 p.m., the
12  Indiana Civil Rights Commission's August 2020
13  meeting [sic].  Thank you.
14         Shall we announce the agenda?  We have
15  quite a few people who are over the phone and
16  likely not in front of a screen today.
17              MR. SCHULTZ: Yes.  So, today we
18  have, under Old Business, three appeals that were
19  previously assigned to Commissioners for final
20  decision.  Under New Business, we are appointing
21  Commissioners to consider a total of seven new
22  appeals.  And then under the Review of ALJ
23  Decisions and Orders, we have a total of four
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 1  decisions being considered -- or preliminary
 2  decisions being considered by the Commission
 3  members for deliberation and vote.  And I think
 4  that's -- that's it, aside from confirming the
 5  future Commission dates.
 6              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you very
 7  much.
 8         At this time, I'd like to hear a motion to
 9  approve the previous meeting minutes.  Is there
10  one?
11              COMM. RAMOS: So moved --
12              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
13              COMM. RAMOS: -- Comm. Ramos.
14              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Is there a
15  second?
16              COMM. BLACKBURN: Second, Blackburn.
17              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
18         Being moved and seconded, shall we call
19  the roll?
20              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Blackburn?
21              COMM. BLACKBURN: Blackburn, here.
22              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Harrington?
23              COMM. HARRINGTON: Aye.
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 1              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Jackson?
 2              COMM. JACKSON: Aye.
 3              MR. SCHULTZ: Vice-Chair Ramos?
 4              COMM. RAMOS: Aye.
 5              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Tolliver?
 6              COMM. TOLLIVER: Aye.
 7              MR. SCHULTZ: And Chair Slash?
 8              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Aye.
 9              MR. SCHULTZ: Motion passes, six,
10  zero.
11              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
12         Okay.  At this time, we'll have the ICRC's
13  Director's Report.
14              MR. SCHULTZ: Yeah.  And I don't --
15  unless he didn't speak up, I don't believe
16  Executive Director Greg Wilson is on -- is in the
17  meeting today, so I guess that leaves it to me.
18         As you know, we didn't meet in July.  It's
19  been, you know, fairly busy.  We've had a number
20  of events that we've attended or presented at.
21  For example, we -- the Commission did have the
22  opportunity to present at the Black Expo
23  Education Conference about a month ago, I guess.
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 1         And that was a great opportunity, as
 2  always.  You know, we're always honored to be a
 3  part of that.  I believe that the audience was --
 4  it was virtual, of course, and the audience was
 5  somewhere around the number of 5,000, according
 6  to the Expo representatives, so that was -- of
 7  course, you know, very happy to do so.
 8         And I believe that the Executive Director
 9  Wilson is trying to enter the meeting now, so
10  I'll invite him to join.
11         Greg, did you just sign in?
12              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: His audio may not
13  be connected yet.
14              MR. SCHULTZ: Director Wilson, did
15  you just join us?
16                    (No response.)
17              MR. SCHULTZ: Well, maybe he's having
18  a tech issue, but just for the court
19  reporter's -- for the record, Greg Wilson did
20  just join the meeting.
21         We -- the agency also had the opportunity
22  earlier this month to have a booth at the Asian
23  Fest on the north side of the city.  That was
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 1  another wonderful event where we got to, you
 2  know, pass out literature and talk to individuals
 3  about our mission.
 4         The Governor presented at the event, as
 5  did the Mayor, and very successful.  I know I
 6  personally was there for a while, and a lot of
 7  people were very interested in asking questions
 8  about what we were doing -- or what we do.
 9         In addition to that -- I know I always
10  plug this, because I'm always very excited about
11  it -- our testing program has continued for Fair
12  Housing.  We have a number of those completed
13  tests subject to active investigations now, and
14  the testing is continuing.
15         We are looking to maybe modify that
16  program a little bit, instead of just doing kind
17  of, you know, tests that -- I don't want to say
18  at random, but without -- you know, that there's
19  no basis to begin a test, we're just collecting
20  housing projects for providers.
21         What we are now doing is we are working
22  with a vendor, maybe test housing providers that
23  have an active complaint, and that way it's
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 1  something that other organizations such as ICRC
 2  do to help build an investigation file.  And so,
 3  we're always looking to continuously improve that
 4  program and make it more useful, and I think it's
 5  just a great example of something new that we're
 6  doing that is very beneficial.
 7         And I think that's -- that's really the
 8  highlights that I wanted to touch on, but again,
 9  I'll ask if Director Wilson was able to join
10  us -- or if he's able to talk to us at the
11  moment.
12                    (No response.)
13              MR. SCHULTZ: I don't think so, so
14  that's the Director's Report, Chair Slash.
15              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you very
16  much.
17         Does anyone have any questions regarding
18  the Director's Report, any of our Commissioners?
19              COMM. RAMOS: Madam Chair, a couple
20  of comments.  Number one, I wanted to extend my
21  appreciation for the inclusion of the Cultural
22  Commissions Reports that you've had over the last
23  several months.  It really is very, very
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 1  valuable.  I find it fascinating, and that's good
 2  work.  So, I wanted to commend the Commission for
 3  that.  It's a great piece of work.
 4         And number two, looking at the reports, I
 5  also notice that in the month of June, you had
 6  440,000 hits, which normally it was like 10,000,
 7  and then it just spiked tremendously, and I was
 8  just curious what the phenomenon was that would
 9  cause that much of a spike.
10              MR. SCHULTZ: I do not know.  I would
11  probably -- I'll have to check with our Internal
12  Affairs team to see if they can identify the
13  cause.  You know, the fact that we had some
14  presentations at some fairly large events might
15  be part of that.
16         And I can see Greg now, so I don't know,
17  Greg, if you are able to --
18              MR. WILSON: Yeah.
19         So, good afternoon, everyone.  So, I had
20  some issues.  I'm sure we all have had those.  It
21  could be human error, but I think it was system
22  error.
23         So, anyway, a couple of things.  Tim's
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 1  correct -- and thank you, Comm. Ramos, for those
 2  comments.  We did a lot -- we're doing a lot of
 3  marketing, a lot of radio, talking about a lot of
 4  issues that were important to people, everything
 5  from, you know, the moratorium and where
 6  resources that were available if you needed help.
 7  That's between our partnership that we have with
 8  IACDA.
 9         Again, then we did some radio interviews,
10  where we talked about, you know, our mediation
11  program and talked about Civil Rights and how
12  that if you feel like you've been discriminated
13  against, you could go to our Web site and get
14  more information.
15         And so, we've done a lot of little things,
16  and I think the fact that people have a lot more
17  time to use technology since they've been doing
18  it all through COVID, I think that's helped our
19  engagement a lot.  So, it's just been a lot of
20  things we've been doing.  We have a great
21  External Affairs team that have been working
22  extremely hard.
23         And I don't know where we are on the
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 1  report.  It was a struggle in getting in here,
 2  but I wanted to add, too, is that if Tim hasn't
 3  said so yet, now we're working on filling a lot
 4  of our positions, especially in the Internal
 5  Affairs area, where we now actually hired a
 6  really strong education and outreach person,
 7  somebody who can actually do more of our actual
 8  training and education in the community.  We
 9  didn't have that component before, and Virgil
10  just hired a very talented person, and I think
11  everybody will appreciate when they see some of
12  the work that she'll be doing out there.
13         And then also, McKenzie has really been
14  doing a lot with our Web site, and you'll see --
15  you're going to see a great update.  We're moving
16  some of the things that are not relevant and some
17  of the things that we know need to go away or
18  disappear.  It's been a long process, and Chair
19  Ram -- I mean Comm. Ramos and Slash, Chair Slash
20  and others, you know that we had so many
21  different things we had to fix or improve
22  throughout the last couple of years.
23         And finally, I think we're at a point
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 1  where we can make social media more valuable to
 2  us, as well as our Web site, because we find more
 3  people want to know more information about what
 4  we're doing, how can we help them, and what
 5  services that we provide, because we have been
 6  doing those partnerships, like I said, with
 7  IACDA, which is not what we've done in the past,
 8  which talks about the support and the financial
 9  resources for those who are renters or those who
10  just need help with the mortgage payments.  So, I
11  think that's -- that's made a lot of opportunity
12  for engagement.
13         But we have a lot of new people coming on,
14  I think, in the Intake area, and I don't know if,
15  Tim, you covered this or not, but stop me if you
16  have so I don't bore them with it, but in Intake,
17  especially since we have Christiana, she's been
18  doing some great things with improving those
19  processes, making them more customer-service
20  friendly, as well as now we've given her more
21  tools and resources to process the inquiries a
22  lot faster than what we were able to do it in the
23  past.
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 1         So, you're going to see the numbers go up
 2  tremendously, I believe, with the way she has now
 3  changed how we do business in the Intake area.
 4  So, I'm very excited for her as well as some of
 5  the other new components that we have.
 6         I think everybody knows Adoley has went on
 7  to -- that's one thing.  People come, and I
 8  always say, "Just give me a year, give me what
 9  you've got."  I know we have a lot of talent they
10  bring, but it's just been fantastic that we've
11  gotten this talent, which has helped us improve
12  processes that I think has made us more
13  effective.
14              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.  Thank
15  you for your additions.  We had -- we were just
16  getting to the end of the Director's Report, so
17  it was perfect timing, so thank you.
18              MR. WILSON: Yeah.  I'm sorry if I
19  took more time out.
20              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: No, no, it was
21  perfect.  Thank you.
22         Are there any questions for Director
23  Wilson?
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 1                    (No response.)
 2              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.  Thank you
 3  so much.  And I do echo Vice-Chair Ramos.  The
 4  updates have been really great to really
 5  understand how the Cultural Commissions are
 6  working, but also I just applaud the Commission's
 7  presence at larger events and taking advantage of
 8  all of the virtual opportunities to reach larger
 9  audiences.
10              MR. WILSON: Thank you.
11              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Hearing that,
12  we'll move on to Old Business, and we will start
13  with the case Mayers versus Marion Superior
14  Court, Case No. EMra19120129.
15         Vice-Chair Ramos, do you have a
16  recommendation?
17              COMM. RAMOS: Yes.  And the
18  recommendation in the Mayers versus Marion
19  Superior Court, I recommend that we uphold the
20  Director's finding of no probable cause.
21              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
22         Is there a motion?
23              COMM. BLACKBURN: I move we accept
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 1  that recommendation.
 2              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
 3         Is there a second?
 4              COMM. JACKSON: Second, Comm. Jack --
 5              COMM. HARRINGTON: Comm. Harrington,
 6  second.
 7              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: That was
 8  Comm. Blackburn with the motion, Comm. Harrington
 9  with the second.
10         Shall we call the roll?
11                    (No response.)
12              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: I can do it if
13  you want me to.
14              MS. OJO: Comm. Blackburn?
15              COMM. BLACKBURN: Blackburn, aye.
16              MS. OJO: Vice-Chair Ramos?
17              COMM. RAMOS: Aye.
18              MS. OJO: Comm. Harrington?
19              COMM. HARRINGTON: Aye.
20              MS. OJO: Comm. Tolliver?
21              COMM. TOLLIVER: Aye.
22              MS. OJO: Comm. Jackson?
23              COMM. JACKSON: Aye.
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 1              MS. OJO: Chair Ramos -- I'm sorry.
 2  Chair Slash?
 3              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Aye.
 4              MS. OJO: Vice-Chair Ramos?
 5              COMM. RAMOS: Aye.
 6              MS. OJO: Motion passes, six.
 7              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
 8              MR. SCHULTZ: My apologies on that.
 9  I didn't realize I was muted, which, of course,
10  you would think by now I would catch that kind of
11  thing.
12              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: It's okay.  Just
13  remember when we said we were going to extend
14  some grace today?  Lots of grace today, because
15  technology is being, you know, a little special.
16              MR. SCHULTZ: Yeah.
17              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Last week was
18  Friday the 13th, but today we're just extending
19  grace.
20         Okay.  In the second case, Castillo versus
21  MV Lofts at Roberts LLC.  That's Case
22  No. HOha20060206.
23         Comm. Jackson, do you have a
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 1  recommendation?
 2              COMM. JACKSON: I recommend to uphold
 3  the Director's finding, no probable cause.
 4              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
 5         Is there a motion?
 6              COMM. RAMOS: So moved, Ramos.
 7              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
 8         Is there a second?
 9              COMM. HARRINGTON: Second,
10  Comm. Harrington.
11              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Shall we call the
12  roll?
13              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Blackburn?
14              COMM. BLACKBURN: Blackburn, yes.
15              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Harrington?
16              COMM. HARRINGTON: Aye.
17              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Jackson?
18              COMM. JACKSON: Aye.
19              MR. SCHULTZ: Vice-Chair Ramos?
20              COMM. RAMOS: Aye.
21              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Tolliver?
22              COMM. TOLLIVER: Aye.
23              MR. SCHULTZ: Chair Slash?
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 1              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Aye.
 2              MR. SCHULTZ: Motion passes, six,
 3  zero.
 4              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
 5         The next case -- and I apologize for
 6  messing this name up -- Capodagil -- Capodagli
 7  versus Chris Allan Tompkins.  That's
 8  Case HOse21020055.
 9         Comm. Tolliver, do you have a
10  recommendation?
11              COMM. TOLLIVER: I'd recommend that
12  we uphold the Commission's administrative
13  dismissal due to lack of jurisdiction.
14              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
15         Is there a motion?
16              COMM. BLACKBURN: I move we accept.
17              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
18         Is there a -- and that's Comm. Blackburn?
19              COMM. BLACKBURN: Yes.
20              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
21         Is there a second?
22              COMM. RAMOS: Ramos, aye -- or
23  second.
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 1              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
 2         Shall I call the roll?
 3              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Blackburn?
 4              COMM. BLACKBURN: Blackburn, aye.
 5              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Harrington?
 6              COMM. HARRINGTON: Aye.
 7              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Jackson?
 8              COMM. JACKSON: Aye.
 9              MR. SCHULTZ: Vice-Chair Ramos?
10              COMM. RAMOS: Aye.
11              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Tolliver?
12              COMM. TOLLIVER: Aye.
13              MR. SCHULTZ: And Chair Slash?
14              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Aye.
15              MR. SCHULTZ: Motion passes, six,
16  zero.
17              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
18         Okay.  Moving to New Business, we have
19  quite a few cases to assign today, and I'll try
20  my best to call them off and read them off.
21  However, we'll just ask that they be sent
22  directly to the Commissioners as well.
23         In the first case -- I do not want to mess
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 1  this last name up.  Can I just call the case
 2  number?  Is that possible?  Okay.
 3              MR. SCHULTZ: Sure.
 4              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: In the first
 5  case, EMha21030073, I will assign that one to
 6  Comm. Blackburn; in the next one, EMha20120853,
 7  Comm. Harrington; Case PAra21050133,
 8  Comm. Jackson; Case EMra20110814, Comm. Ramos;
 9  Case EDra19090496, Comm. Tolliver;
10  Case EMno20120052, Chair Slash; and the final
11  one, Case 24D-2020-00267, Comm. Harrington.
12         Okay.  That might have been a pretty
13  efficient way to do that.  And for clarity,
14  Commissioners, they'll be sent to you for more
15  clarity, just to make sure that we have the
16  proper assignments.
17         Okay.  At this time, we do not have any
18  motions or other filings in New Business, and so
19  we will move to reviewing ALJ Decisions and
20  Orders, and our first case is the case that we
21  have parties present for oral arguments.
22         And so, I'll just kind of give us a brief
23  intro, ICRC -- Case of ICRC versus Varin/River
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 1  Pointe, LLC, Case HOha151001734.  The case was
 2  submitted to the Commission on April 15th, 2021.
 3  The ALJ conducted a hearing on the merits and
 4  dismissed the matter.
 5         Subsequently an objection was submitted
 6  for consideration by the Commission.  The
 7  Commission set a briefing for June 21st and an
 8  oral argument for August 2021.  The parties have
 9  submitted their briefing materials concerning the
10  Complainant's objection to the ALJ's initial
11  decision.
12         At this time, I'll ask that party
13  representatives introduce themselves, beginning
14  with the representative for the Respondent.
15              MR. BRADLEY: Good afternoon, Chair
16  Slash.  My name is Jake Bradley.  I am the
17  attorney for the Respondent.
18              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
19         And on the Complainant's side?
20              MR. BREMER: Yes.  My name is Fred
21  Bremer.  I'm a staff attorney at the Indiana
22  Civil Rights Commission, here for the
23  Complainant, the Director.
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 1              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
 2         At this time, we'll begin the oral
 3  argument.  As staff counsel for the agency filed
 4  objections to the ALJ decision, that party will
 5  have the first opportunity to present to
 6  Commission members.  Presentations will be
 7  limited to 15 minutes, and each party will have
 8  four minutes to respond after the initial
 9  presentations are complete.  Commission members,
10  if you have questions, you may ask them at any
11  time.
12         Do we have a timekeeper, and is there
13  going to be a show of time on screen?  This is an
14  administrative question that I think we should
15  have asked slightly earlier.  If not, I can --
16              MR. SCHULTZ: I --
17              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: -- set my own
18  timer.
19              MR. SCHULTZ: This is Tim Schultz.  I
20  will keep time and provide --
21              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.
22              MR. SCHULTZ: -- a five-minute and
23  three-minute and one-minute warning.
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 1              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.  Thank you.
 2         Mr. Bremer?
 3              MR. BREMER: Thank you.
 4         We're here today to present on behalf of
 5  the objections filed by Commission -- Director
 6  Wilson in the case of Wilson versus River Pointe
 7  Apartments.  I'm not going to get into the
 8  factual background right now.  We have seven
 9  objections.  I'm not going to treat those in the
10  same order in which they were treated in brief
11  and in the objections filing.
12         So, I'll start out with -- the first one
13  has to do with the basic decision of the
14  Administrative Law Judge, recommending that you
15  find that the aggrieved person, Carrie Shroff,
16  did not qualify for protected status as a
17  disabled person.  And our objection to that is
18  that she does qualify under applicable federal
19  law.
20         She had enough of a recitation of how her
21  asthma affected her life.  It wasn't just
22  general, it was a lot of detail.  She had to
23  use -- take an inhaler with her at all times.
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 1  She had to use it two times a week.  She had
 2  episodes in her past when she encountered
 3  environmental factors such as smoke, the smell of
 4  urine and other noxious odors, where this would
 5  cause her to become unable to breathe and would
 6  have to use that device, and in some cases would
 7  have to also use a nebulizer, which provided some
 8  medication that caused the airways to be
 9  constricted.  And she also had situations where
10  she couldn't breathe and it was very frightening,
11  she had panic attacks, and so there was a lot of
12  detail about that.
13         The Administrative Law Judge was saying
14  that there wasn't, but the case that should be
15  applied and we cited in the brief is the AutoZone
16  case, where it does set the standard, and it
17  lines up with what Mrs. Shroff testified about.
18  What we're saying is that Ms. Shroff, on that
19  issue, should have prevailed.  Now, there was no
20  analysis otherwise, because the Judge cut this
21  off at the kneecaps by saying that she was not --
22  she didn't qualify as a protected person.
23         Now, going on to the -- another objection,
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 1  this was one that the Administrative Law Judge
 2  came up with gratuitously, saying that even if --
 3  even if Ms. Shroff was a person that qualified
 4  for protection under the Indiana Fair Housing
 5  Act, there was -- the case should still fail
 6  because there was not a nexus between her
 7  disability and what she was asking to do, which
 8  what was happening here -- and I'm going to get a
 9  little bit into the facts -- when she encountered
10  this apartment, she had leased it and walked into
11  it the first time after she had leased it, and
12  encountered a lot of environmental factors,
13  smells and so forth, that was causing her to
14  begin to have the signs of an asthmatic episode.
15         And so, eventually -- many things
16  happened, but eventually she did demand her money
17  back -- she had paid a deposit and the first
18  month's rent and other things -- and to be let
19  out of the lease, and the Respondent did refuse
20  that.  So, the Administrative Law Judge is
21  speaking of that in terms of asking for an
22  accommodation.
23         There is also a straight-out
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 1  discrimination issue in the case, but there was a
 2  nexus between the disability that she has, the
 3  asthmatic condition, and what she asked to do.  I
 4  mean she -- her particular disability is related
 5  to environments, and what we're talking about
 6  here is an environment that would last for months
 7  under a lease.
 8         She would have to live in this place.  She
 9  wouldn't be let out of the lease.  She'd be in
10  all kinds of trouble if she just left, because
11  that would be on her record, she couldn't rent
12  someplace else.  So, there is a tremendous nexus
13  between the two.
14         Go on to the third objection that I'm
15  going to speak about, and this is a very
16  important one, and a very plainly evident
17  erroneous decision by the Administrative Law
18  Judge not to treat this case using the -- or
19  utilizing the issue of whether or not the
20  Respondent engaged in activities that would be in
21  violation of the Indiana Civil Rights Law.
22         In fact, there's a step back from that,
23  because the issue is whether that should even be
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 1  an issue in the case at all.  What the
 2  Administrative Law Judge came up with was that
 3  the only issue was whether there was a violation
 4  of the Indiana Fair Housing Act.  The Director
 5  found that there wasn't any issue.
 6         Now, that was despite the fact that
 7  Mr. Bradley and I had submitted a joint
 8  prehearing statement specifying that that was one
 9  of the issues in the case.  So, Ms. Shroff, way
10  back to the beginning of the thing, when she
11  filed her claim of housing discrimination, that
12  recited that she was requesting relief under both
13  the Indiana Fair Housing Act and the Indiana
14  Civil Rights Law.
15         Plus, we have a regulation of the
16  Commission that is very specifically, as I've
17  cited it in the brief and quoted it, that it is
18  possible for the parties to agree to issues -- to
19  litigate issues that were not issue -- were not
20  issues going into the case; in other words, in
21  the course of the hearing, and even after there's
22  a final order.
23         This whole thing is very possible.  The
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 1  Administrative Law Judge would decline to do
 2  that, and there's going to be a big difference in
 3  how this case might be determined, because the
 4  standards for who is disabled under the Indiana
 5  Civil Rights Law appear to be relaxed and less
 6  detailed than what it takes to get protection as
 7  a protected person under the Indiana Fair Housing
 8  Act.  I'm frankly surprised that we are not here
 9  today with the Indiana Civil Rights Law liability
10  not being something we're talking about.
11         The next issue is the whole thing about
12  the Administrative Law Judge not having authority
13  to enter a -- an order granting the Respondent's
14  motion for summary judgment -- not for summary
15  judgment, for judgment on the evidence.  This is
16  what happened:  At the two-day hearing, I was
17  presenting on behalf of the Director, his case,
18  and then that went over into the second day, and
19  then the Director rested his case, and it was
20  time for Mr. Bradley to present on behalf of the
21  Respondent.
22         At that point, Mr. Bradley submitted a
23  written motion for judgment on the evidence; in
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 1  other words, asking that the Judge rule on the
 2  evidence that was -- I presented on behalf of the
 3  Director up to that point, and up to when I
 4  rested.
 5         And the ulti -- ultimately there was
 6  briefing and so forth, the Judge did not rule
 7  that day, but we went ahead and agreed that
 8  Mr. Bradley should go ahead and put on the
 9  evidence that the Respondent was prepared to
10  offer provisionally and pending briefing and
11  argument, which we had on the motion, and whether
12  that motion, there was even any authority for the
13  Administrative Law Judge, on behalf of the
14  Commission, to grant such a motion.
15         Now, the Commission does not have the
16  authority to grant such a motion.  If you were --
17  had -- way back in December for this hearing, had
18  tried this case, which you have every right to do
19  as a group en banc, as referred to in legal
20  terminology, you could not have entertained such
21  a motion.  You would have had to have listened to
22  the entire thing.
23              MR. SCHULTZ: Five minutes remaining.
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 1              MR. BREMER: And I got that from the
 2  law, the powers of the Commission.  It says that
 3  you may enter findings of fact and conclusions of
 4  law after a hearing, not in the middle of the
 5  hearing, not before it's over with, but after a
 6  hearing.
 7         The same thing should apply here.  You
 8  have no regulations which permit you to get into
 9  the trial rules except for a summary judgment
10  motion and for purposes of discovery.  This whole
11  thing of granting a motion like was granted here
12  is not a topic that was available at the time
13  this hearing took place.
14         And then the next objection has to do with
15  what the Administrative Law Judge -- the standard
16  of evidence that the Administrative Law Judge
17  used to determine whether the motion should be
18  granted.  We have submitted material in our -- in
19  our brief that the standard should have been
20  whether there was a rebuttable inference, whether
21  there was an inference.
22         But what the Administrative Law Judge was
23  holding us to was whether there had to be
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 1  substantial and reliable evidence, so a more
 2  rigorous standard was imposed.  This -- this case
 3  should be sent back for various reasons, and we
 4  have specific suggestions.  We may not have time
 5  within the time that's left, but I'm going to
 6  start through them, and tell you what the
 7  Complainant wants to happen.
 8         The Complainant, on that first issue --
 9              MR. SCHULTZ: Three minutes
10  remaining.
11              MR. BREMER: -- the Complainant asks
12  that the Commission reject the recommendation and
13  find that Ms. Shroff was qualified for protection
14  as a disabled person, and to make other
15  findings -- direct her to make other findings
16  that would be consistent with that and issue --
17  and address the other issues in the case.
18         We also ask that the Commissioners find --
19  remand and have the Direct -- the Administrative
20  Law Judge, in her decision, find that a nexus did
21  exist between what Ms. Shroff's disability was
22  and what she was asking for as a reasonable
23  accommodation.
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 1         We also ask that the Commission remand
 2  with instructions that the Indiana Civil Rights
 3  Law should be considered by the Administrative
 4  Law Judge in -- as an issue to rule on in this
 5  case.
 6         We also ask that the matter be remanded,
 7  that -- with instructions that the Administrative
 8  Law Judge is to rule on the full record of the
 9  hearing and not just on the Complainant's case.
10         And we also ask that the Commission
11  instruct the Administrative Law Judge to use the
12  correct standard, the rebuttable inference
13  standard, instead of substantial and reliable
14  standard.
15         Thank you.
16              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
17         At this time, we'll hear the Com -- we'll
18  here from the Respondent.  You have 15 minutes.
19              MR. BRADLEY: Thank you, Chair Slash.
20         This Commission should affirm the ALJ's
21  ruling for four reasons.  First, Indiana law
22  explicitly provides that the ALJ may grant
23  motions presented to her.  There's authority from
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 1  the Indiana Court of Appeals that explains the
 2  standards that apply to such rulings.  The
 3  Complainant's argument today fails to acknowledge
 4  this controlling precedent disposing of that
 5  issue.
 6         Second, the ALJ properly applied Indiana
 7  precedent that prohibits parties from consenting
 8  to jurisdiction.  Because the parties cannot
 9  consent to jurisdiction over the ICRL claims, the
10  ALJ and the Commission lack authority to rule on
11  it, because there was never a probable cause
12  finding, which is required by the law.
13         Third, asthma is not a disability, and
14  even if it was, Ms. Shroff failed to present any
15  evidence that the cause is substantial limitation
16  of a major life activity.  And even if her asthma
17  could be a disability, she did not present any
18  evidence linking her normal use of the apartment
19  to that disability.
20         Fourth, if we have time to get to it, the
21  Indiana statutes do permit River Pointe to
22  recover its attorneys fees and costs.  The
23  Complainant's briefing improperly asks this
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 1  Commission to ignore that controlling precedent.
 2         I'm going to point out just a couple of
 3  key pieces of evidence that are material here.
 4  As Mr. Bremer has discussed, the aggrieved
 5  person's asserted disability is asthma.
 6  Ms. London, who is Ms. Shroff's daughter, did not
 7  present any evidence that she experienced any
 8  asthma symptoms or concerns.  Her claim should
 9  just outright be dismissed.
10         As for Ms. Shroff, the Director's
11  recitation of her medical history is not relevant
12  here, because the evidence establishes she did
13  not experience any asthma symptoms during her
14  normal use of the apartment.  Her September 3rd,
15  2015 letter to River Pointe didn't mention any
16  asthma concerns or symptoms.  That's Exhibit 19
17  in the record.
18         Instead, the evidence establishes she only
19  experienced asthma symptoms after she violently
20  and destructively ripped up the carpets in the
21  apartment.  She did not present any expert
22  medical testimony or evidence regarding these
23  life symptoms, and her symptoms were so minor


Min-U-Script® ACCURATE REPORTING OF INDIANA (9) Pages 33 - 36







INDIANA CIVIL RIGHTS COMMISSION 
August 20, 2021


Page 37


 1  that either she did not need her rescue inhaler,
 2  she did not need a nebulizer, or, if needed, her
 3  rescue inhaler immediately resolved her symptoms.
 4         But again, she -- the record shows she
 5  only had symptoms after she tore out the carpets
 6  and padding.  It's also important to note she
 7  never went to a doctor or hospital due to these
 8  alleged symptoms, and she continued to return to
 9  the apartment after experiencing what she claimed
10  were breathing problems.
11         It's also important to point out that
12  Ms. Shroff did not have any specialized training
13  in identification of pet urine or mold, nor did
14  she present any third-party evidence or testimony
15  that the carpets were contaminated.
16         To the contrary, there were four different
17  nonparties who presented uncontroverted evidence
18  that establishes that the carpets were not
19  contaminated:  A man named Ed Frutig of Chem-Dry,
20  who Ms. Shroff selected as a carpet cleaning
21  company; Aladdin's, a carpet installation
22  company; Enviro-Decon, a company who conducted
23  mold testing and found no issues; and the
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 1  Mishawaka Department of Code Enforcement, who
 2  inspected the entire apartment.
 3         Mr. Bremer's recitation of what attorneys
 4  call the procedural history, just how we got
 5  here, is largely correct.  There was a hearing, a
 6  final hearing, on December 3rd and 4th.  The
 7  Complainant presented its case-in-chief -- well,
 8  I guess in this case the Director presented his
 9  case-in-chief -- that included testimony,
10  cross-examination, and a number of exhibits that
11  were admitted.
12         Neither party ever presented rebuttal
13  evidence, and that's important, because once the
14  Director rested, the Complainant had put forth --
15  or the Director had put forth all of his evidence
16  in support of his allegations.  All of that
17  evidence is at issue in the motion today.
18         And as Mr. Bremer pointed out, once the
19  Com -- once the Director rested, River Pointe
20  made an oral and written motion for involuntary
21  dismissal, which the ALJ ultimately granted, and
22  that's why we are here.
23         So, River Pointe's motion for involuntary
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 1  dismissal is limited to the evidence presented
 2  during the Director's case-in-chief, but as a
 3  practical matter, if this Commission reverses
 4  that ruling and returns the case to the ALJ, the
 5  ALJ will have the full panoply of evidence
 6  available to her to review the case.
 7         That will include River Pointe's evidence,
 8  and although it's not at issue, I will submit to
 9  you, Commissioners, that nothing in River
10  Pointe's compels a different result other than
11  judgment for River Pointe.  So, a reversal here
12  is most likely going to result in the same
13  substantive outcome.  River Pointe will succeed.
14  But there's no need to reverse, because there's
15  no evidence to support the Claimant's -- or the
16  Director's claims, and the ALJ properly granted
17  involuntary dismissal here.
18         Let's first address the authority issue
19  that Mr. Bremer raised.  The Administrative Law
20  Judge has authority to adjudicate the motion at
21  issue.  Both of the parties agreed that the Civil
22  Rights Commission, like all state administrative
23  agencies, enjoy those powers that are conferred
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 1  on it by the General Assembly.
 2         The parties also agree to the Commission's
 3  expressive statutory authority as found in
 4  Indiana Fair Housing Act, in Indiana Civil Rights
 5  Law, and the Administrative Orders and Procedure
 6  Act.  Each of these statutory schemes authorize
 7  an ALJ to rule on motions.  The Indiana Civil
 8  Rights Law says an Administrative Law Judge
 9  appointed under this subsection has the same
10  powers and duties as a Commissioner sitting as an
11  ALJ.  I'm going to come back to that in just a
12  moment.
13         The Indiana Fair Housing Act says that
14  Indiana Code Section 4-21.5 governs hearing on
15  Fair Housing Act claims.  Of course, we know
16  Indiana Code Section 4-21.5 is the Administrative
17  Orders and Procedures Act.  So, AOPA is
18  referenced in both the Civil Rights and the Fair
19  Housing Acts.
20         AOPA says that the Administrative Law
21  Judge may, among other things, rule on, quote,
22  any other motion.  That's Indiana
23  Code 4-21.5-3-25(e).  Similarly, 910 Indiana
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 1  Administrative Code, Article 2, Rule 7, Section 2
 2  empowers the ALJ to, quote, dispose of motions,
 3  procedural requests, and similar matters.
 4         These statutory provisions, the Indiana
 5  Administrative Procedures Act and the
 6  Administrative Code, govern this Commission, and
 7  they empower the ALJ to rule on motions, without
 8  limitation of the type of motion.  That includes
 9  River Pointe's motion here.  The Complainant
10  argues that the Civil Rights Commission has not
11  adopted the Trial Rules, thus, 41(b) motions are
12  improper, but that ignores the statutes in the
13  Administrative Code that I just described.
14         Courts do not interpret statutes in the
15  manner that renders any part of them meaningless,
16  but that's what the Director is asking you to do
17  here today; interpret the AOPA statute and the
18  Administrative Code in a manner that renders
19  meaningless the provision that authorizes ALJ's
20  to grant motions.  That's impermissible.
21  Instead, this motion was properly before the ALJ.
22         We also cited the case of Bankhead versus
23  Walker in our materials, where the Indiana Court
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 1  of Appeals adjudicated a nearly identical motion
 2  without any question of whether it was
 3  procedurally proper.  So, the ALJ has authority
 4  to rule on the motion.
 5         That brings us to the standard.  Trial
 6  Rule 41(b) provides the standard.  It's upon the
 7  weight of the evidence.  That typically means
 8  preponderance of the evidence under Indiana law.
 9  This is the lowest of three standards.  A civil
10  procedure professor once described it in football
11  terms as the ball is just over the 50-yard line
12  into the enemy territory.
13         The next standard's a little more
14  amorphous; it's clear and convincing.  It's kind
15  of the intermediate standard between
16  preponderance, but less than beyond a reasonable
17  doubt, and from our crime shows on TV, we all
18  know beyond a reasonable doubt is the standard
19  that applies in criminal proceedings.
20         The Court of Appeals has confirmed that
21  the preponderance of the evidence test is
22  essentially a test of sufficiency of the
23  evidence.  This is from the cases that the ALJ
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 1  relied on in her ruling.
 2         But all of this is nothing more than an
 3  academic exercise, because the ALJ correctly
 4  found there was no reliable evidence to create a
 5  rebuttable inference in favor of Complainant's
 6  claims.  We're not at the 50-yard line.  The ball
 7  hasn't even been kicked off yet.
 8         Similarly, the Director's argument
 9  regarding the standard of review is a red
10  herring.  The Bankhead case I mentioned earlier
11  resolves the Complainant's -- the issue that the
12  Director raises here that provides the standard
13  of review, which I just discussed.  So, the
14  Director's argument about the standard is just
15  simply a red herring and not in concert with
16  controlling law.
17         That brings us to the substance of the
18  motion, and there's four reasons why it should be
19  granted -- or affirmed, rather.  First, the
20  parties cannot convert jurisdiction via consent.
21  I explained earlier that the parties agreed
22  Indiana legislature creates the administrative
23  agencies and gives them their powers.
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 1         The Indiana Court of Appeals has
 2  consistently held that the parties cannot confer
 3  jurisdiction upon an administrative agency by
 4  consent or agreement.  The cases cited there were
 5  the Howell and the Gorman cases.  The ALJ was
 6  proper in finding that it lacked jurisdiction to
 7  rule on the ICRL claim, because there was no
 8  probable cause finding.  A probable cause finding
 9  is necessary to proceed with a Civil Rights Law
10  claim.
11         Now, the Director does not dispute that
12  there was a lack of probable cause.  Instead, he
13  incorrectly argues that the parties consented,
14  but jurisdiction issues trump procedural issues.
15  Simply because the parties consented is
16  irrelevant.  If the Court lacks jurisdiction, it
17  cannot proceed, or in this case, if the ALJ or
18  the Commission lacks jurisdiction, it can't
19  proceed to the procedural rules.
20              MR. SCHULTZ: Five minutes remaining.
21              MR. BRADLEY: Thank you.
22         The Indiana Court of Appeals has held that
23  you can't consent to jurisdiction.  That disposes
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 1  of the Civil Rights Law issue.
 2         Second, as described in our briefing,
 3  asthma is not a disability recognized in the law.
 4  The parties don't really meaningfully dispute
 5  that the person's entitled to protection under
 6  the Fair Housing Act, the Civil Rights Laws, or
 7  the ADA if she is substantially limited in a
 8  major life activity.  Of course, what's key here
 9  is the word "substantial."
10         The Director cites the federal cases
11  interpreting the ADA in support of his arguments.
12  It is a concession that federal cases control in
13  these situations.  One such case the Director
14  mentioned, I believe, was the EEOC versus
15  AutoZone case that explains "substantially
16  limited" means considerable or to a large degree.
17         Although this is a general proposition of
18  law that River Pointe does not dispute, the
19  AutoZone case is distinguishable because it does
20  not address asthma, nor do any of the cases cited
21  in it.  Instead, the party in AutoZone suffered
22  from a back injury that caused myofascial
23  tenderness.  That prevented him from doing things
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 1  like the major life activity of chair upholstery.
 2         There's no evidence here that Ms. Shroff
 3  had a substantial impairment.  River Pointe
 4  instead cited five cases, each of which held that
 5  asthma, combined with other maladies, does not
 6  rise to the level of a disability.
 7         Moreover, there's no evidence here that
 8  Ms. Shroff presented any evidence of a
 9  substantial limitation of her life activity, and
10  that's the point:  Substantial.  Nor does
11  Complainant's briefing address this issue.  At
12  best, Ms. Shroff testified that her asthma is
13  controlled by the use of her inhaler.  This is
14  hardly a substantial limitation, and the ALJ was
15  correct here.
16         Third, even assuming Ms. Shroff's asthma
17  is a substantial limitation of a major life
18  activity, there's no evidence of a nexus between
19  the apartment and her asthma.
20              MR. SCHULTZ: Three minutes
21  remaining.
22              MR. BRADLEY: Thank you.
23         The Complainant failed to present any
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 1  reliable evidence of contamination in the
 2  apartment.  As I mentioned, four separate
 3  nonparties all reviewed it.  None of them found
 4  any issues.  Ms. Shroff does not have any
 5  training to identify mold or toxic substances.
 6  So, all that's left is her lay, self-serving
 7  testimony that the apartment had some
 8  contamination in it.
 9         This lack of credible evidence is crucial,
10  because Ms. Shroff's presence in the apartment,
11  by itself, did not trigger any asthma symptoms.
12  Nor did Complainant point to any contrary
13  evidence in its briefing or its presentation
14  today.  Ms. Sharp's testimony is wholly
15  irrelevant, which is addressed in the briefing,
16  because it lends nothing to the fact that
17  Ms. Shroff did not experience these symptoms
18  during normal use.
19         Instead, the evidence established that
20  Ms. Shroff experienced asthma symptoms only after
21  she destructively ripped up the carpets and the
22  padding, and this bears repeating, I think, for
23  the third time.  The only time Ms. Shroff
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 1  experienced any alleged asthma symptoms is after
 2  she voluntarily undertook to tear out the carpets
 3  and the padding.  This is hardly a normal,
 4  ordinary, or customary use of an apartment.
 5         And that's the point that the
 6  Administrative Law Judge made.  Ms. Shroff's use
 7  of the apartment in its normal condition did not
 8  cause any issues.  It wasn't until she misused
 9  the apartment that she began to allegedly
10  experience issues.
11         Even then, there's no evidence that
12  suggests anything in the apartment caused those
13  symptoms.  For all we know, it could have been
14  the physical activity of tearing out the carpets
15  that caused her to suffer symptoms.  The ALJ
16  correctly found that the Complainant failed to
17  establish a nexus between the apartment and
18  Ms. Shroff's asthma.
19         Fourth, and finally, the Administrative
20  Law Judge correctly interpreted Indiana law
21  regarding the recovery of attorneys fees and
22  costs.  There's a statute here that's at issue,
23  and one section of the Administrative Code.
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 1  Indiana Code 22-9.5-9-1 says that the
 2  Commission --
 3              MR. SCHULTZ: One minute remaining.
 4              MR. BRADLEY: Thanks.
 5         -- in any administrative hearing may award
 6  reasonable attorney fees to the prevailing party.
 7  Similarly, 910 IAC 2-7-9-G says that the
 8  prevailing party, except for the ICRC, may apply
 9  for attorneys fees.  There are two sections here
10  that unambiguously state River Pointe is entitled
11  to its fees.  Those sections must be applied as
12  they are written, which is exactly what the ALJ
13  did.
14         An award of fees would not frustrate the
15  purpose of the Civil Rights Law, or be
16  inconsistent with the legislature's intent,
17  because the Commission cannot get that far.  When
18  faced with an unambiguous statute, it must be
19  applied as it is written.  For these reasons, the
20  Commission should affirm the ALJ's decision in
21  all respects.
22              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
23         At this time, we'll allow for four minutes
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 1  each in response to one another.  We can begin
 2  with Mr. Bremer.
 3              MR. BREMER: Thank you.
 4         The Administrative Law Judge does refer to
 5  the fact that if there is a limiting factor, that
 6  the whole idea that the Administrative Law Judges
 7  can dip into the trial rules and grant similar
 8  kinds of motions that are found in the trial
 9  rules -- I'm sorry; I don't have my video on.
10  Someone turned me off here.
11               (Pause in proceedings.)
12              MR. BREMER: Okay.  I'm on now.
13  Thank you.
14         So, the limiting factor is that the
15  Commission has the authority to issue findings of
16  fact and conclusions of law only after a hearing.
17  It does not -- that's the limiting factor.  There
18  is an indication that there is a legal restraint
19  on just wholesale bringing in the Trial Rules,
20  and particularly this kind of a motion that was
21  granted in this case.
22         Now, also, the Commission has cited to --
23  I mean we have cited to you the -- a number of
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 1  cases, almost all of them, 56 different
 2  decisions, that are -- all have to do with the
 3  same agency, the Utility Regulatory Commission,
 4  and they did explicitly have a rule that said
 5  that they could draw upon the Trial Rules for
 6  guidance in ruling on motions.  So, the Civil
 7  Rights Commission does not have anything similar
 8  to that.
 9         She did have symptoms when she was in the
10  apartment before she got into the uncovering the
11  carpet, bringing it up to see if there were urine
12  stains on the reverse of the carpet from cats and
13  dogs and that sort of thing.  She was having
14  trouble breathing.  She had to leave the
15  apartment early.  That's in the record.
16         And the real point is this:  She had a
17  lifetime of experience with asthma and asthma
18  symptoms.  She knew what caused her -- and what
19  jeopardized her to get into a state where she
20  would have difficulty breathing.  She was faced
21  with the prospect of living in the place for
22  months on end that would -- showed all of the
23  warning signs of something --
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 1              MR. SCHULTZ: One minute remaining,
 2  Mr. Bremer.
 3              MR. BREMER: -- that was going to
 4  make her exhibit the symptoms of asthma.  The
 5  testimony of Ms. Sharp, who rented -- leased the
 6  apartment after Ms. Shroff left, and did not
 7  continue in the apartment, is that there was --
 8  there were noxious odors in that place.
 9         And this is exactly what Ms. Shroff
10  identified as something that would prompt her to
11  have constriction of her airways, have to use her
12  equipment, to deal with that.  It's not
13  reasonable to think that someone with asthma is
14  going to have to be left with the choice of
15  living in a place that's going to make them
16  vulnerable to asthma outbreaks.
17         Now, as far as the --
18              MR. SCHULTZ: That's four minutes.
19              MR. BREMER: -- ability of the
20  Commission --
21              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Mr. Bremer, I
22  believe that's the end of your time.  We've
23  reached the four-minute mark.
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 1              MR. BREMER: Oh, I didn't hear what
 2  he said.  I'm sorry.
 3              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: That's okay.
 4  Thank you very much.
 5         Okay.  We'll hear from Respondent.
 6              MR. BRADLEY: Yes.  Thank you, Chair
 7  Slash.
 8         I just have two quick points that I'll
 9  make in response.  The first one is:  The statute
10  and the Administrative Code sections that I began
11  with today both authorize an ALJ to rule on any
12  motion.  There's no limitation there.  We don't
13  disagree with the Director or Mr. Bremer that he
14  cited 56 different cases from the IURC, and the
15  IURC has adopted the Trial Rules, but that's not
16  relevant here, because the Code and the
17  Administrative Code both authorize the ALJ to
18  grant motions.
19         As to the symptoms, I simply -- I disagree
20  with Mr. Bremer's statement.  I have found no
21  evidence in the record, and the ALJ found no
22  evidence in the record, that Ms. Shroff suffered
23  from breathing problems before she began taking
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 1  out the carpets, and that's what's key here.
 2         Ms. Shroff testified that things like
 3  smoke and pet urine would exacerbate her asthma,
 4  yet there was evidence in the record presented
 5  that she is a smoker, or was a smoker, and that
 6  she maintains pet birds, which I learned during
 7  the hearing pet birds also urinate, and she can
 8  clean that urine with no problem.
 9         So, what this might have come down to is
10  the fact that there just simply wasn't any
11  evidence that while Ms. Shroff was in the
12  apartment in its normal and ordinary condition,
13  that it was -- that that caused her symptoms.
14  And I'm confident that we can say there's no such
15  evidence in the record.
16         And so, based on that, even if
17  Ms. Shroff -- even if, I'm sorry, asthma was a
18  disability, which we do not concede, because it's
19  not a substantial limitation according to the
20  controlling precedent, there's just no nexus
21  between the apartment and her asthma.  And for
22  those reasons, we would ask that you affirm the
23  Administrative Law Judge's order.
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 1              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.  Thank you.
 2  That concludes the discussion portion of this
 3  oral argument.
 4         At this time, I want to make sure that we
 5  are going through the objections in a way that we
 6  are able to follow clearly for the record.  Let's
 7  see here.  Deputy Director Schultz, would you
 8  want to call each of the objections as they were
 9  submitted so that we might call for motions
10  should they exist?
11              MR. SCHULTZ: So, unless there is an
12  objection from the parties, I think procedurally
13  the easiest thing to do, since we are dealing
14  with a number of objections that have to be
15  addressed individually, would be simply to have
16  Mr. Bremer read off each individual one.
17              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.
18              MR. SCHULTZ: Read it off, discuss if
19  warranted, and then vote.  But again, I -- I
20  don't want to -- I want to allow opposing counsel
21  the opportunity to object to that procedure.
22              MR. BRADLEY: I think that's
23  perfectly fine with me.  Mr. Bremer's going to
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 1  represent his objections as stated, so that's
 2  fine.
 3              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.
 4         And as we get started here, Commissioners,
 5  I did not -- I apologize that I did not call for
 6  any questions from Commissioners.  We didn't have
 7  any during the arguments, but I want to make sure
 8  that if there were any, that we have time to
 9  address them.
10                    (No response.)
11              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.  We can
12  proceed with the procedure as stated a moment
13  ago, Mr. Bremer.
14              MR. BREMER: I'm going to address
15  these in the order in which the objections are
16  raised in the brief --
17              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
18              MR. BREMER: -- this time around.
19         The first objection was that the
20  Administrative Law Judge lacked the statutory
21  authority to grant the Respondent's motion.  And
22  with regard to that, we're asking that the
23  Commissioners reject that opinion and remand to
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 1  the Administrative Law Judge with instructions to
 2  issue a decision based on the entire record of
 3  the hearing and not just at the point when the
 4  Complainant rested.
 5              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
 6         Commissioners, is there a motion or
 7  interest in this objection?
 8                    (No response.)
 9              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: I'm likely going
10  to get some interesting pauses here, just in case
11  there are folks that need to get off mute or need
12  to think briefly.
13                    (No response.)
14              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.  We will
15  move to -- hearing none, we will move to
16  objection no. 2.
17              MR. BREMER: That is the objection
18  that involved the inappropriate evidentiary
19  burden that was utilized by the Administrative
20  Law Judge in valuating the -- a motion for
21  judgment on the evidence.  Now, that's assuming
22  that you agree that the Judge had the authority
23  to grant that motion.
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 1         So, this is a fallback one, where we're
 2  saying when you -- or asking that if you don't --
 3  if you -- if it comes to a point where that is --
 4  you feel that was appropriate to even entertain
 5  that motion, that the Administrative Law Judge
 6  receive this case back to evaluate the motion in
 7  light of the rebuttable inference standard
 8  instead of the substantial and reliable evidence
 9  standard that seems to have been used.
10              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
11         Commissioners, is there a motion or
12  interest in further discussion on this objection?
13                    (No response.)
14              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Hearing none,
15  we'll move to objection no. 3.
16              MR. BREMER: The third objection has
17  to do with the fact that the -- although the
18  parties went into the hearing planning to
19  adjudicate claims under both the Indiana Fair
20  Housing Act and the Indiana Civil Rights Law, the
21  Administrative Law Judge disregarded that, and
22  also the regulation that permitted the parties to
23  take that kind of action, which is cited in full
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 1  in the brief.
 2         What we want is for the Commissioners to
 3  remand this case back to the Administrative Law
 4  Judge with instructions to adjudicate the claim
 5  both under the Indiana Civil Rights Law -- under
 6  the Indiana Civil Rights Law as well as the
 7  Indiana Fair Housing Act.
 8              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
 9         Commissioners, is there a motion or
10  interest in this objection?
11                    (No response.)
12              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.  Hearing
13  none, we'll move to objection no. 4.
14              MR. BREMER: The next objection has
15  to do with the finding of the Administrative Law
16  Judge that Ms. Shroff did not qualify for
17  protected status under the Indiana Fair Housing
18  Act.
19         On this one, we ask that the Commission
20  not accept that and remand with instructions to
21  the Administrative Law Judge to find that
22  Ms. Shroff did have the status as a protected
23  person, and to make other findings that would
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 1  be -- go along with that on the balance of the
 2  issues in the case.
 3              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
 4         Commissioners, is there a motion or
 5  further interest in objection no. 4?
 6                    (No response.)
 7              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.  Hearing
 8  none, we'll move to objection no. 5.
 9              MR. BREMER: The next objection has
10  to do with the Administrative Law Judge ruling
11  that there was not a nexus as required by law
12  between the disability of Ms. Shroff and the
13  accommodation she sought, which was to be
14  relieved of the obligation to live in the
15  apartment under the lease.
16         And on this one, we're asking that that be
17  rejected and that the Administrative Law Judge,
18  on remand, would be instructed to find that there
19  was a sufficient nexus between the two.  Of
20  course, that depends on the treatment of the
21  objection that we just talked about before that.
22              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
23         Commissioners, is there a motion or
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 1  interest in objection no. 5?
 2              COMM. BLACKBURN: I do have a
 3  question.
 4              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Uh-huh.  Please
 5  proceed.
 6              COMM. BLACKBURN: At what point after
 7  Ms. Shroff moved in did she complain that the
 8  environment was so unhealthy she could not stay
 9  there?  How long had she been there before she
10  complained?
11              MR. BREMER: Is that addressed to me?
12              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Comm. Blackburn,
13  are you addressing that question towards
14  Mr. Bremer?
15              COMM. BLACKBURN: Yes.
16              MR. BREMER: Well, I have to add
17  this:  Ms. Shroff never really did move in.  She
18  just -- the situation she encountered, she took a
19  few personal possessions there, never moved in
20  any furniture in, never lived there overnight,
21  anything like that.  But with that understanding,
22  it was very soon.  It was like by the next day
23  she was bringing this problem with the odor in
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 1  the apartment to the attention of the property
 2  manager.
 3              MR. BRADLEY: Chair Slash, may I say
 4  something as well?
 5              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Sure.
 6              MR. BRADLEY: I think the record
 7  evidence will show that the complaints escalated
 8  as time went on.  We don't disagree that
 9  Ms. Shroff really didn't move in.  There were a
10  few minor things -- when the Varin -- the River
11  Pointe folks went in, they thought no one lived
12  there because there was no major furniture or
13  anything.
14         She did almost immediately complain about
15  the smell and the odor, but that complaint, which
16  is the Complainant's Exhibit No. 5, said nothing
17  of asthma symptoms, trouble breathing or anything
18  like that.  It wasn't until later that she began
19  to complain about her asthma symptoms, at least
20  that's what we believe the record evidence shows.
21              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
22         I'll ask the question once more:  In
23  regards to objection no. 5, Commissioners have a
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 1  motion in regards to objection no. 5?
 2              COMM. BLACKBURN: No.
 3              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.  Hearing
 4  none, we'll move to objection no. 6.  Thank you.
 5              MR. BREMER: This has to do with the
 6  prevailing party provision.  The
 7  Administrative -- the award of attorneys fees,
 8  possibly against the Director, that was implied
 9  in what the Judge put in the recommended order,
10  that that could be a possible outcome or a
11  possible -- possibility, that the Respondent
12  could seek and obtain the cost of their attorneys
13  fees from the Director as a consequence of them
14  winning this case.
15         We have submitted extensive material in
16  our brief on that, and we're recommending and
17  asking that the Commissioners find that that is
18  not going to be an avenue under the proper
19  interpretation of the -- of the law for the
20  Respondent to be able to recover attorneys fees
21  like that, and to let the Administrative Law
22  Judge know that that kind of thing should not be
23  entertained.
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 1              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
 2         Commissioners, is there a motion or
 3  interest in objection no. 6?
 4                    (No response.)
 5              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Hearing none,
 6  we'll move to objection no. 7.
 7              MR. BREMER: This is minor.  There --
 8  we objected on the basis of there being material
 9  quoted in a footnote in the order that the
10  Administrative Law Judge is asking you to adopt
11  as a final order, in which the footnote itself
12  explains that this material was not relied upon
13  and was not in the record.  So, we're asking that
14  the Administrative Law Judge's decision -- that
15  particular footnote be purged from the decision.
16              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.  Thank you.
17         Commissioners, is there a motion or
18  interest in objection no. 7?
19              COMM. BLACKBURN: Would you repeat
20  it, please?
21              MR. BREMER: Yes, I'd be happy to.
22  This was the objection, the seventh objection,
23  that had to do with the impropriety of the
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 1  Administrative Law Judge specifying evidence that
 2  was not proper to be relied upon, again, in the
 3  decision as a whole, in a footnote, and we were
 4  objecting to that information appearing -- that
 5  footnote actually being in there with that
 6  information, because if this goes up on further
 7  review, we do not want that in there.  It wasn't
 8  used anyway.
 9              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
10         With that clarity, Commissioners, is there
11  a motion or interest in objection no. 7?
12              COMM. BLACKBURN: I would support its
13  being removed.
14              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
15         Is there a second to that motion?
16                    (No response.)
17              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Hearing none,
18  thank you for the motion; however, we will move
19  on to motion [sic] no. 8.
20              MR. BREMER: I've ran out of
21  objections.
22              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.
23              MR. BREMER: There were seven.
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 1              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.  I
 2  just wanted to make sure that if there was
 3  anything further, that we were in good shape
 4  here.  I appreciate that, and thank you for
 5  following that procedural exercise in this way,
 6  making sure that since we are virtual and we are
 7  not holding things in the same space, that we are
 8  all on the same page.
 9         Okay.  So, with that, we have had the oral
10  argument, we have had opportunity for both
11  parties to address one another -- one another's
12  objections and discussion.  We did not have any
13  adoption of any of the objections as submitted,
14  so at this time a motion is needed to affirm or
15  to dissolve the ALJ's orders.  Is there a motion?
16                    (No response.)
17              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: At this time, is
18  there a motion to affirm or dissolve the ALJ's
19  order from the Commissioners?
20              UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Mine's just a
21  case.  This isn't even a productive meeting.
22  It's a -- it's literally a -- like a trial.
23              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Slash, I believe
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 1  that was not a -- not one of the attorneys, and I
 2  went ahead and muted the individual.
 3              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you very
 4  much.
 5         Commissioners, at this time we do need a
 6  motion to affirm or dissolve the ALJ's order in
 7  regard to this case.
 8              COMM. RAMOS: Madam Chair, I'm sorry;
 9  I was on mute.  So, I recommend that we affirm
10  the ALJ's decision.
11              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
12         Is there a second?
13              COMM. JACKSON: Comm. Jackson,
14  second.
15              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
16         At this time, we shall call the roll.
17              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Blackburn?
18              COMM. BLACKBURN: Blackburn, aye.
19              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Harrington?
20              COMM. HARRINGTON: Aye.
21              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Jackson?
22              COMM. JACKSON: Aye.
23              MR. SCHULTZ: Vice-Chair Ramos?
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 1              COMM. RAMOS: Aye.
 2              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Tolliver?
 3              COMM. TOLLIVER: Aye.
 4              MR. SCHULTZ: Chair Slash?
 5              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Aye.
 6              MR. SCHULTZ: Motion passes, six,
 7  zero.
 8              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you very
 9  much.
10         That concludes today's oral argument.
11  Thank you both for being present with us and for
12  participating.
13              MR. BREMER: Thank you.
14              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.  We still
15  have a little bit of our agenda remaining here
16  for the day.  The next case that we have in this
17  section of our agenda is ICRC/Rickard/Small
18  versus Varsity Properties Management Corporation,
19  Case No. HOfs20060223.  It was submitted to the
20  Commission of June 30th, 2021, and the ALJ
21  dismissed the Indiana Fair Housing Act claims
22  based on notice of election, and the ALJ
23  dismissed the Indiana Civil Rights Law claim as
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 1  nonjurisdictional, and the objection period has
 2  passed and this matter is closed.
 3         I do not believe we have a vote on this
 4  one, but I'm going to ask for clarity.
 5              MR. SCHULTZ: This is -- a vote is
 6  required to affirm or deny or modify this one.
 7              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
 8         Commissioners, is there a motion to
 9  affirm, modify or dissolve; right?  That's the
10  three on this one, too?
11              MR. SCHULTZ: Or vacate, yes.
12              COMM. BLACKBURN: Move we --
13              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Or vacate.
14              COMM. BLACKBURN: -- affirm.
15              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Is there a
16  motion?
17              COMM. BLACKBURN: I move we affirm.
18              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.  That
19  was Comm. Blackburn.
20         Is there a second?
21              COMM. HARRINGTON: This is
22  Comm. Harrington.  I second.
23              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
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 1         Shall we call roll?
 2              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Blackburn?
 3              COMM. BLACKBURN: Blackburn, aye.
 4              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Harrington?
 5              COMM. HARRINGTON: Aye.
 6              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Jackson?
 7              COMM. JACKSON: Aye.
 8              MR. SCHULTZ: Vice-Chair Ramos?
 9              COMM. RAMOS: Aye.
10              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Tolliver?
11              COMM. TOLLIVER: Aye.
12              MR. SCHULTZ: Chair Slash?
13              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Aye.
14              MR. SCHULTZ: Motion passes, six,
15  zero.
16              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
17         The next case is Johnson versus Brook
18  Knoll Village, Case No. EMra18040 --
19              MS. SHAFFER: Hi.  Am I able to ask a
20  quick question?
21              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Sure.  Can you
22  state your name for the record, please?
23              MS. SHAFFER: Yeah.  My name is Lisa.
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 1  I'm just a student paying attention to the
 2  Commission today.  What was the motion that was
 3  passed on that first case?
 4              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Are you speaking
 5  in regard to the oral argument that we just held?
 6  This is a great teaching moment, I suppose.
 7              MS. SHAFFER: Yes, I am.
 8              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Yes.  So, we did
 9  the -- the call on that one was we had a motion
10  to affirm the ALJ's original finding in the ALJ's
11  order.
12              MS. SHAFFER: Okay.  Perfect.  Thank
13  you.
14              THE REPORTER: Chair Slash, could you
15  have her state her last name, please?
16              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Yes, please.
17         Can you please state your first and last
18  name?  And spelling is always helpful for the
19  court reporter.
20              MS. SHAFFER: Yeah.  It's Lisa
21  Shaffer, L i s a, S h a f f e r.
22              THE REPORTER: Thank you.
23              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thanks.
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 1         Okay.  And I'll return back to the
 2  agenda.  The next case that we have, this was one
 3  that I was beginning as a -- just a moment ago,
 4  Johnson versus Brock Knoll Village, Case
 5  No. EMra18040181, submitted to the Commission on
 6  July 14th, 2021.  The ALJ dismissed the matter on
 7  its merits by granting a motion for summary
 8  judgment filed by the Respondent.  The objection
 9  period in this matter has closed.
10         Is there a motion to affirm, modify or
11  vacate this?
12              COMM. RAMOS: Ramos, motion to
13  affirm.
14              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
15         Is there a second?
16              COMM. JACKSON: Comm. Jackson,
17  second.
18              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
19         Shall I call the roll?
20              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Blackburn?
21              COMM. BLACKBURN: Blackburn, aye.
22              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Harrington?
23              COMM. HARRINGTON: Aye.
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 1              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Jackson?
 2              COMM. JACKSON: Aye.
 3              MR. SCHULTZ: Vice-Chair Ramos?
 4              COMM. RAMOS: Aye.
 5              MR. SCHULTZ: Vice-Chair Ramos?
 6              COMM. RAMOS: Aye.
 7              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Tolliver?
 8              COMM. TOLLIVER: Aye.
 9              MR. SCHULTZ: Chair Slash?
10              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Aye.
11              MR. SCHULTZ: Motion passes, six,
12  zero.
13              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
14         The next case is Banks versus Taco Bell,
15  Bell American Group, LLC, Case No. PAra18050248,
16  submitted to the Commission on July 19th, 2021.
17  The ALJ dismissed the matter after the parties
18  reached a settlement.  The ALJ recommended that
19  the Commission accept the consent agreement filed
20  by the parties.  The objection period in this
21  matter has closed.
22         Is there a motion to affirm, modify or
23  vacate the ALJ's order?
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 1              COMM. BLACKBURN: I move to affirm.
 2              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
 3  That's Comm. Blackburn.
 4         Is there a second?
 5              COMM. HARRINGTON: Comm. Harrington,
 6  second.
 7              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
 8         Shall we call the roll?
 9              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Blackburn?
10              COMM. BLACKBURN: Blackburn, aye.
11              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Harrington?
12              COMM. HARRINGTON: Aye.
13              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Jackson?
14              COMM. JACKSON: Aye.
15              MR. SCHULTZ: Vice-Chair Ramos?
16              COMM. RAMOS: Aye.
17              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Tolliver?
18              COMM. TOLLIVER: Aye.
19              MR. SCHULTZ: Chair Slash?
20              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Aye.
21              MR. SCHULTZ: Motion passes, six,
22  zero.
23              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
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 1         The next section of our agenda, ALJ
 2  Decisions that are Automatically Confirmed.  At
 3  this time we do not have any, and we also would
 4  not need a vote at all, either, because they're
 5  automatically adopted and approval is not needed.
 6  So, thank you very much for that.
 7         We'll now move to meeting dates for the
 8  remainder of 2021.  I'm glad to have everybody
 9  here with us today.  We have made it through the
10  summer, which tends to be a little bit difficult
11  for scheduling and making sure that we are all
12  present.
13         For the time being, we look that we should
14  still be virtual, and hope that everyone remains
15  safe and healthy and well.  The coming date that
16  we have is September 17th.  Does any -- do any
17  members of the Commission have conflicts with
18  that date?
19              COMM. BLACKBURN: I have a distinct
20  possibility that I won't be able to be in the
21  meeting.  It's the day after my birthday, and I
22  may not be around here, so I may have been
23  assigned a case.  If you need to reassign that --
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 1              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.  Thank you.
 2              COMM. BLACKBURN: -- you could.
 3              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.  Thank you.
 4              COMM. BLACKBURN: Thank you.
 5              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: I will actually
 6  go ahead and do that.  I'll make an amendment to
 7  the further -- to the earlier record, if you
 8  don't mind me doing that here.  Slightly
 9  confusing moment, but I'll go ahead and do it,
10  because you do have a birthday the day before.
11  The Case EMha21030073 I will assign to myself,
12  Chair Slash, and remove from Comm. Blackburn.
13              COMM. BLACKBURN: Thank you.
14              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: You're welcome,
15  and Happy Early Birthday.
16         Do any other Commissioners have conflicts
17  with the September date?
18                    (No response.)
19              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.  And then
20  looking ahead, does anyone have an issue with the
21  October date?
22                    (No response.)
23              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: I personally have
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 1  an issue with the October date, but I do not have
 2  to stop the show.  I just would like to get it on
 3  the record to date that I may not be available
 4  for the October date.
 5              COMM. TOLLIVER: I will not be
 6  available for the October date.
 7              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.  So, shall
 8  we do a little bit of an out-of-class activity
 9  via e-mail to make sure that we have the right
10  date for October, so that we have the right
11  amount of Commissioners present?
12              MR. SCHULTZ: Yeah, we'll -- the ICRC
13  staff will work with the Commissioners to
14  identify an alternative date.
15              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.  And
16  we can look at November and December at a further
17  time.  I do like to get us just a couple of
18  months in advance, if that's okay with the other
19  Commissioners.
20         Okay.  So, at this time, we do not have
21  any Election, Training or Other.  Thanks to the
22  Commissioners that were able to participate in
23  our earlier training.
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 1         Are there any Announcements?
 2              MR. SCHULTZ: Just -- if I may, Chair
 3  Slash.  It's Tim Schultz.  Just a reminder that
 4  our ability to conduct these meetings 100 percent
 5  virtually is contingent on the emergency health
 6  order from the Governor that is currently in
 7  effect to the end of this month, but there's no
 8  way of knowing if that will be extended beyond
 9  August.
10         So, just be mindful that if it's not
11  extended, we have to go back to the regular
12  open-door requirements, which would require three
13  members to physically be present in order for
14  the -- in order to conduct the meeting.
15              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
16         Any Commissioners have any -- any
17  questions or concerns in regarding to that?
18              COMM. RAMOS: No.
19              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.
20         Are there any Announcements?
21                    (No response.)
22              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.  Is there
23  anyone here for Public Comment today?
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 1                    (No response.)
   
 2              CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  I didn't
   
 3  recall hearing anyone at the beginning, but I
   
 4  wanted to make sure, just in case.
   
 5         With that being said, we've used almost
   
 6  every minute of our time today, and we have
   
 7  arrived at 2:56, and I will go ahead and -- we'll
   
 8  go ahead and dismiss today's meeting.
   
 9              COMM. RAMOS:  Thank you.
   
10              COMM. BLACKBURN:  Bye, everybody.
   
11              COMM. HARRINGTON:  Thank you.
   
12              MR. SCHULTZ:  Bye.
   
13              CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Bye.
   
14                       -  -  -
              Thereupon, the proceedings of
15            August 20, 2021 were concluded
                   at 2:57 o'clock p.m.
16                       -  -  -
   
17 
   
18 
   
19 
   
20 
   
21 
   
22 
   
23 
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 1                     CERTIFICATE
   
 2         I, Lindy L. Meyer, Jr., the undersigned
   
 3  Court Reporter and Notary Public residing in the
   
 4  City of Shelbyville, Shelby County, Indiana, do
   
 5  hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and
   
 6  correct transcript of the proceedings taken by me
   
 7  on Friday, August 20, 2021 in this matter and
   
 8  transcribed by me.
   
 9 
   
10                       _________________________
   
11                        Lindy L. Meyer, Jr.,
   
12                        Notary Public in and
   
13                        for the State of Indiana.
   
14 
   
15  My Commission expires August 26, 2024.
   
16  Commission No. NP0690003
   
17 
   
18 
   
19 
   
20 
   
21 
   
22 
   
23 
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 1                                   1:33 o'clock p.m.
                                   August 20, 2021


 2                        -  -  -
  


 3               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  We can go
  


 4   ahead and get started.
  


 5               MR. SCHULTZ:  Okay.  Well, in that
  


 6   case, before we officially begin and take roll
  


 7   call, I'd ask all non-Commission members to
  


 8   identify themselves at this time, please.
  


 9               MR. BREMER:  Frederick S. Bremer.
  


10   I'm a Commission staff attorney.
  


11               MR. BRADLEY:  This is Jacob Bradley.
  


12   I am counsel for the Respondent in the matter
  


13   that's going to be heard today.
  


14               MS. ALLEN:  Michelle Allen.  I'm the
  


15   Director of the Office of Administrative Law
  


16   Proceedings.
  


17               MR. RIPPERGER:  Brady Ripperger, with
  


18   the Fair Housing Center of Central Indiana.
  


19               REV. MYERS:  Rev. Daisy Myers, from
  


20   San Diego, California.
  


21               MR. SCHULTZ:  Any other individuals
  


22   joining us today who are non-Commission members?
  


23               MS. SLONE:  Stephanie Slone, with the
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 1   Indiana Civil Rights Commission.
  


 2               MS. OJO:  Christiana Ojo, from the
  


 3   Indiana Civil Rights Commission.
  


 4               MR. SCHULTZ:  And I'm Tim Schultz,
  


 5   with the Indiana Civil Rights Commission, and I
  


 6   am currently admitting one more person.  The
  


 7   individual who just joined the meeting, can you
  


 8   identify yourself, please?
  


 9               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Comm. Blackburn.
  


10               MR. SCHULTZ:  Okay.
  


11          All right.  Chair Slash, I believe all
  


12   participants have identified themselves.  Would
  


13   you like me to conduct the roll call for the
  


14   Commission members at this time?
  


15               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Yes, please.
  


16               MR. SCHULTZ:  Okay.
  


17          Comm. Blackburn, are you present?
  


18               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, here.
  


19               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Harrington?
  


20               COMM. HARRINGTON:  I'm here.
  


21               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Jackson?
  


22               COMM. JACKSON:  Present.
  


23               MR. SCHULTZ:  Vice-Chair Ramos?
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 1               COMM. RAMOS:  Here.
  


 2               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Tolliver?
  


 3               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Here.
  


 4               MR. SCHULTZ:  And Chair Slash?
  


 5               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Present.  Thank
  


 6   you.
  


 7               MR. SCHULTZ:  All right.  We have six
  


 8   Commission members present.
  


 9               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


10          Okay.  And at this time, we'll go ahead
  


11   and call our meeting to order at 1:34 p.m., the
  


12   Indiana Civil Rights Commission's August 2020
  


13   meeting [sic].  Thank you.
  


14          Shall we announce the agenda?  We have
  


15   quite a few people who are over the phone and
  


16   likely not in front of a screen today.
  


17               MR. SCHULTZ:  Yes.  So, today we
  


18   have, under Old Business, three appeals that were
  


19   previously assigned to Commissioners for final
  


20   decision.  Under New Business, we are appointing
  


21   Commissioners to consider a total of seven new
  


22   appeals.  And then under the Review of ALJ
  


23   Decisions and Orders, we have a total of four
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 1   decisions being considered -- or preliminary
  


 2   decisions being considered by the Commission
  


 3   members for deliberation and vote.  And I think
  


 4   that's -- that's it, aside from confirming the
  


 5   future Commission dates.
  


 6               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you very
  


 7   much.
  


 8          At this time, I'd like to hear a motion to
  


 9   approve the previous meeting minutes.  Is there
  


10   one?
  


11               COMM. RAMOS:  So moved --
  


12               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


13               COMM. RAMOS:  -- Comm. Ramos.
  


14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Is there a
  


15   second?
  


16               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Second, Blackburn.
  


17               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


18          Being moved and seconded, shall we call
  


19   the roll?
  


20               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Blackburn?
  


21               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, here.
  


22               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Harrington?
  


23               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.
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 1               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Jackson?
  


 2               COMM. JACKSON:  Aye.
  


 3               MR. SCHULTZ:  Vice-Chair Ramos?
  


 4               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.
  


 5               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Tolliver?
  


 6               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Aye.
  


 7               MR. SCHULTZ:  And Chair Slash?
  


 8               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.
  


 9               MR. SCHULTZ:  Motion passes, six,
  


10   zero.
  


11               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


12          Okay.  At this time, we'll have the ICRC's
  


13   Director's Report.
  


14               MR. SCHULTZ:  Yeah.  And I don't --
  


15   unless he didn't speak up, I don't believe
  


16   Executive Director Greg Wilson is on -- is in the
  


17   meeting today, so I guess that leaves it to me.
  


18          As you know, we didn't meet in July.  It's
  


19   been, you know, fairly busy.  We've had a number
  


20   of events that we've attended or presented at.
  


21   For example, we -- the Commission did have the
  


22   opportunity to present at the Black Expo
  


23   Education Conference about a month ago, I guess.
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 1          And that was a great opportunity, as
  


 2   always.  You know, we're always honored to be a
  


 3   part of that.  I believe that the audience was --
  


 4   it was virtual, of course, and the audience was
  


 5   somewhere around the number of 5,000, according
  


 6   to the Expo representatives, so that was -- of
  


 7   course, you know, very happy to do so.
  


 8          And I believe that the Executive Director
  


 9   Wilson is trying to enter the meeting now, so
  


10   I'll invite him to join.
  


11          Greg, did you just sign in?
  


12               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  His audio may not
  


13   be connected yet.
  


14               MR. SCHULTZ:  Director Wilson, did
  


15   you just join us?
  


16                     (No response.)
  


17               MR. SCHULTZ:  Well, maybe he's having
  


18   a tech issue, but just for the court
  


19   reporter's -- for the record, Greg Wilson did
  


20   just join the meeting.
  


21          We -- the agency also had the opportunity
  


22   earlier this month to have a booth at the Asian
  


23   Fest on the north side of the city.  That was
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 1   another wonderful event where we got to, you
  


 2   know, pass out literature and talk to individuals
  


 3   about our mission.
  


 4          The Governor presented at the event, as
  


 5   did the Mayor, and very successful.  I know I
  


 6   personally was there for a while, and a lot of
  


 7   people were very interested in asking questions
  


 8   about what we were doing -- or what we do.
  


 9          In addition to that -- I know I always
  


10   plug this, because I'm always very excited about
  


11   it -- our testing program has continued for Fair
  


12   Housing.  We have a number of those completed
  


13   tests subject to active investigations now, and
  


14   the testing is continuing.
  


15          We are looking to maybe modify that
  


16   program a little bit, instead of just doing kind
  


17   of, you know, tests that -- I don't want to say
  


18   at random, but without -- you know, that there's
  


19   no basis to begin a test, we're just collecting
  


20   housing projects for providers.
  


21          What we are now doing is we are working
  


22   with a vendor, maybe test housing providers that
  


23   have an active complaint, and that way it's
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 1   something that other organizations such as ICRC
  


 2   do to help build an investigation file.  And so,
  


 3   we're always looking to continuously improve that
  


 4   program and make it more useful, and I think it's
  


 5   just a great example of something new that we're
  


 6   doing that is very beneficial.
  


 7          And I think that's -- that's really the
  


 8   highlights that I wanted to touch on, but again,
  


 9   I'll ask if Director Wilson was able to join
  


10   us -- or if he's able to talk to us at the
  


11   moment.
  


12                     (No response.)
  


13               MR. SCHULTZ:  I don't think so, so
  


14   that's the Director's Report, Chair Slash.
  


15               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you very
  


16   much.
  


17          Does anyone have any questions regarding
  


18   the Director's Report, any of our Commissioners?
  


19               COMM. RAMOS:  Madam Chair, a couple
  


20   of comments.  Number one, I wanted to extend my
  


21   appreciation for the inclusion of the Cultural
  


22   Commissions Reports that you've had over the last
  


23   several months.  It really is very, very
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 1   valuable.  I find it fascinating, and that's good
  


 2   work.  So, I wanted to commend the Commission for
  


 3   that.  It's a great piece of work.
  


 4          And number two, looking at the reports, I
  


 5   also notice that in the month of June, you had
  


 6   440,000 hits, which normally it was like 10,000,
  


 7   and then it just spiked tremendously, and I was
  


 8   just curious what the phenomenon was that would
  


 9   cause that much of a spike.
  


10               MR. SCHULTZ:  I do not know.  I would
  


11   probably -- I'll have to check with our Internal
  


12   Affairs team to see if they can identify the
  


13   cause.  You know, the fact that we had some
  


14   presentations at some fairly large events might
  


15   be part of that.
  


16          And I can see Greg now, so I don't know,
  


17   Greg, if you are able to --
  


18               MR. WILSON:  Yeah.
  


19          So, good afternoon, everyone.  So, I had
  


20   some issues.  I'm sure we all have had those.  It
  


21   could be human error, but I think it was system
  


22   error.
  


23          So, anyway, a couple of things.  Tim's
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 1   correct -- and thank you, Comm. Ramos, for those
  


 2   comments.  We did a lot -- we're doing a lot of
  


 3   marketing, a lot of radio, talking about a lot of
  


 4   issues that were important to people, everything
  


 5   from, you know, the moratorium and where
  


 6   resources that were available if you needed help.
  


 7   That's between our partnership that we have with
  


 8   IACDA.
  


 9          Again, then we did some radio interviews,
  


10   where we talked about, you know, our mediation
  


11   program and talked about Civil Rights and how
  


12   that if you feel like you've been discriminated
  


13   against, you could go to our Web site and get
  


14   more information.
  


15          And so, we've done a lot of little things,
  


16   and I think the fact that people have a lot more
  


17   time to use technology since they've been doing
  


18   it all through COVID, I think that's helped our
  


19   engagement a lot.  So, it's just been a lot of
  


20   things we've been doing.  We have a great
  


21   External Affairs team that have been working
  


22   extremely hard.
  


23          And I don't know where we are on the
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 1   report.  It was a struggle in getting in here,
  


 2   but I wanted to add, too, is that if Tim hasn't
  


 3   said so yet, now we're working on filling a lot
  


 4   of our positions, especially in the Internal
  


 5   Affairs area, where we now actually hired a
  


 6   really strong education and outreach person,
  


 7   somebody who can actually do more of our actual
  


 8   training and education in the community.  We
  


 9   didn't have that component before, and Virgil
  


10   just hired a very talented person, and I think
  


11   everybody will appreciate when they see some of
  


12   the work that she'll be doing out there.
  


13          And then also, McKenzie has really been
  


14   doing a lot with our Web site, and you'll see --
  


15   you're going to see a great update.  We're moving
  


16   some of the things that are not relevant and some
  


17   of the things that we know need to go away or
  


18   disappear.  It's been a long process, and Chair
  


19   Ram -- I mean Comm. Ramos and Slash, Chair Slash
  


20   and others, you know that we had so many
  


21   different things we had to fix or improve
  


22   throughout the last couple of years.
  


23          And finally, I think we're at a point
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 1   where we can make social media more valuable to
  


 2   us, as well as our Web site, because we find more
  


 3   people want to know more information about what
  


 4   we're doing, how can we help them, and what
  


 5   services that we provide, because we have been
  


 6   doing those partnerships, like I said, with
  


 7   IACDA, which is not what we've done in the past,
  


 8   which talks about the support and the financial
  


 9   resources for those who are renters or those who
  


10   just need help with the mortgage payments.  So, I
  


11   think that's -- that's made a lot of opportunity
  


12   for engagement.
  


13          But we have a lot of new people coming on,
  


14   I think, in the Intake area, and I don't know if,
  


15   Tim, you covered this or not, but stop me if you
  


16   have so I don't bore them with it, but in Intake,
  


17   especially since we have Christiana, she's been
  


18   doing some great things with improving those
  


19   processes, making them more customer-service
  


20   friendly, as well as now we've given her more
  


21   tools and resources to process the inquiries a
  


22   lot faster than what we were able to do it in the
  


23   past.
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 1          So, you're going to see the numbers go up
  


 2   tremendously, I believe, with the way she has now
  


 3   changed how we do business in the Intake area.
  


 4   So, I'm very excited for her as well as some of
  


 5   the other new components that we have.
  


 6          I think everybody knows Adoley has went on
  


 7   to -- that's one thing.  People come, and I
  


 8   always say, "Just give me a year, give me what
  


 9   you've got."  I know we have a lot of talent they
  


10   bring, but it's just been fantastic that we've
  


11   gotten this talent, which has helped us improve
  


12   processes that I think has made us more
  


13   effective.
  


14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.  Thank
  


15   you for your additions.  We had -- we were just
  


16   getting to the end of the Director's Report, so
  


17   it was perfect timing, so thank you.
  


18               MR. WILSON:  Yeah.  I'm sorry if I
  


19   took more time out.
  


20               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  No, no, it was
  


21   perfect.  Thank you.
  


22          Are there any questions for Director
  


23   Wilson?
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 1                     (No response.)
  


 2               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Thank you
  


 3   so much.  And I do echo Vice-Chair Ramos.  The
  


 4   updates have been really great to really
  


 5   understand how the Cultural Commissions are
  


 6   working, but also I just applaud the Commission's
  


 7   presence at larger events and taking advantage of
  


 8   all of the virtual opportunities to reach larger
  


 9   audiences.
  


10               MR. WILSON:  Thank you.
  


11               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Hearing that,
  


12   we'll move on to Old Business, and we will start
  


13   with the case Mayers versus Marion Superior
  


14   Court, Case No. EMra19120129.
  


15          Vice-Chair Ramos, do you have a
  


16   recommendation?
  


17               COMM. RAMOS:  Yes.  And the
  


18   recommendation in the Mayers versus Marion
  


19   Superior Court, I recommend that we uphold the
  


20   Director's finding of no probable cause.
  


21               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


22          Is there a motion?
  


23               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I move we accept
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 1   that recommendation.
  


 2               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


 3          Is there a second?
  


 4               COMM. JACKSON:  Second, Comm. Jack --
  


 5               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Comm. Harrington,
  


 6   second.
  


 7               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  That was
  


 8   Comm. Blackburn with the motion, Comm. Harrington
  


 9   with the second.
  


10          Shall we call the roll?
  


11                     (No response.)
  


12               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  I can do it if
  


13   you want me to.
  


14               MS. OJO:  Comm. Blackburn?
  


15               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, aye.
  


16               MS. OJO:  Vice-Chair Ramos?
  


17               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.
  


18               MS. OJO:  Comm. Harrington?
  


19               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.
  


20               MS. OJO:  Comm. Tolliver?
  


21               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Aye.
  


22               MS. OJO:  Comm. Jackson?
  


23               COMM. JACKSON:  Aye.
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 1               MS. OJO:  Chair Ramos -- I'm sorry.
  


 2   Chair Slash?
  


 3               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.
  


 4               MS. OJO:  Vice-Chair Ramos?
  


 5               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.
  


 6               MS. OJO:  Motion passes, six.
  


 7               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


 8               MR. SCHULTZ:  My apologies on that.
  


 9   I didn't realize I was muted, which, of course,
  


10   you would think by now I would catch that kind of
  


11   thing.
  


12               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  It's okay.  Just
  


13   remember when we said we were going to extend
  


14   some grace today?  Lots of grace today, because
  


15   technology is being, you know, a little special.
  


16               MR. SCHULTZ:  Yeah.
  


17               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Last week was
  


18   Friday the 13th, but today we're just extending
  


19   grace.
  


20          Okay.  In the second case, Castillo versus
  


21   MV Lofts at Roberts LLC.  That's Case
  


22   No. HOha20060206.
  


23          Comm. Jackson, do you have a







19


  
 1   recommendation?
  


 2               COMM. JACKSON:  I recommend to uphold
  


 3   the Director's finding, no probable cause.
  


 4               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


 5          Is there a motion?
  


 6               COMM. RAMOS:  So moved, Ramos.
  


 7               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


 8          Is there a second?
  


 9               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Second,
  


10   Comm. Harrington.
  


11               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Shall we call the
  


12   roll?
  


13               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Blackburn?
  


14               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, yes.
  


15               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Harrington?
  


16               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.
  


17               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Jackson?
  


18               COMM. JACKSON:  Aye.
  


19               MR. SCHULTZ:  Vice-Chair Ramos?
  


20               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.
  


21               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Tolliver?
  


22               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Aye.
  


23               MR. SCHULTZ:  Chair Slash?
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 1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.
  


 2               MR. SCHULTZ:  Motion passes, six,
  


 3   zero.
  


 4               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


 5          The next case -- and I apologize for
  


 6   messing this name up -- Capodagil -- Capodagli
  


 7   versus Chris Allan Tompkins.  That's
  


 8   Case HOse21020055.
  


 9          Comm. Tolliver, do you have a
  


10   recommendation?
  


11               COMM. TOLLIVER:  I'd recommend that
  


12   we uphold the Commission's administrative
  


13   dismissal due to lack of jurisdiction.
  


14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


15          Is there a motion?
  


16               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I move we accept.
  


17               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


18          Is there a -- and that's Comm. Blackburn?
  


19               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Yes.
  


20               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


21          Is there a second?
  


22               COMM. RAMOS:  Ramos, aye -- or
  


23   second.
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 1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


 2          Shall I call the roll?
  


 3               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Blackburn?
  


 4               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, aye.
  


 5               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Harrington?
  


 6               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.
  


 7               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Jackson?
  


 8               COMM. JACKSON:  Aye.
  


 9               MR. SCHULTZ:  Vice-Chair Ramos?
  


10               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.
  


11               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Tolliver?
  


12               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Aye.
  


13               MR. SCHULTZ:  And Chair Slash?
  


14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.
  


15               MR. SCHULTZ:  Motion passes, six,
  


16   zero.
  


17               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


18          Okay.  Moving to New Business, we have
  


19   quite a few cases to assign today, and I'll try
  


20   my best to call them off and read them off.
  


21   However, we'll just ask that they be sent
  


22   directly to the Commissioners as well.
  


23          In the first case -- I do not want to mess
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 1   this last name up.  Can I just call the case
  


 2   number?  Is that possible?  Okay.
  


 3               MR. SCHULTZ:  Sure.
  


 4               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  In the first
  


 5   case, EMha21030073, I will assign that one to
  


 6   Comm. Blackburn; in the next one, EMha20120853,
  


 7   Comm. Harrington; Case PAra21050133,
  


 8   Comm. Jackson; Case EMra20110814, Comm. Ramos;
  


 9   Case EDra19090496, Comm. Tolliver;
  


10   Case EMno20120052, Chair Slash; and the final
  


11   one, Case 24D-2020-00267, Comm. Harrington.
  


12          Okay.  That might have been a pretty
  


13   efficient way to do that.  And for clarity,
  


14   Commissioners, they'll be sent to you for more
  


15   clarity, just to make sure that we have the
  


16   proper assignments.
  


17          Okay.  At this time, we do not have any
  


18   motions or other filings in New Business, and so
  


19   we will move to reviewing ALJ Decisions and
  


20   Orders, and our first case is the case that we
  


21   have parties present for oral arguments.
  


22          And so, I'll just kind of give us a brief
  


23   intro, ICRC -- Case of ICRC versus Varin/River







23


  
 1   Pointe, LLC, Case HOha151001734.  The case was
  


 2   submitted to the Commission on April 15th, 2021.
  


 3   The ALJ conducted a hearing on the merits and
  


 4   dismissed the matter.
  


 5          Subsequently an objection was submitted
  


 6   for consideration by the Commission.  The
  


 7   Commission set a briefing for June 21st and an
  


 8   oral argument for August 2021.  The parties have
  


 9   submitted their briefing materials concerning the
  


10   Complainant's objection to the ALJ's initial
  


11   decision.
  


12          At this time, I'll ask that party
  


13   representatives introduce themselves, beginning
  


14   with the representative for the Respondent.
  


15               MR. BRADLEY:  Good afternoon, Chair
  


16   Slash.  My name is Jake Bradley.  I am the
  


17   attorney for the Respondent.
  


18               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


19          And on the Complainant's side?
  


20               MR. BREMER:  Yes.  My name is Fred
  


21   Bremer.  I'm a staff attorney at the Indiana
  


22   Civil Rights Commission, here for the
  


23   Complainant, the Director.
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 1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


 2          At this time, we'll begin the oral
  


 3   argument.  As staff counsel for the agency filed
  


 4   objections to the ALJ decision, that party will
  


 5   have the first opportunity to present to
  


 6   Commission members.  Presentations will be
  


 7   limited to 15 minutes, and each party will have
  


 8   four minutes to respond after the initial
  


 9   presentations are complete.  Commission members,
  


10   if you have questions, you may ask them at any
  


11   time.
  


12          Do we have a timekeeper, and is there
  


13   going to be a show of time on screen?  This is an
  


14   administrative question that I think we should
  


15   have asked slightly earlier.  If not, I can --
  


16               MR. SCHULTZ:  I --
  


17               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  -- set my own
  


18   timer.
  


19               MR. SCHULTZ:  This is Tim Schultz.  I
  


20   will keep time and provide --
  


21               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.
  


22               MR. SCHULTZ:  -- a five-minute and
  


23   three-minute and one-minute warning.
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 1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Thank you.
  


 2          Mr. Bremer?
  


 3               MR. BREMER:  Thank you.
  


 4          We're here today to present on behalf of
  


 5   the objections filed by Commission -- Director
  


 6   Wilson in the case of Wilson versus River Pointe
  


 7   Apartments.  I'm not going to get into the
  


 8   factual background right now.  We have seven
  


 9   objections.  I'm not going to treat those in the
  


10   same order in which they were treated in brief
  


11   and in the objections filing.
  


12          So, I'll start out with -- the first one
  


13   has to do with the basic decision of the
  


14   Administrative Law Judge, recommending that you
  


15   find that the aggrieved person, Carrie Shroff,
  


16   did not qualify for protected status as a
  


17   disabled person.  And our objection to that is
  


18   that she does qualify under applicable federal
  


19   law.
  


20          She had enough of a recitation of how her
  


21   asthma affected her life.  It wasn't just
  


22   general, it was a lot of detail.  She had to
  


23   use -- take an inhaler with her at all times.
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 1   She had to use it two times a week.  She had
  


 2   episodes in her past when she encountered
  


 3   environmental factors such as smoke, the smell of
  


 4   urine and other noxious odors, where this would
  


 5   cause her to become unable to breathe and would
  


 6   have to use that device, and in some cases would
  


 7   have to also use a nebulizer, which provided some
  


 8   medication that caused the airways to be
  


 9   constricted.  And she also had situations where
  


10   she couldn't breathe and it was very frightening,
  


11   she had panic attacks, and so there was a lot of
  


12   detail about that.
  


13          The Administrative Law Judge was saying
  


14   that there wasn't, but the case that should be
  


15   applied and we cited in the brief is the AutoZone
  


16   case, where it does set the standard, and it
  


17   lines up with what Mrs. Shroff testified about.
  


18   What we're saying is that Ms. Shroff, on that
  


19   issue, should have prevailed.  Now, there was no
  


20   analysis otherwise, because the Judge cut this
  


21   off at the kneecaps by saying that she was not --
  


22   she didn't qualify as a protected person.
  


23          Now, going on to the -- another objection,
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 1   this was one that the Administrative Law Judge
  


 2   came up with gratuitously, saying that even if --
  


 3   even if Ms. Shroff was a person that qualified
  


 4   for protection under the Indiana Fair Housing
  


 5   Act, there was -- the case should still fail
  


 6   because there was not a nexus between her
  


 7   disability and what she was asking to do, which
  


 8   what was happening here -- and I'm going to get a
  


 9   little bit into the facts -- when she encountered
  


10   this apartment, she had leased it and walked into
  


11   it the first time after she had leased it, and
  


12   encountered a lot of environmental factors,
  


13   smells and so forth, that was causing her to
  


14   begin to have the signs of an asthmatic episode.
  


15          And so, eventually -- many things
  


16   happened, but eventually she did demand her money
  


17   back -- she had paid a deposit and the first
  


18   month's rent and other things -- and to be let
  


19   out of the lease, and the Respondent did refuse
  


20   that.  So, the Administrative Law Judge is
  


21   speaking of that in terms of asking for an
  


22   accommodation.
  


23          There is also a straight-out
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 1   discrimination issue in the case, but there was a
  


 2   nexus between the disability that she has, the
  


 3   asthmatic condition, and what she asked to do.  I
  


 4   mean she -- her particular disability is related
  


 5   to environments, and what we're talking about
  


 6   here is an environment that would last for months
  


 7   under a lease.
  


 8          She would have to live in this place.  She
  


 9   wouldn't be let out of the lease.  She'd be in
  


10   all kinds of trouble if she just left, because
  


11   that would be on her record, she couldn't rent
  


12   someplace else.  So, there is a tremendous nexus
  


13   between the two.
  


14          Go on to the third objection that I'm
  


15   going to speak about, and this is a very
  


16   important one, and a very plainly evident
  


17   erroneous decision by the Administrative Law
  


18   Judge not to treat this case using the -- or
  


19   utilizing the issue of whether or not the
  


20   Respondent engaged in activities that would be in
  


21   violation of the Indiana Civil Rights Law.
  


22          In fact, there's a step back from that,
  


23   because the issue is whether that should even be
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 1   an issue in the case at all.  What the
  


 2   Administrative Law Judge came up with was that
  


 3   the only issue was whether there was a violation
  


 4   of the Indiana Fair Housing Act.  The Director
  


 5   found that there wasn't any issue.
  


 6          Now, that was despite the fact that
  


 7   Mr. Bradley and I had submitted a joint
  


 8   prehearing statement specifying that that was one
  


 9   of the issues in the case.  So, Ms. Shroff, way
  


10   back to the beginning of the thing, when she
  


11   filed her claim of housing discrimination, that
  


12   recited that she was requesting relief under both
  


13   the Indiana Fair Housing Act and the Indiana
  


14   Civil Rights Law.
  


15          Plus, we have a regulation of the
  


16   Commission that is very specifically, as I've
  


17   cited it in the brief and quoted it, that it is
  


18   possible for the parties to agree to issues -- to
  


19   litigate issues that were not issue -- were not
  


20   issues going into the case; in other words, in
  


21   the course of the hearing, and even after there's
  


22   a final order.
  


23          This whole thing is very possible.  The
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 1   Administrative Law Judge would decline to do
  


 2   that, and there's going to be a big difference in
  


 3   how this case might be determined, because the
  


 4   standards for who is disabled under the Indiana
  


 5   Civil Rights Law appear to be relaxed and less
  


 6   detailed than what it takes to get protection as
  


 7   a protected person under the Indiana Fair Housing
  


 8   Act.  I'm frankly surprised that we are not here
  


 9   today with the Indiana Civil Rights Law liability
  


10   not being something we're talking about.
  


11          The next issue is the whole thing about
  


12   the Administrative Law Judge not having authority
  


13   to enter a -- an order granting the Respondent's
  


14   motion for summary judgment -- not for summary
  


15   judgment, for judgment on the evidence.  This is
  


16   what happened:  At the two-day hearing, I was
  


17   presenting on behalf of the Director, his case,
  


18   and then that went over into the second day, and
  


19   then the Director rested his case, and it was
  


20   time for Mr. Bradley to present on behalf of the
  


21   Respondent.
  


22          At that point, Mr. Bradley submitted a
  


23   written motion for judgment on the evidence; in
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 1   other words, asking that the Judge rule on the
  


 2   evidence that was -- I presented on behalf of the
  


 3   Director up to that point, and up to when I
  


 4   rested.
  


 5          And the ulti -- ultimately there was
  


 6   briefing and so forth, the Judge did not rule
  


 7   that day, but we went ahead and agreed that
  


 8   Mr. Bradley should go ahead and put on the
  


 9   evidence that the Respondent was prepared to
  


10   offer provisionally and pending briefing and
  


11   argument, which we had on the motion, and whether
  


12   that motion, there was even any authority for the
  


13   Administrative Law Judge, on behalf of the
  


14   Commission, to grant such a motion.
  


15          Now, the Commission does not have the
  


16   authority to grant such a motion.  If you were --
  


17   had -- way back in December for this hearing, had
  


18   tried this case, which you have every right to do
  


19   as a group en banc, as referred to in legal
  


20   terminology, you could not have entertained such
  


21   a motion.  You would have had to have listened to
  


22   the entire thing.
  


23               MR. SCHULTZ:  Five minutes remaining.
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 1               MR. BREMER:  And I got that from the
  


 2   law, the powers of the Commission.  It says that
  


 3   you may enter findings of fact and conclusions of
  


 4   law after a hearing, not in the middle of the
  


 5   hearing, not before it's over with, but after a
  


 6   hearing.
  


 7          The same thing should apply here.  You
  


 8   have no regulations which permit you to get into
  


 9   the trial rules except for a summary judgment
  


10   motion and for purposes of discovery.  This whole
  


11   thing of granting a motion like was granted here
  


12   is not a topic that was available at the time
  


13   this hearing took place.
  


14          And then the next objection has to do with
  


15   what the Administrative Law Judge -- the standard
  


16   of evidence that the Administrative Law Judge
  


17   used to determine whether the motion should be
  


18   granted.  We have submitted material in our -- in
  


19   our brief that the standard should have been
  


20   whether there was a rebuttable inference, whether
  


21   there was an inference.
  


22          But what the Administrative Law Judge was
  


23   holding us to was whether there had to be
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 1   substantial and reliable evidence, so a more
  


 2   rigorous standard was imposed.  This -- this case
  


 3   should be sent back for various reasons, and we
  


 4   have specific suggestions.  We may not have time
  


 5   within the time that's left, but I'm going to
  


 6   start through them, and tell you what the
  


 7   Complainant wants to happen.
  


 8          The Complainant, on that first issue --
  


 9               MR. SCHULTZ:  Three minutes
  


10   remaining.
  


11               MR. BREMER:  -- the Complainant asks
  


12   that the Commission reject the recommendation and
  


13   find that Ms. Shroff was qualified for protection
  


14   as a disabled person, and to make other
  


15   findings -- direct her to make other findings
  


16   that would be consistent with that and issue --
  


17   and address the other issues in the case.
  


18          We also ask that the Commissioners find --
  


19   remand and have the Direct -- the Administrative
  


20   Law Judge, in her decision, find that a nexus did
  


21   exist between what Ms. Shroff's disability was
  


22   and what she was asking for as a reasonable
  


23   accommodation.
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 1          We also ask that the Commission remand
  


 2   with instructions that the Indiana Civil Rights
  


 3   Law should be considered by the Administrative
  


 4   Law Judge in -- as an issue to rule on in this
  


 5   case.
  


 6          We also ask that the matter be remanded,
  


 7   that -- with instructions that the Administrative
  


 8   Law Judge is to rule on the full record of the
  


 9   hearing and not just on the Complainant's case.
  


10          And we also ask that the Commission
  


11   instruct the Administrative Law Judge to use the
  


12   correct standard, the rebuttable inference
  


13   standard, instead of substantial and reliable
  


14   standard.
  


15          Thank you.
  


16               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


17          At this time, we'll hear the Com -- we'll
  


18   here from the Respondent.  You have 15 minutes.
  


19               MR. BRADLEY:  Thank you, Chair Slash.
  


20          This Commission should affirm the ALJ's
  


21   ruling for four reasons.  First, Indiana law
  


22   explicitly provides that the ALJ may grant
  


23   motions presented to her.  There's authority from
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 1   the Indiana Court of Appeals that explains the
  


 2   standards that apply to such rulings.  The
  


 3   Complainant's argument today fails to acknowledge
  


 4   this controlling precedent disposing of that
  


 5   issue.
  


 6          Second, the ALJ properly applied Indiana
  


 7   precedent that prohibits parties from consenting
  


 8   to jurisdiction.  Because the parties cannot
  


 9   consent to jurisdiction over the ICRL claims, the
  


10   ALJ and the Commission lack authority to rule on
  


11   it, because there was never a probable cause
  


12   finding, which is required by the law.
  


13          Third, asthma is not a disability, and
  


14   even if it was, Ms. Shroff failed to present any
  


15   evidence that the cause is substantial limitation
  


16   of a major life activity.  And even if her asthma
  


17   could be a disability, she did not present any
  


18   evidence linking her normal use of the apartment
  


19   to that disability.
  


20          Fourth, if we have time to get to it, the
  


21   Indiana statutes do permit River Pointe to
  


22   recover its attorneys fees and costs.  The
  


23   Complainant's briefing improperly asks this
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 1   Commission to ignore that controlling precedent.
  


 2          I'm going to point out just a couple of
  


 3   key pieces of evidence that are material here.
  


 4   As Mr. Bremer has discussed, the aggrieved
  


 5   person's asserted disability is asthma.
  


 6   Ms. London, who is Ms. Shroff's daughter, did not
  


 7   present any evidence that she experienced any
  


 8   asthma symptoms or concerns.  Her claim should
  


 9   just outright be dismissed.
  


10          As for Ms. Shroff, the Director's
  


11   recitation of her medical history is not relevant
  


12   here, because the evidence establishes she did
  


13   not experience any asthma symptoms during her
  


14   normal use of the apartment.  Her September 3rd,
  


15   2015 letter to River Pointe didn't mention any
  


16   asthma concerns or symptoms.  That's Exhibit 19
  


17   in the record.
  


18          Instead, the evidence establishes she only
  


19   experienced asthma symptoms after she violently
  


20   and destructively ripped up the carpets in the
  


21   apartment.  She did not present any expert
  


22   medical testimony or evidence regarding these
  


23   life symptoms, and her symptoms were so minor
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 1   that either she did not need her rescue inhaler,
  


 2   she did not need a nebulizer, or, if needed, her
  


 3   rescue inhaler immediately resolved her symptoms.
  


 4          But again, she -- the record shows she
  


 5   only had symptoms after she tore out the carpets
  


 6   and padding.  It's also important to note she
  


 7   never went to a doctor or hospital due to these
  


 8   alleged symptoms, and she continued to return to
  


 9   the apartment after experiencing what she claimed
  


10   were breathing problems.
  


11          It's also important to point out that
  


12   Ms. Shroff did not have any specialized training
  


13   in identification of pet urine or mold, nor did
  


14   she present any third-party evidence or testimony
  


15   that the carpets were contaminated.
  


16          To the contrary, there were four different
  


17   nonparties who presented uncontroverted evidence
  


18   that establishes that the carpets were not
  


19   contaminated:  A man named Ed Frutig of Chem-Dry,
  


20   who Ms. Shroff selected as a carpet cleaning
  


21   company; Aladdin's, a carpet installation
  


22   company; Enviro-Decon, a company who conducted
  


23   mold testing and found no issues; and the
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 1   Mishawaka Department of Code Enforcement, who
  


 2   inspected the entire apartment.
  


 3          Mr. Bremer's recitation of what attorneys
  


 4   call the procedural history, just how we got
  


 5   here, is largely correct.  There was a hearing, a
  


 6   final hearing, on December 3rd and 4th.  The
  


 7   Complainant presented its case-in-chief -- well,
  


 8   I guess in this case the Director presented his
  


 9   case-in-chief -- that included testimony,
  


10   cross-examination, and a number of exhibits that
  


11   were admitted.
  


12          Neither party ever presented rebuttal
  


13   evidence, and that's important, because once the
  


14   Director rested, the Complainant had put forth --
  


15   or the Director had put forth all of his evidence
  


16   in support of his allegations.  All of that
  


17   evidence is at issue in the motion today.
  


18          And as Mr. Bremer pointed out, once the
  


19   Com -- once the Director rested, River Pointe
  


20   made an oral and written motion for involuntary
  


21   dismissal, which the ALJ ultimately granted, and
  


22   that's why we are here.
  


23          So, River Pointe's motion for involuntary
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 1   dismissal is limited to the evidence presented
  


 2   during the Director's case-in-chief, but as a
  


 3   practical matter, if this Commission reverses
  


 4   that ruling and returns the case to the ALJ, the
  


 5   ALJ will have the full panoply of evidence
  


 6   available to her to review the case.
  


 7          That will include River Pointe's evidence,
  


 8   and although it's not at issue, I will submit to
  


 9   you, Commissioners, that nothing in River
  


10   Pointe's compels a different result other than
  


11   judgment for River Pointe.  So, a reversal here
  


12   is most likely going to result in the same
  


13   substantive outcome.  River Pointe will succeed.
  


14   But there's no need to reverse, because there's
  


15   no evidence to support the Claimant's -- or the
  


16   Director's claims, and the ALJ properly granted
  


17   involuntary dismissal here.
  


18          Let's first address the authority issue
  


19   that Mr. Bremer raised.  The Administrative Law
  


20   Judge has authority to adjudicate the motion at
  


21   issue.  Both of the parties agreed that the Civil
  


22   Rights Commission, like all state administrative
  


23   agencies, enjoy those powers that are conferred
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 1   on it by the General Assembly.
  


 2          The parties also agree to the Commission's
  


 3   expressive statutory authority as found in
  


 4   Indiana Fair Housing Act, in Indiana Civil Rights
  


 5   Law, and the Administrative Orders and Procedure
  


 6   Act.  Each of these statutory schemes authorize
  


 7   an ALJ to rule on motions.  The Indiana Civil
  


 8   Rights Law says an Administrative Law Judge
  


 9   appointed under this subsection has the same
  


10   powers and duties as a Commissioner sitting as an
  


11   ALJ.  I'm going to come back to that in just a
  


12   moment.
  


13          The Indiana Fair Housing Act says that
  


14   Indiana Code Section 4-21.5 governs hearing on
  


15   Fair Housing Act claims.  Of course, we know
  


16   Indiana Code Section 4-21.5 is the Administrative
  


17   Orders and Procedures Act.  So, AOPA is
  


18   referenced in both the Civil Rights and the Fair
  


19   Housing Acts.
  


20          AOPA says that the Administrative Law
  


21   Judge may, among other things, rule on, quote,
  


22   any other motion.  That's Indiana
  


23   Code 4-21.5-3-25(e).  Similarly, 910 Indiana
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 1   Administrative Code, Article 2, Rule 7, Section 2
  


 2   empowers the ALJ to, quote, dispose of motions,
  


 3   procedural requests, and similar matters.
  


 4          These statutory provisions, the Indiana
  


 5   Administrative Procedures Act and the
  


 6   Administrative Code, govern this Commission, and
  


 7   they empower the ALJ to rule on motions, without
  


 8   limitation of the type of motion.  That includes
  


 9   River Pointe's motion here.  The Complainant
  


10   argues that the Civil Rights Commission has not
  


11   adopted the Trial Rules, thus, 41(b) motions are
  


12   improper, but that ignores the statutes in the
  


13   Administrative Code that I just described.
  


14          Courts do not interpret statutes in the
  


15   manner that renders any part of them meaningless,
  


16   but that's what the Director is asking you to do
  


17   here today; interpret the AOPA statute and the
  


18   Administrative Code in a manner that renders
  


19   meaningless the provision that authorizes ALJ's
  


20   to grant motions.  That's impermissible.
  


21   Instead, this motion was properly before the ALJ.
  


22          We also cited the case of Bankhead versus
  


23   Walker in our materials, where the Indiana Court
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 1   of Appeals adjudicated a nearly identical motion
  


 2   without any question of whether it was
  


 3   procedurally proper.  So, the ALJ has authority
  


 4   to rule on the motion.
  


 5          That brings us to the standard.  Trial
  


 6   Rule 41(b) provides the standard.  It's upon the
  


 7   weight of the evidence.  That typically means
  


 8   preponderance of the evidence under Indiana law.
  


 9   This is the lowest of three standards.  A civil
  


10   procedure professor once described it in football
  


11   terms as the ball is just over the 50-yard line
  


12   into the enemy territory.
  


13          The next standard's a little more
  


14   amorphous; it's clear and convincing.  It's kind
  


15   of the intermediate standard between
  


16   preponderance, but less than beyond a reasonable
  


17   doubt, and from our crime shows on TV, we all
  


18   know beyond a reasonable doubt is the standard
  


19   that applies in criminal proceedings.
  


20          The Court of Appeals has confirmed that
  


21   the preponderance of the evidence test is
  


22   essentially a test of sufficiency of the
  


23   evidence.  This is from the cases that the ALJ
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 1   relied on in her ruling.
  


 2          But all of this is nothing more than an
  


 3   academic exercise, because the ALJ correctly
  


 4   found there was no reliable evidence to create a
  


 5   rebuttable inference in favor of Complainant's
  


 6   claims.  We're not at the 50-yard line.  The ball
  


 7   hasn't even been kicked off yet.
  


 8          Similarly, the Director's argument
  


 9   regarding the standard of review is a red
  


10   herring.  The Bankhead case I mentioned earlier
  


11   resolves the Complainant's -- the issue that the
  


12   Director raises here that provides the standard
  


13   of review, which I just discussed.  So, the
  


14   Director's argument about the standard is just
  


15   simply a red herring and not in concert with
  


16   controlling law.
  


17          That brings us to the substance of the
  


18   motion, and there's four reasons why it should be
  


19   granted -- or affirmed, rather.  First, the
  


20   parties cannot convert jurisdiction via consent.
  


21   I explained earlier that the parties agreed
  


22   Indiana legislature creates the administrative
  


23   agencies and gives them their powers.
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 1          The Indiana Court of Appeals has
  


 2   consistently held that the parties cannot confer
  


 3   jurisdiction upon an administrative agency by
  


 4   consent or agreement.  The cases cited there were
  


 5   the Howell and the Gorman cases.  The ALJ was
  


 6   proper in finding that it lacked jurisdiction to
  


 7   rule on the ICRL claim, because there was no
  


 8   probable cause finding.  A probable cause finding
  


 9   is necessary to proceed with a Civil Rights Law
  


10   claim.
  


11          Now, the Director does not dispute that
  


12   there was a lack of probable cause.  Instead, he
  


13   incorrectly argues that the parties consented,
  


14   but jurisdiction issues trump procedural issues.
  


15   Simply because the parties consented is
  


16   irrelevant.  If the Court lacks jurisdiction, it
  


17   cannot proceed, or in this case, if the ALJ or
  


18   the Commission lacks jurisdiction, it can't
  


19   proceed to the procedural rules.
  


20               MR. SCHULTZ:  Five minutes remaining.
  


21               MR. BRADLEY:  Thank you.
  


22          The Indiana Court of Appeals has held that
  


23   you can't consent to jurisdiction.  That disposes
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 1   of the Civil Rights Law issue.
  


 2          Second, as described in our briefing,
  


 3   asthma is not a disability recognized in the law.
  


 4   The parties don't really meaningfully dispute
  


 5   that the person's entitled to protection under
  


 6   the Fair Housing Act, the Civil Rights Laws, or
  


 7   the ADA if she is substantially limited in a
  


 8   major life activity.  Of course, what's key here
  


 9   is the word "substantial."
  


10          The Director cites the federal cases
  


11   interpreting the ADA in support of his arguments.
  


12   It is a concession that federal cases control in
  


13   these situations.  One such case the Director
  


14   mentioned, I believe, was the EEOC versus
  


15   AutoZone case that explains "substantially
  


16   limited" means considerable or to a large degree.
  


17          Although this is a general proposition of
  


18   law that River Pointe does not dispute, the
  


19   AutoZone case is distinguishable because it does
  


20   not address asthma, nor do any of the cases cited
  


21   in it.  Instead, the party in AutoZone suffered
  


22   from a back injury that caused myofascial
  


23   tenderness.  That prevented him from doing things
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 1   like the major life activity of chair upholstery.
  


 2          There's no evidence here that Ms. Shroff
  


 3   had a substantial impairment.  River Pointe
  


 4   instead cited five cases, each of which held that
  


 5   asthma, combined with other maladies, does not
  


 6   rise to the level of a disability.
  


 7          Moreover, there's no evidence here that
  


 8   Ms. Shroff presented any evidence of a
  


 9   substantial limitation of her life activity, and
  


10   that's the point:  Substantial.  Nor does
  


11   Complainant's briefing address this issue.  At
  


12   best, Ms. Shroff testified that her asthma is
  


13   controlled by the use of her inhaler.  This is
  


14   hardly a substantial limitation, and the ALJ was
  


15   correct here.
  


16          Third, even assuming Ms. Shroff's asthma
  


17   is a substantial limitation of a major life
  


18   activity, there's no evidence of a nexus between
  


19   the apartment and her asthma.
  


20               MR. SCHULTZ:  Three minutes
  


21   remaining.
  


22               MR. BRADLEY:  Thank you.
  


23          The Complainant failed to present any
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 1   reliable evidence of contamination in the
  


 2   apartment.  As I mentioned, four separate
  


 3   nonparties all reviewed it.  None of them found
  


 4   any issues.  Ms. Shroff does not have any
  


 5   training to identify mold or toxic substances.
  


 6   So, all that's left is her lay, self-serving
  


 7   testimony that the apartment had some
  


 8   contamination in it.
  


 9          This lack of credible evidence is crucial,
  


10   because Ms. Shroff's presence in the apartment,
  


11   by itself, did not trigger any asthma symptoms.
  


12   Nor did Complainant point to any contrary
  


13   evidence in its briefing or its presentation
  


14   today.  Ms. Sharp's testimony is wholly
  


15   irrelevant, which is addressed in the briefing,
  


16   because it lends nothing to the fact that
  


17   Ms. Shroff did not experience these symptoms
  


18   during normal use.
  


19          Instead, the evidence established that
  


20   Ms. Shroff experienced asthma symptoms only after
  


21   she destructively ripped up the carpets and the
  


22   padding, and this bears repeating, I think, for
  


23   the third time.  The only time Ms. Shroff
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 1   experienced any alleged asthma symptoms is after
  


 2   she voluntarily undertook to tear out the carpets
  


 3   and the padding.  This is hardly a normal,
  


 4   ordinary, or customary use of an apartment.
  


 5          And that's the point that the
  


 6   Administrative Law Judge made.  Ms. Shroff's use
  


 7   of the apartment in its normal condition did not
  


 8   cause any issues.  It wasn't until she misused
  


 9   the apartment that she began to allegedly
  


10   experience issues.
  


11          Even then, there's no evidence that
  


12   suggests anything in the apartment caused those
  


13   symptoms.  For all we know, it could have been
  


14   the physical activity of tearing out the carpets
  


15   that caused her to suffer symptoms.  The ALJ
  


16   correctly found that the Complainant failed to
  


17   establish a nexus between the apartment and
  


18   Ms. Shroff's asthma.
  


19          Fourth, and finally, the Administrative
  


20   Law Judge correctly interpreted Indiana law
  


21   regarding the recovery of attorneys fees and
  


22   costs.  There's a statute here that's at issue,
  


23   and one section of the Administrative Code.
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 1   Indiana Code 22-9.5-9-1 says that the
  


 2   Commission --
  


 3               MR. SCHULTZ:  One minute remaining.
  


 4               MR. BRADLEY:  Thanks.
  


 5          -- in any administrative hearing may award
  


 6   reasonable attorney fees to the prevailing party.
  


 7   Similarly, 910 IAC 2-7-9-G says that the
  


 8   prevailing party, except for the ICRC, may apply
  


 9   for attorneys fees.  There are two sections here
  


10   that unambiguously state River Pointe is entitled
  


11   to its fees.  Those sections must be applied as
  


12   they are written, which is exactly what the ALJ
  


13   did.
  


14          An award of fees would not frustrate the
  


15   purpose of the Civil Rights Law, or be
  


16   inconsistent with the legislature's intent,
  


17   because the Commission cannot get that far.  When
  


18   faced with an unambiguous statute, it must be
  


19   applied as it is written.  For these reasons, the
  


20   Commission should affirm the ALJ's decision in
  


21   all respects.
  


22               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


23          At this time, we'll allow for four minutes
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 1   each in response to one another.  We can begin
  


 2   with Mr. Bremer.
  


 3               MR. BREMER:  Thank you.
  


 4          The Administrative Law Judge does refer to
  


 5   the fact that if there is a limiting factor, that
  


 6   the whole idea that the Administrative Law Judges
  


 7   can dip into the trial rules and grant similar
  


 8   kinds of motions that are found in the trial
  


 9   rules -- I'm sorry; I don't have my video on.
  


10   Someone turned me off here.
  


11                (Pause in proceedings.)
  


12               MR. BREMER:  Okay.  I'm on now.
  


13   Thank you.
  


14          So, the limiting factor is that the
  


15   Commission has the authority to issue findings of
  


16   fact and conclusions of law only after a hearing.
  


17   It does not -- that's the limiting factor.  There
  


18   is an indication that there is a legal restraint
  


19   on just wholesale bringing in the Trial Rules,
  


20   and particularly this kind of a motion that was
  


21   granted in this case.
  


22          Now, also, the Commission has cited to --
  


23   I mean we have cited to you the -- a number of
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 1   cases, almost all of them, 56 different
  


 2   decisions, that are -- all have to do with the
  


 3   same agency, the Utility Regulatory Commission,
  


 4   and they did explicitly have a rule that said
  


 5   that they could draw upon the Trial Rules for
  


 6   guidance in ruling on motions.  So, the Civil
  


 7   Rights Commission does not have anything similar
  


 8   to that.
  


 9          She did have symptoms when she was in the
  


10   apartment before she got into the uncovering the
  


11   carpet, bringing it up to see if there were urine
  


12   stains on the reverse of the carpet from cats and
  


13   dogs and that sort of thing.  She was having
  


14   trouble breathing.  She had to leave the
  


15   apartment early.  That's in the record.
  


16          And the real point is this:  She had a
  


17   lifetime of experience with asthma and asthma
  


18   symptoms.  She knew what caused her -- and what
  


19   jeopardized her to get into a state where she
  


20   would have difficulty breathing.  She was faced
  


21   with the prospect of living in the place for
  


22   months on end that would -- showed all of the
  


23   warning signs of something --
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 1               MR. SCHULTZ:  One minute remaining,
  


 2   Mr. Bremer.
  


 3               MR. BREMER:  -- that was going to
  


 4   make her exhibit the symptoms of asthma.  The
  


 5   testimony of Ms. Sharp, who rented -- leased the
  


 6   apartment after Ms. Shroff left, and did not
  


 7   continue in the apartment, is that there was --
  


 8   there were noxious odors in that place.
  


 9          And this is exactly what Ms. Shroff
  


10   identified as something that would prompt her to
  


11   have constriction of her airways, have to use her
  


12   equipment, to deal with that.  It's not
  


13   reasonable to think that someone with asthma is
  


14   going to have to be left with the choice of
  


15   living in a place that's going to make them
  


16   vulnerable to asthma outbreaks.
  


17          Now, as far as the --
  


18               MR. SCHULTZ:  That's four minutes.
  


19               MR. BREMER:  -- ability of the
  


20   Commission --
  


21               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Mr. Bremer, I
  


22   believe that's the end of your time.  We've
  


23   reached the four-minute mark.
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 1               MR. BREMER:  Oh, I didn't hear what
  


 2   he said.  I'm sorry.
  


 3               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  That's okay.
  


 4   Thank you very much.
  


 5          Okay.  We'll hear from Respondent.
  


 6               MR. BRADLEY:  Yes.  Thank you, Chair
  


 7   Slash.
  


 8          I just have two quick points that I'll
  


 9   make in response.  The first one is:  The statute
  


10   and the Administrative Code sections that I began
  


11   with today both authorize an ALJ to rule on any
  


12   motion.  There's no limitation there.  We don't
  


13   disagree with the Director or Mr. Bremer that he
  


14   cited 56 different cases from the IURC, and the
  


15   IURC has adopted the Trial Rules, but that's not
  


16   relevant here, because the Code and the
  


17   Administrative Code both authorize the ALJ to
  


18   grant motions.
  


19          As to the symptoms, I simply -- I disagree
  


20   with Mr. Bremer's statement.  I have found no
  


21   evidence in the record, and the ALJ found no
  


22   evidence in the record, that Ms. Shroff suffered
  


23   from breathing problems before she began taking
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 1   out the carpets, and that's what's key here.
  


 2          Ms. Shroff testified that things like
  


 3   smoke and pet urine would exacerbate her asthma,
  


 4   yet there was evidence in the record presented
  


 5   that she is a smoker, or was a smoker, and that
  


 6   she maintains pet birds, which I learned during
  


 7   the hearing pet birds also urinate, and she can
  


 8   clean that urine with no problem.
  


 9          So, what this might have come down to is
  


10   the fact that there just simply wasn't any
  


11   evidence that while Ms. Shroff was in the
  


12   apartment in its normal and ordinary condition,
  


13   that it was -- that that caused her symptoms.
  


14   And I'm confident that we can say there's no such
  


15   evidence in the record.
  


16          And so, based on that, even if
  


17   Ms. Shroff -- even if, I'm sorry, asthma was a
  


18   disability, which we do not concede, because it's
  


19   not a substantial limitation according to the
  


20   controlling precedent, there's just no nexus
  


21   between the apartment and her asthma.  And for
  


22   those reasons, we would ask that you affirm the
  


23   Administrative Law Judge's order.
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 1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Thank you.
  


 2   That concludes the discussion portion of this
  


 3   oral argument.
  


 4          At this time, I want to make sure that we
  


 5   are going through the objections in a way that we
  


 6   are able to follow clearly for the record.  Let's
  


 7   see here.  Deputy Director Schultz, would you
  


 8   want to call each of the objections as they were
  


 9   submitted so that we might call for motions
  


10   should they exist?
  


11               MR. SCHULTZ:  So, unless there is an
  


12   objection from the parties, I think procedurally
  


13   the easiest thing to do, since we are dealing
  


14   with a number of objections that have to be
  


15   addressed individually, would be simply to have
  


16   Mr. Bremer read off each individual one.
  


17               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.
  


18               MR. SCHULTZ:  Read it off, discuss if
  


19   warranted, and then vote.  But again, I -- I
  


20   don't want to -- I want to allow opposing counsel
  


21   the opportunity to object to that procedure.
  


22               MR. BRADLEY:  I think that's
  


23   perfectly fine with me.  Mr. Bremer's going to
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 1   represent his objections as stated, so that's
  


 2   fine.
  


 3               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.
  


 4          And as we get started here, Commissioners,
  


 5   I did not -- I apologize that I did not call for
  


 6   any questions from Commissioners.  We didn't have
  


 7   any during the arguments, but I want to make sure
  


 8   that if there were any, that we have time to
  


 9   address them.
  


10                     (No response.)
  


11               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  We can
  


12   proceed with the procedure as stated a moment
  


13   ago, Mr. Bremer.
  


14               MR. BREMER:  I'm going to address
  


15   these in the order in which the objections are
  


16   raised in the brief --
  


17               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


18               MR. BREMER:  -- this time around.
  


19          The first objection was that the
  


20   Administrative Law Judge lacked the statutory
  


21   authority to grant the Respondent's motion.  And
  


22   with regard to that, we're asking that the
  


23   Commissioners reject that opinion and remand to
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 1   the Administrative Law Judge with instructions to
  


 2   issue a decision based on the entire record of
  


 3   the hearing and not just at the point when the
  


 4   Complainant rested.
  


 5               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


 6          Commissioners, is there a motion or
  


 7   interest in this objection?
  


 8                     (No response.)
  


 9               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  I'm likely going
  


10   to get some interesting pauses here, just in case
  


11   there are folks that need to get off mute or need
  


12   to think briefly.
  


13                     (No response.)
  


14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  We will
  


15   move to -- hearing none, we will move to
  


16   objection no. 2.
  


17               MR. BREMER:  That is the objection
  


18   that involved the inappropriate evidentiary
  


19   burden that was utilized by the Administrative
  


20   Law Judge in valuating the -- a motion for
  


21   judgment on the evidence.  Now, that's assuming
  


22   that you agree that the Judge had the authority
  


23   to grant that motion.
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 1          So, this is a fallback one, where we're
  


 2   saying when you -- or asking that if you don't --
  


 3   if you -- if it comes to a point where that is --
  


 4   you feel that was appropriate to even entertain
  


 5   that motion, that the Administrative Law Judge
  


 6   receive this case back to evaluate the motion in
  


 7   light of the rebuttable inference standard
  


 8   instead of the substantial and reliable evidence
  


 9   standard that seems to have been used.
  


10               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


11          Commissioners, is there a motion or
  


12   interest in further discussion on this objection?
  


13                     (No response.)
  


14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Hearing none,
  


15   we'll move to objection no. 3.
  


16               MR. BREMER:  The third objection has
  


17   to do with the fact that the -- although the
  


18   parties went into the hearing planning to
  


19   adjudicate claims under both the Indiana Fair
  


20   Housing Act and the Indiana Civil Rights Law, the
  


21   Administrative Law Judge disregarded that, and
  


22   also the regulation that permitted the parties to
  


23   take that kind of action, which is cited in full
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 1   in the brief.
  


 2          What we want is for the Commissioners to
  


 3   remand this case back to the Administrative Law
  


 4   Judge with instructions to adjudicate the claim
  


 5   both under the Indiana Civil Rights Law -- under
  


 6   the Indiana Civil Rights Law as well as the
  


 7   Indiana Fair Housing Act.
  


 8               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


 9          Commissioners, is there a motion or
  


10   interest in this objection?
  


11                     (No response.)
  


12               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Hearing
  


13   none, we'll move to objection no. 4.
  


14               MR. BREMER:  The next objection has
  


15   to do with the finding of the Administrative Law
  


16   Judge that Ms. Shroff did not qualify for
  


17   protected status under the Indiana Fair Housing
  


18   Act.
  


19          On this one, we ask that the Commission
  


20   not accept that and remand with instructions to
  


21   the Administrative Law Judge to find that
  


22   Ms. Shroff did have the status as a protected
  


23   person, and to make other findings that would
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 1   be -- go along with that on the balance of the
  


 2   issues in the case.
  


 3               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


 4          Commissioners, is there a motion or
  


 5   further interest in objection no. 4?
  


 6                     (No response.)
  


 7               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Hearing
  


 8   none, we'll move to objection no. 5.
  


 9               MR. BREMER:  The next objection has
  


10   to do with the Administrative Law Judge ruling
  


11   that there was not a nexus as required by law
  


12   between the disability of Ms. Shroff and the
  


13   accommodation she sought, which was to be
  


14   relieved of the obligation to live in the
  


15   apartment under the lease.
  


16          And on this one, we're asking that that be
  


17   rejected and that the Administrative Law Judge,
  


18   on remand, would be instructed to find that there
  


19   was a sufficient nexus between the two.  Of
  


20   course, that depends on the treatment of the
  


21   objection that we just talked about before that.
  


22               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


23          Commissioners, is there a motion or
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 1   interest in objection no. 5?
  


 2               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I do have a
  


 3   question.
  


 4               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Uh-huh.  Please
  


 5   proceed.
  


 6               COMM. BLACKBURN:  At what point after
  


 7   Ms. Shroff moved in did she complain that the
  


 8   environment was so unhealthy she could not stay
  


 9   there?  How long had she been there before she
  


10   complained?
  


11               MR. BREMER:  Is that addressed to me?
  


12               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Comm. Blackburn,
  


13   are you addressing that question towards
  


14   Mr. Bremer?
  


15               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Yes.
  


16               MR. BREMER:  Well, I have to add
  


17   this:  Ms. Shroff never really did move in.  She
  


18   just -- the situation she encountered, she took a
  


19   few personal possessions there, never moved in
  


20   any furniture in, never lived there overnight,
  


21   anything like that.  But with that understanding,
  


22   it was very soon.  It was like by the next day
  


23   she was bringing this problem with the odor in







62


  
 1   the apartment to the attention of the property
  


 2   manager.
  


 3               MR. BRADLEY:  Chair Slash, may I say
  


 4   something as well?
  


 5               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Sure.
  


 6               MR. BRADLEY:  I think the record
  


 7   evidence will show that the complaints escalated
  


 8   as time went on.  We don't disagree that
  


 9   Ms. Shroff really didn't move in.  There were a
  


10   few minor things -- when the Varin -- the River
  


11   Pointe folks went in, they thought no one lived
  


12   there because there was no major furniture or
  


13   anything.
  


14          She did almost immediately complain about
  


15   the smell and the odor, but that complaint, which
  


16   is the Complainant's Exhibit No. 5, said nothing
  


17   of asthma symptoms, trouble breathing or anything
  


18   like that.  It wasn't until later that she began
  


19   to complain about her asthma symptoms, at least
  


20   that's what we believe the record evidence shows.
  


21               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


22          I'll ask the question once more:  In
  


23   regards to objection no. 5, Commissioners have a
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 1   motion in regards to objection no. 5?
  


 2               COMM. BLACKBURN:  No.
  


 3               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Hearing
  


 4   none, we'll move to objection no. 6.  Thank you.
  


 5               MR. BREMER:  This has to do with the
  


 6   prevailing party provision.  The
  


 7   Administrative -- the award of attorneys fees,
  


 8   possibly against the Director, that was implied
  


 9   in what the Judge put in the recommended order,
  


10   that that could be a possible outcome or a
  


11   possible -- possibility, that the Respondent
  


12   could seek and obtain the cost of their attorneys
  


13   fees from the Director as a consequence of them
  


14   winning this case.
  


15          We have submitted extensive material in
  


16   our brief on that, and we're recommending and
  


17   asking that the Commissioners find that that is
  


18   not going to be an avenue under the proper
  


19   interpretation of the -- of the law for the
  


20   Respondent to be able to recover attorneys fees
  


21   like that, and to let the Administrative Law
  


22   Judge know that that kind of thing should not be
  


23   entertained.
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 1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


 2          Commissioners, is there a motion or
  


 3   interest in objection no. 6?
  


 4                     (No response.)
  


 5               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Hearing none,
  


 6   we'll move to objection no. 7.
  


 7               MR. BREMER:  This is minor.  There --
  


 8   we objected on the basis of there being material
  


 9   quoted in a footnote in the order that the
  


10   Administrative Law Judge is asking you to adopt
  


11   as a final order, in which the footnote itself
  


12   explains that this material was not relied upon
  


13   and was not in the record.  So, we're asking that
  


14   the Administrative Law Judge's decision -- that
  


15   particular footnote be purged from the decision.
  


16               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Thank you.
  


17          Commissioners, is there a motion or
  


18   interest in objection no. 7?
  


19               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Would you repeat
  


20   it, please?
  


21               MR. BREMER:  Yes, I'd be happy to.
  


22   This was the objection, the seventh objection,
  


23   that had to do with the impropriety of the
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 1   Administrative Law Judge specifying evidence that
  


 2   was not proper to be relied upon, again, in the
  


 3   decision as a whole, in a footnote, and we were
  


 4   objecting to that information appearing -- that
  


 5   footnote actually being in there with that
  


 6   information, because if this goes up on further
  


 7   review, we do not want that in there.  It wasn't
  


 8   used anyway.
  


 9               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


10          With that clarity, Commissioners, is there
  


11   a motion or interest in objection no. 7?
  


12               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I would support its
  


13   being removed.
  


14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


15          Is there a second to that motion?
  


16                     (No response.)
  


17               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Hearing none,
  


18   thank you for the motion; however, we will move
  


19   on to motion [sic] no. 8.
  


20               MR. BREMER:  I've ran out of
  


21   objections.
  


22               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.
  


23               MR. BREMER:  There were seven.
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 1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.  I
  


 2   just wanted to make sure that if there was
  


 3   anything further, that we were in good shape
  


 4   here.  I appreciate that, and thank you for
  


 5   following that procedural exercise in this way,
  


 6   making sure that since we are virtual and we are
  


 7   not holding things in the same space, that we are
  


 8   all on the same page.
  


 9          Okay.  So, with that, we have had the oral
  


10   argument, we have had opportunity for both
  


11   parties to address one another -- one another's
  


12   objections and discussion.  We did not have any
  


13   adoption of any of the objections as submitted,
  


14   so at this time a motion is needed to affirm or
  


15   to dissolve the ALJ's orders.  Is there a motion?
  


16                     (No response.)
  


17               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  At this time, is
  


18   there a motion to affirm or dissolve the ALJ's
  


19   order from the Commissioners?
  


20               UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Mine's just a
  


21   case.  This isn't even a productive meeting.
  


22   It's a -- it's literally a -- like a trial.
  


23               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Slash, I believe
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 1   that was not a -- not one of the attorneys, and I
  


 2   went ahead and muted the individual.
  


 3               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you very
  


 4   much.
  


 5          Commissioners, at this time we do need a
  


 6   motion to affirm or dissolve the ALJ's order in
  


 7   regard to this case.
  


 8               COMM. RAMOS:  Madam Chair, I'm sorry;
  


 9   I was on mute.  So, I recommend that we affirm
  


10   the ALJ's decision.
  


11               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


12          Is there a second?
  


13               COMM. JACKSON:  Comm. Jackson,
  


14   second.
  


15               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


16          At this time, we shall call the roll.
  


17               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Blackburn?
  


18               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, aye.
  


19               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Harrington?
  


20               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.
  


21               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Jackson?
  


22               COMM. JACKSON:  Aye.
  


23               MR. SCHULTZ:  Vice-Chair Ramos?
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 1               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.
  


 2               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Tolliver?
  


 3               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Aye.
  


 4               MR. SCHULTZ:  Chair Slash?
  


 5               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.
  


 6               MR. SCHULTZ:  Motion passes, six,
  


 7   zero.
  


 8               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you very
  


 9   much.
  


10          That concludes today's oral argument.
  


11   Thank you both for being present with us and for
  


12   participating.
  


13               MR. BREMER:  Thank you.
  


14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  We still
  


15   have a little bit of our agenda remaining here
  


16   for the day.  The next case that we have in this
  


17   section of our agenda is ICRC/Rickard/Small
  


18   versus Varsity Properties Management Corporation,
  


19   Case No. HOfs20060223.  It was submitted to the
  


20   Commission of June 30th, 2021, and the ALJ
  


21   dismissed the Indiana Fair Housing Act claims
  


22   based on notice of election, and the ALJ
  


23   dismissed the Indiana Civil Rights Law claim as
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 1   nonjurisdictional, and the objection period has
  


 2   passed and this matter is closed.
  


 3          I do not believe we have a vote on this
  


 4   one, but I'm going to ask for clarity.
  


 5               MR. SCHULTZ:  This is -- a vote is
  


 6   required to affirm or deny or modify this one.
  


 7               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


 8          Commissioners, is there a motion to
  


 9   affirm, modify or dissolve; right?  That's the
  


10   three on this one, too?
  


11               MR. SCHULTZ:  Or vacate, yes.
  


12               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Move we --
  


13               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Or vacate.
  


14               COMM. BLACKBURN:  -- affirm.
  


15               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Is there a
  


16   motion?
  


17               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I move we affirm.
  


18               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.  That
  


19   was Comm. Blackburn.
  


20          Is there a second?
  


21               COMM. HARRINGTON:  This is
  


22   Comm. Harrington.  I second.
  


23               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
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 1          Shall we call roll?
  


 2               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Blackburn?
  


 3               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, aye.
  


 4               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Harrington?
  


 5               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.
  


 6               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Jackson?
  


 7               COMM. JACKSON:  Aye.
  


 8               MR. SCHULTZ:  Vice-Chair Ramos?
  


 9               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.
  


10               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Tolliver?
  


11               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Aye.
  


12               MR. SCHULTZ:  Chair Slash?
  


13               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.
  


14               MR. SCHULTZ:  Motion passes, six,
  


15   zero.
  


16               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


17          The next case is Johnson versus Brook
  


18   Knoll Village, Case No. EMra18040 --
  


19               MS. SHAFFER:  Hi.  Am I able to ask a
  


20   quick question?
  


21               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Sure.  Can you
  


22   state your name for the record, please?
  


23               MS. SHAFFER:  Yeah.  My name is Lisa.
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 1   I'm just a student paying attention to the
  


 2   Commission today.  What was the motion that was
  


 3   passed on that first case?
  


 4               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Are you speaking
  


 5   in regard to the oral argument that we just held?
  


 6   This is a great teaching moment, I suppose.
  


 7               MS. SHAFFER:  Yes, I am.
  


 8               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Yes.  So, we did
  


 9   the -- the call on that one was we had a motion
  


10   to affirm the ALJ's original finding in the ALJ's
  


11   order.
  


12               MS. SHAFFER:  Okay.  Perfect.  Thank
  


13   you.
  


14               THE REPORTER:  Chair Slash, could you
  


15   have her state her last name, please?
  


16               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Yes, please.
  


17          Can you please state your first and last
  


18   name?  And spelling is always helpful for the
  


19   court reporter.
  


20               MS. SHAFFER:  Yeah.  It's Lisa
  


21   Shaffer, L i s a, S h a f f e r.
  


22               THE REPORTER:  Thank you.
  


23               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thanks.
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 1          Okay.  And I'll return back to the
  


 2   agenda.  The next case that we have, this was one
  


 3   that I was beginning as a -- just a moment ago,
  


 4   Johnson versus Brock Knoll Village, Case
  


 5   No. EMra18040181, submitted to the Commission on
  


 6   July 14th, 2021.  The ALJ dismissed the matter on
  


 7   its merits by granting a motion for summary
  


 8   judgment filed by the Respondent.  The objection
  


 9   period in this matter has closed.
  


10          Is there a motion to affirm, modify or
  


11   vacate this?
  


12               COMM. RAMOS:  Ramos, motion to
  


13   affirm.
  


14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


15          Is there a second?
  


16               COMM. JACKSON:  Comm. Jackson,
  


17   second.
  


18               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


19          Shall I call the roll?
  


20               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Blackburn?
  


21               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, aye.
  


22               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Harrington?
  


23               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.
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 1               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Jackson?
  


 2               COMM. JACKSON:  Aye.
  


 3               MR. SCHULTZ:  Vice-Chair Ramos?
  


 4               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.
  


 5               MR. SCHULTZ:  Vice-Chair Ramos?
  


 6               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.
  


 7               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Tolliver?
  


 8               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Aye.
  


 9               MR. SCHULTZ:  Chair Slash?
  


10               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.
  


11               MR. SCHULTZ:  Motion passes, six,
  


12   zero.
  


13               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


14          The next case is Banks versus Taco Bell,
  


15   Bell American Group, LLC, Case No. PAra18050248,
  


16   submitted to the Commission on July 19th, 2021.
  


17   The ALJ dismissed the matter after the parties
  


18   reached a settlement.  The ALJ recommended that
  


19   the Commission accept the consent agreement filed
  


20   by the parties.  The objection period in this
  


21   matter has closed.
  


22          Is there a motion to affirm, modify or
  


23   vacate the ALJ's order?
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 1               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I move to affirm.
  


 2               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


 3   That's Comm. Blackburn.
  


 4          Is there a second?
  


 5               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Comm. Harrington,
  


 6   second.
  


 7               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


 8          Shall we call the roll?
  


 9               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Blackburn?
  


10               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, aye.
  


11               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Harrington?
  


12               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.
  


13               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Jackson?
  


14               COMM. JACKSON:  Aye.
  


15               MR. SCHULTZ:  Vice-Chair Ramos?
  


16               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.
  


17               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Tolliver?
  


18               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Aye.
  


19               MR. SCHULTZ:  Chair Slash?
  


20               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.
  


21               MR. SCHULTZ:  Motion passes, six,
  


22   zero.
  


23               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
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 1          The next section of our agenda, ALJ
  


 2   Decisions that are Automatically Confirmed.  At
  


 3   this time we do not have any, and we also would
  


 4   not need a vote at all, either, because they're
  


 5   automatically adopted and approval is not needed.
  


 6   So, thank you very much for that.
  


 7          We'll now move to meeting dates for the
  


 8   remainder of 2021.  I'm glad to have everybody
  


 9   here with us today.  We have made it through the
  


10   summer, which tends to be a little bit difficult
  


11   for scheduling and making sure that we are all
  


12   present.
  


13          For the time being, we look that we should
  


14   still be virtual, and hope that everyone remains
  


15   safe and healthy and well.  The coming date that
  


16   we have is September 17th.  Does any -- do any
  


17   members of the Commission have conflicts with
  


18   that date?
  


19               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I have a distinct
  


20   possibility that I won't be able to be in the
  


21   meeting.  It's the day after my birthday, and I
  


22   may not be around here, so I may have been
  


23   assigned a case.  If you need to reassign that --
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 1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Thank you.
  


 2               COMM. BLACKBURN:  -- you could.
  


 3               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Thank you.
  


 4               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Thank you.
  


 5               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  I will actually
  


 6   go ahead and do that.  I'll make an amendment to
  


 7   the further -- to the earlier record, if you
  


 8   don't mind me doing that here.  Slightly
  


 9   confusing moment, but I'll go ahead and do it,
  


10   because you do have a birthday the day before.
  


11   The Case EMha21030073 I will assign to myself,
  


12   Chair Slash, and remove from Comm. Blackburn.
  


13               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Thank you.
  


14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  You're welcome,
  


15   and Happy Early Birthday.
  


16          Do any other Commissioners have conflicts
  


17   with the September date?
  


18                     (No response.)
  


19               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  And then
  


20   looking ahead, does anyone have an issue with the
  


21   October date?
  


22                     (No response.)
  


23               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  I personally have
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 1   an issue with the October date, but I do not have
  


 2   to stop the show.  I just would like to get it on
  


 3   the record to date that I may not be available
  


 4   for the October date.
  


 5               COMM. TOLLIVER:  I will not be
  


 6   available for the October date.
  


 7               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  So, shall
  


 8   we do a little bit of an out-of-class activity
  


 9   via e-mail to make sure that we have the right
  


10   date for October, so that we have the right
  


11   amount of Commissioners present?
  


12               MR. SCHULTZ:  Yeah, we'll -- the ICRC
  


13   staff will work with the Commissioners to
  


14   identify an alternative date.
  


15               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.  And
  


16   we can look at November and December at a further
  


17   time.  I do like to get us just a couple of
  


18   months in advance, if that's okay with the other
  


19   Commissioners.
  


20          Okay.  So, at this time, we do not have
  


21   any Election, Training or Other.  Thanks to the
  


22   Commissioners that were able to participate in
  


23   our earlier training.
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 1          Are there any Announcements?
  


 2               MR. SCHULTZ:  Just -- if I may, Chair
  


 3   Slash.  It's Tim Schultz.  Just a reminder that
  


 4   our ability to conduct these meetings 100 percent
  


 5   virtually is contingent on the emergency health
  


 6   order from the Governor that is currently in
  


 7   effect to the end of this month, but there's no
  


 8   way of knowing if that will be extended beyond
  


 9   August.
  


10          So, just be mindful that if it's not
  


11   extended, we have to go back to the regular
  


12   open-door requirements, which would require three
  


13   members to physically be present in order for
  


14   the -- in order to conduct the meeting.
  


15               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


16          Any Commissioners have any -- any
  


17   questions or concerns in regarding to that?
  


18               COMM. RAMOS:  No.
  


19               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.
  


20          Are there any Announcements?
  


21                     (No response.)
  


22               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Is there
  


23   anyone here for Public Comment today?







79


  
  
  


 1                     (No response.)
  


 2               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  I didn't
  


 3   recall hearing anyone at the beginning, but I
  


 4   wanted to make sure, just in case.
  


 5          With that being said, we've used almost
  


 6   every minute of our time today, and we have
  


 7   arrived at 2:56, and I will go ahead and -- we'll
  


 8   go ahead and dismiss today's meeting.
  


 9               COMM. RAMOS:  Thank you.
  


10               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Bye, everybody.
  


11               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Thank you.
  


12               MR. SCHULTZ:  Bye.
  


13               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Bye.
  


14                        -  -  -
             Thereupon, the proceedings of


15             August 20, 2021 were concluded
                  at 2:57 o'clock p.m.


16                        -  -  -
  


17
  


18
  


19
  


20
  


21
  


22
  


23
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 3   Court Reporter and Notary Public residing in the
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            1                                   1:33 o'clock p.m.

                                                August 20, 2021

            2                        -  -  -



            3               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  We can go



            4   ahead and get started.



            5               MR. SCHULTZ:  Okay.  Well, in that



            6   case, before we officially begin and take roll



            7   call, I'd ask all non-Commission members to



            8   identify themselves at this time, please.



            9               MR. BREMER:  Frederick S. Bremer.



           10   I'm a Commission staff attorney.



           11               MR. BRADLEY:  This is Jacob Bradley.



           12   I am counsel for the Respondent in the matter



           13   that's going to be heard today.



           14               MS. ALLEN:  Michelle Allen.  I'm the



           15   Director of the Office of Administrative Law



           16   Proceedings.



           17               MR. RIPPERGER:  Brady Ripperger, with



           18   the Fair Housing Center of Central Indiana.



           19               REV. MYERS:  Rev. Daisy Myers, from



           20   San Diego, California.



           21               MR. SCHULTZ:  Any other individuals



           22   joining us today who are non-Commission members?



           23               MS. SLONE:  Stephanie Slone, with the
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            1   Indiana Civil Rights Commission.



            2               MS. OJO:  Christiana Ojo, from the



            3   Indiana Civil Rights Commission.



            4               MR. SCHULTZ:  And I'm Tim Schultz,



            5   with the Indiana Civil Rights Commission, and I



            6   am currently admitting one more person.  The



            7   individual who just joined the meeting, can you



            8   identify yourself, please?



            9               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Comm. Blackburn.



           10               MR. SCHULTZ:  Okay.



           11          All right.  Chair Slash, I believe all



           12   participants have identified themselves.  Would



           13   you like me to conduct the roll call for the



           14   Commission members at this time?



           15               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Yes, please.



           16               MR. SCHULTZ:  Okay.



           17          Comm. Blackburn, are you present?



           18               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, here.



           19               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Harrington?



           20               COMM. HARRINGTON:  I'm here.



           21               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Jackson?



           22               COMM. JACKSON:  Present.



           23               MR. SCHULTZ:  Vice-Chair Ramos?
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            1               COMM. RAMOS:  Here.



            2               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Tolliver?



            3               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Here.



            4               MR. SCHULTZ:  And Chair Slash?



            5               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Present.  Thank



            6   you.



            7               MR. SCHULTZ:  All right.  We have six



            8   Commission members present.



            9               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



           10          Okay.  And at this time, we'll go ahead



           11   and call our meeting to order at 1:34 p.m., the



           12   Indiana Civil Rights Commission's August 2020



           13   meeting [sic].  Thank you.



           14          Shall we announce the agenda?  We have



           15   quite a few people who are over the phone and



           16   likely not in front of a screen today.



           17               MR. SCHULTZ:  Yes.  So, today we



           18   have, under Old Business, three appeals that were



           19   previously assigned to Commissioners for final



           20   decision.  Under New Business, we are appointing



           21   Commissioners to consider a total of seven new



           22   appeals.  And then under the Review of ALJ



           23   Decisions and Orders, we have a total of four
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            1   decisions being considered -- or preliminary



            2   decisions being considered by the Commission



            3   members for deliberation and vote.  And I think



            4   that's -- that's it, aside from confirming the



            5   future Commission dates.



            6               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you very



            7   much.



            8          At this time, I'd like to hear a motion to



            9   approve the previous meeting minutes.  Is there



           10   one?



           11               COMM. RAMOS:  So moved --



           12               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



           13               COMM. RAMOS:  -- Comm. Ramos.



           14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Is there a



           15   second?



           16               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Second, Blackburn.



           17               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



           18          Being moved and seconded, shall we call



           19   the roll?



           20               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Blackburn?



           21               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, here.



           22               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Harrington?



           23               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.
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            1               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Jackson?



            2               COMM. JACKSON:  Aye.



            3               MR. SCHULTZ:  Vice-Chair Ramos?



            4               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.



            5               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Tolliver?



            6               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Aye.



            7               MR. SCHULTZ:  And Chair Slash?



            8               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.



            9               MR. SCHULTZ:  Motion passes, six,



           10   zero.



           11               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



           12          Okay.  At this time, we'll have the ICRC's



           13   Director's Report.



           14               MR. SCHULTZ:  Yeah.  And I don't --



           15   unless he didn't speak up, I don't believe



           16   Executive Director Greg Wilson is on -- is in the



           17   meeting today, so I guess that leaves it to me.



           18          As you know, we didn't meet in July.  It's



           19   been, you know, fairly busy.  We've had a number



           20   of events that we've attended or presented at.



           21   For example, we -- the Commission did have the



           22   opportunity to present at the Black Expo



           23   Education Conference about a month ago, I guess.
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            1          And that was a great opportunity, as



            2   always.  You know, we're always honored to be a



            3   part of that.  I believe that the audience was --



            4   it was virtual, of course, and the audience was



            5   somewhere around the number of 5,000, according



            6   to the Expo representatives, so that was -- of



            7   course, you know, very happy to do so.



            8          And I believe that the Executive Director



            9   Wilson is trying to enter the meeting now, so



           10   I'll invite him to join.



           11          Greg, did you just sign in?



           12               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  His audio may not



           13   be connected yet.



           14               MR. SCHULTZ:  Director Wilson, did



           15   you just join us?



           16                     (No response.)



           17               MR. SCHULTZ:  Well, maybe he's having



           18   a tech issue, but just for the court



           19   reporter's -- for the record, Greg Wilson did



           20   just join the meeting.



           21          We -- the agency also had the opportunity



           22   earlier this month to have a booth at the Asian



           23   Fest on the north side of the city.  That was
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            1   another wonderful event where we got to, you



            2   know, pass out literature and talk to individuals



            3   about our mission.



            4          The Governor presented at the event, as



            5   did the Mayor, and very successful.  I know I



            6   personally was there for a while, and a lot of



            7   people were very interested in asking questions



            8   about what we were doing -- or what we do.



            9          In addition to that -- I know I always



           10   plug this, because I'm always very excited about



           11   it -- our testing program has continued for Fair



           12   Housing.  We have a number of those completed



           13   tests subject to active investigations now, and



           14   the testing is continuing.



           15          We are looking to maybe modify that



           16   program a little bit, instead of just doing kind



           17   of, you know, tests that -- I don't want to say



           18   at random, but without -- you know, that there's



           19   no basis to begin a test, we're just collecting



           20   housing projects for providers.



           21          What we are now doing is we are working



           22   with a vendor, maybe test housing providers that



           23   have an active complaint, and that way it's
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            1   something that other organizations such as ICRC



            2   do to help build an investigation file.  And so,



            3   we're always looking to continuously improve that



            4   program and make it more useful, and I think it's



            5   just a great example of something new that we're



            6   doing that is very beneficial.



            7          And I think that's -- that's really the



            8   highlights that I wanted to touch on, but again,



            9   I'll ask if Director Wilson was able to join



           10   us -- or if he's able to talk to us at the



           11   moment.



           12                     (No response.)



           13               MR. SCHULTZ:  I don't think so, so



           14   that's the Director's Report, Chair Slash.



           15               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you very



           16   much.



           17          Does anyone have any questions regarding



           18   the Director's Report, any of our Commissioners?



           19               COMM. RAMOS:  Madam Chair, a couple



           20   of comments.  Number one, I wanted to extend my



           21   appreciation for the inclusion of the Cultural



           22   Commissions Reports that you've had over the last



           23   several months.  It really is very, very
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            1   valuable.  I find it fascinating, and that's good



            2   work.  So, I wanted to commend the Commission for



            3   that.  It's a great piece of work.



            4          And number two, looking at the reports, I



            5   also notice that in the month of June, you had



            6   440,000 hits, which normally it was like 10,000,



            7   and then it just spiked tremendously, and I was



            8   just curious what the phenomenon was that would



            9   cause that much of a spike.



           10               MR. SCHULTZ:  I do not know.  I would



           11   probably -- I'll have to check with our Internal



           12   Affairs team to see if they can identify the



           13   cause.  You know, the fact that we had some



           14   presentations at some fairly large events might



           15   be part of that.



           16          And I can see Greg now, so I don't know,



           17   Greg, if you are able to --



           18               MR. WILSON:  Yeah.



           19          So, good afternoon, everyone.  So, I had



           20   some issues.  I'm sure we all have had those.  It



           21   could be human error, but I think it was system



           22   error.



           23          So, anyway, a couple of things.  Tim's
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            1   correct -- and thank you, Comm. Ramos, for those



            2   comments.  We did a lot -- we're doing a lot of



            3   marketing, a lot of radio, talking about a lot of



            4   issues that were important to people, everything



            5   from, you know, the moratorium and where



            6   resources that were available if you needed help.



            7   That's between our partnership that we have with



            8   IACDA.



            9          Again, then we did some radio interviews,



           10   where we talked about, you know, our mediation



           11   program and talked about Civil Rights and how



           12   that if you feel like you've been discriminated



           13   against, you could go to our Web site and get



           14   more information.



           15          And so, we've done a lot of little things,



           16   and I think the fact that people have a lot more



           17   time to use technology since they've been doing



           18   it all through COVID, I think that's helped our



           19   engagement a lot.  So, it's just been a lot of



           20   things we've been doing.  We have a great



           21   External Affairs team that have been working



           22   extremely hard.



           23          And I don't know where we are on the
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            1   report.  It was a struggle in getting in here,



            2   but I wanted to add, too, is that if Tim hasn't



            3   said so yet, now we're working on filling a lot



            4   of our positions, especially in the Internal



            5   Affairs area, where we now actually hired a



            6   really strong education and outreach person,



            7   somebody who can actually do more of our actual



            8   training and education in the community.  We



            9   didn't have that component before, and Virgil



           10   just hired a very talented person, and I think



           11   everybody will appreciate when they see some of



           12   the work that she'll be doing out there.



           13          And then also, McKenzie has really been



           14   doing a lot with our Web site, and you'll see --



           15   you're going to see a great update.  We're moving



           16   some of the things that are not relevant and some



           17   of the things that we know need to go away or



           18   disappear.  It's been a long process, and Chair



           19   Ram -- I mean Comm. Ramos and Slash, Chair Slash



           20   and others, you know that we had so many



           21   different things we had to fix or improve



           22   throughout the last couple of years.



           23          And finally, I think we're at a point
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            1   where we can make social media more valuable to



            2   us, as well as our Web site, because we find more



            3   people want to know more information about what



            4   we're doing, how can we help them, and what



            5   services that we provide, because we have been



            6   doing those partnerships, like I said, with



            7   IACDA, which is not what we've done in the past,



            8   which talks about the support and the financial



            9   resources for those who are renters or those who



           10   just need help with the mortgage payments.  So, I



           11   think that's -- that's made a lot of opportunity



           12   for engagement.



           13          But we have a lot of new people coming on,



           14   I think, in the Intake area, and I don't know if,



           15   Tim, you covered this or not, but stop me if you



           16   have so I don't bore them with it, but in Intake,



           17   especially since we have Christiana, she's been



           18   doing some great things with improving those



           19   processes, making them more customer-service



           20   friendly, as well as now we've given her more



           21   tools and resources to process the inquiries a



           22   lot faster than what we were able to do it in the



           23   past.
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            1          So, you're going to see the numbers go up



            2   tremendously, I believe, with the way she has now



            3   changed how we do business in the Intake area.



            4   So, I'm very excited for her as well as some of



            5   the other new components that we have.



            6          I think everybody knows Adoley has went on



            7   to -- that's one thing.  People come, and I



            8   always say, "Just give me a year, give me what



            9   you've got."  I know we have a lot of talent they



           10   bring, but it's just been fantastic that we've



           11   gotten this talent, which has helped us improve



           12   processes that I think has made us more



           13   effective.



           14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.  Thank



           15   you for your additions.  We had -- we were just



           16   getting to the end of the Director's Report, so



           17   it was perfect timing, so thank you.



           18               MR. WILSON:  Yeah.  I'm sorry if I



           19   took more time out.



           20               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  No, no, it was



           21   perfect.  Thank you.



           22          Are there any questions for Director



           23   Wilson?
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            1                     (No response.)



            2               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Thank you



            3   so much.  And I do echo Vice-Chair Ramos.  The



            4   updates have been really great to really



            5   understand how the Cultural Commissions are



            6   working, but also I just applaud the Commission's



            7   presence at larger events and taking advantage of



            8   all of the virtual opportunities to reach larger



            9   audiences.



           10               MR. WILSON:  Thank you.



           11               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Hearing that,



           12   we'll move on to Old Business, and we will start



           13   with the case Mayers versus Marion Superior



           14   Court, Case No. EMra19120129.



           15          Vice-Chair Ramos, do you have a



           16   recommendation?



           17               COMM. RAMOS:  Yes.  And the



           18   recommendation in the Mayers versus Marion



           19   Superior Court, I recommend that we uphold the



           20   Director's finding of no probable cause.



           21               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



           22          Is there a motion?



           23               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I move we accept
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            1   that recommendation.



            2               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



            3          Is there a second?



            4               COMM. JACKSON:  Second, Comm. Jack --



            5               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Comm. Harrington,



            6   second.



            7               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  That was



            8   Comm. Blackburn with the motion, Comm. Harrington



            9   with the second.



           10          Shall we call the roll?



           11                     (No response.)



           12               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  I can do it if



           13   you want me to.



           14               MS. OJO:  Comm. Blackburn?



           15               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, aye.



           16               MS. OJO:  Vice-Chair Ramos?



           17               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.



           18               MS. OJO:  Comm. Harrington?



           19               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.



           20               MS. OJO:  Comm. Tolliver?



           21               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Aye.



           22               MS. OJO:  Comm. Jackson?



           23               COMM. JACKSON:  Aye.
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            1               MS. OJO:  Chair Ramos -- I'm sorry.



            2   Chair Slash?



            3               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.



            4               MS. OJO:  Vice-Chair Ramos?



            5               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.



            6               MS. OJO:  Motion passes, six.



            7               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



            8               MR. SCHULTZ:  My apologies on that.



            9   I didn't realize I was muted, which, of course,



           10   you would think by now I would catch that kind of



           11   thing.



           12               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  It's okay.  Just



           13   remember when we said we were going to extend



           14   some grace today?  Lots of grace today, because



           15   technology is being, you know, a little special.



           16               MR. SCHULTZ:  Yeah.



           17               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Last week was



           18   Friday the 13th, but today we're just extending



           19   grace.



           20          Okay.  In the second case, Castillo versus



           21   MV Lofts at Roberts LLC.  That's Case



           22   No. HOha20060206.



           23          Comm. Jackson, do you have a

�







                                                                19







            1   recommendation?



            2               COMM. JACKSON:  I recommend to uphold



            3   the Director's finding, no probable cause.



            4               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



            5          Is there a motion?



            6               COMM. RAMOS:  So moved, Ramos.



            7               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



            8          Is there a second?



            9               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Second,



           10   Comm. Harrington.



           11               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Shall we call the



           12   roll?



           13               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Blackburn?



           14               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, yes.



           15               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Harrington?



           16               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.



           17               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Jackson?



           18               COMM. JACKSON:  Aye.



           19               MR. SCHULTZ:  Vice-Chair Ramos?



           20               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.



           21               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Tolliver?



           22               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Aye.



           23               MR. SCHULTZ:  Chair Slash?
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            1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.



            2               MR. SCHULTZ:  Motion passes, six,



            3   zero.



            4               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



            5          The next case -- and I apologize for



            6   messing this name up -- Capodagil -- Capodagli



            7   versus Chris Allan Tompkins.  That's



            8   Case HOse21020055.



            9          Comm. Tolliver, do you have a



           10   recommendation?



           11               COMM. TOLLIVER:  I'd recommend that



           12   we uphold the Commission's administrative



           13   dismissal due to lack of jurisdiction.



           14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



           15          Is there a motion?



           16               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I move we accept.



           17               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



           18          Is there a -- and that's Comm. Blackburn?



           19               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Yes.



           20               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



           21          Is there a second?



           22               COMM. RAMOS:  Ramos, aye -- or



           23   second.
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            1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



            2          Shall I call the roll?



            3               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Blackburn?



            4               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, aye.



            5               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Harrington?



            6               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.



            7               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Jackson?



            8               COMM. JACKSON:  Aye.



            9               MR. SCHULTZ:  Vice-Chair Ramos?



           10               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.



           11               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Tolliver?



           12               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Aye.



           13               MR. SCHULTZ:  And Chair Slash?



           14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.



           15               MR. SCHULTZ:  Motion passes, six,



           16   zero.



           17               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



           18          Okay.  Moving to New Business, we have



           19   quite a few cases to assign today, and I'll try



           20   my best to call them off and read them off.



           21   However, we'll just ask that they be sent



           22   directly to the Commissioners as well.



           23          In the first case -- I do not want to mess
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            1   this last name up.  Can I just call the case



            2   number?  Is that possible?  Okay.



            3               MR. SCHULTZ:  Sure.



            4               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  In the first



            5   case, EMha21030073, I will assign that one to



            6   Comm. Blackburn; in the next one, EMha20120853,



            7   Comm. Harrington; Case PAra21050133,



            8   Comm. Jackson; Case EMra20110814, Comm. Ramos;



            9   Case EDra19090496, Comm. Tolliver;



           10   Case EMno20120052, Chair Slash; and the final



           11   one, Case 24D-2020-00267, Comm. Harrington.



           12          Okay.  That might have been a pretty



           13   efficient way to do that.  And for clarity,



           14   Commissioners, they'll be sent to you for more



           15   clarity, just to make sure that we have the



           16   proper assignments.



           17          Okay.  At this time, we do not have any



           18   motions or other filings in New Business, and so



           19   we will move to reviewing ALJ Decisions and



           20   Orders, and our first case is the case that we



           21   have parties present for oral arguments.



           22          And so, I'll just kind of give us a brief



           23   intro, ICRC -- Case of ICRC versus Varin/River
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            1   Pointe, LLC, Case HOha151001734.  The case was



            2   submitted to the Commission on April 15th, 2021.



            3   The ALJ conducted a hearing on the merits and



            4   dismissed the matter.



            5          Subsequently an objection was submitted



            6   for consideration by the Commission.  The



            7   Commission set a briefing for June 21st and an



            8   oral argument for August 2021.  The parties have



            9   submitted their briefing materials concerning the



           10   Complainant's objection to the ALJ's initial



           11   decision.



           12          At this time, I'll ask that party



           13   representatives introduce themselves, beginning



           14   with the representative for the Respondent.



           15               MR. BRADLEY:  Good afternoon, Chair



           16   Slash.  My name is Jake Bradley.  I am the



           17   attorney for the Respondent.



           18               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



           19          And on the Complainant's side?



           20               MR. BREMER:  Yes.  My name is Fred



           21   Bremer.  I'm a staff attorney at the Indiana



           22   Civil Rights Commission, here for the



           23   Complainant, the Director.
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            1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



            2          At this time, we'll begin the oral



            3   argument.  As staff counsel for the agency filed



            4   objections to the ALJ decision, that party will



            5   have the first opportunity to present to



            6   Commission members.  Presentations will be



            7   limited to 15 minutes, and each party will have



            8   four minutes to respond after the initial



            9   presentations are complete.  Commission members,



           10   if you have questions, you may ask them at any



           11   time.



           12          Do we have a timekeeper, and is there



           13   going to be a show of time on screen?  This is an



           14   administrative question that I think we should



           15   have asked slightly earlier.  If not, I can --



           16               MR. SCHULTZ:  I --



           17               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  -- set my own



           18   timer.



           19               MR. SCHULTZ:  This is Tim Schultz.  I



           20   will keep time and provide --



           21               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.



           22               MR. SCHULTZ:  -- a five-minute and



           23   three-minute and one-minute warning.
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            1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Thank you.



            2          Mr. Bremer?



            3               MR. BREMER:  Thank you.



            4          We're here today to present on behalf of



            5   the objections filed by Commission -- Director



            6   Wilson in the case of Wilson versus River Pointe



            7   Apartments.  I'm not going to get into the



            8   factual background right now.  We have seven



            9   objections.  I'm not going to treat those in the



           10   same order in which they were treated in brief



           11   and in the objections filing.



           12          So, I'll start out with -- the first one



           13   has to do with the basic decision of the



           14   Administrative Law Judge, recommending that you



           15   find that the aggrieved person, Carrie Shroff,



           16   did not qualify for protected status as a



           17   disabled person.  And our objection to that is



           18   that she does qualify under applicable federal



           19   law.



           20          She had enough of a recitation of how her



           21   asthma affected her life.  It wasn't just



           22   general, it was a lot of detail.  She had to



           23   use -- take an inhaler with her at all times.
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            1   She had to use it two times a week.  She had



            2   episodes in her past when she encountered



            3   environmental factors such as smoke, the smell of



            4   urine and other noxious odors, where this would



            5   cause her to become unable to breathe and would



            6   have to use that device, and in some cases would



            7   have to also use a nebulizer, which provided some



            8   medication that caused the airways to be



            9   constricted.  And she also had situations where



           10   she couldn't breathe and it was very frightening,



           11   she had panic attacks, and so there was a lot of



           12   detail about that.



           13          The Administrative Law Judge was saying



           14   that there wasn't, but the case that should be



           15   applied and we cited in the brief is the AutoZone



           16   case, where it does set the standard, and it



           17   lines up with what Mrs. Shroff testified about.



           18   What we're saying is that Ms. Shroff, on that



           19   issue, should have prevailed.  Now, there was no



           20   analysis otherwise, because the Judge cut this



           21   off at the kneecaps by saying that she was not --



           22   she didn't qualify as a protected person.



           23          Now, going on to the -- another objection,
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            1   this was one that the Administrative Law Judge



            2   came up with gratuitously, saying that even if --



            3   even if Ms. Shroff was a person that qualified



            4   for protection under the Indiana Fair Housing



            5   Act, there was -- the case should still fail



            6   because there was not a nexus between her



            7   disability and what she was asking to do, which



            8   what was happening here -- and I'm going to get a



            9   little bit into the facts -- when she encountered



           10   this apartment, she had leased it and walked into



           11   it the first time after she had leased it, and



           12   encountered a lot of environmental factors,



           13   smells and so forth, that was causing her to



           14   begin to have the signs of an asthmatic episode.



           15          And so, eventually -- many things



           16   happened, but eventually she did demand her money



           17   back -- she had paid a deposit and the first



           18   month's rent and other things -- and to be let



           19   out of the lease, and the Respondent did refuse



           20   that.  So, the Administrative Law Judge is



           21   speaking of that in terms of asking for an



           22   accommodation.



           23          There is also a straight-out
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            1   discrimination issue in the case, but there was a



            2   nexus between the disability that she has, the



            3   asthmatic condition, and what she asked to do.  I



            4   mean she -- her particular disability is related



            5   to environments, and what we're talking about



            6   here is an environment that would last for months



            7   under a lease.



            8          She would have to live in this place.  She



            9   wouldn't be let out of the lease.  She'd be in



           10   all kinds of trouble if she just left, because



           11   that would be on her record, she couldn't rent



           12   someplace else.  So, there is a tremendous nexus



           13   between the two.



           14          Go on to the third objection that I'm



           15   going to speak about, and this is a very



           16   important one, and a very plainly evident



           17   erroneous decision by the Administrative Law



           18   Judge not to treat this case using the -- or



           19   utilizing the issue of whether or not the



           20   Respondent engaged in activities that would be in



           21   violation of the Indiana Civil Rights Law.



           22          In fact, there's a step back from that,



           23   because the issue is whether that should even be
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            1   an issue in the case at all.  What the



            2   Administrative Law Judge came up with was that



            3   the only issue was whether there was a violation



            4   of the Indiana Fair Housing Act.  The Director



            5   found that there wasn't any issue.



            6          Now, that was despite the fact that



            7   Mr. Bradley and I had submitted a joint



            8   prehearing statement specifying that that was one



            9   of the issues in the case.  So, Ms. Shroff, way



           10   back to the beginning of the thing, when she



           11   filed her claim of housing discrimination, that



           12   recited that she was requesting relief under both



           13   the Indiana Fair Housing Act and the Indiana



           14   Civil Rights Law.



           15          Plus, we have a regulation of the



           16   Commission that is very specifically, as I've



           17   cited it in the brief and quoted it, that it is



           18   possible for the parties to agree to issues -- to



           19   litigate issues that were not issue -- were not



           20   issues going into the case; in other words, in



           21   the course of the hearing, and even after there's



           22   a final order.



           23          This whole thing is very possible.  The
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            1   Administrative Law Judge would decline to do



            2   that, and there's going to be a big difference in



            3   how this case might be determined, because the



            4   standards for who is disabled under the Indiana



            5   Civil Rights Law appear to be relaxed and less



            6   detailed than what it takes to get protection as



            7   a protected person under the Indiana Fair Housing



            8   Act.  I'm frankly surprised that we are not here



            9   today with the Indiana Civil Rights Law liability



           10   not being something we're talking about.



           11          The next issue is the whole thing about



           12   the Administrative Law Judge not having authority



           13   to enter a -- an order granting the Respondent's



           14   motion for summary judgment -- not for summary



           15   judgment, for judgment on the evidence.  This is



           16   what happened:  At the two-day hearing, I was



           17   presenting on behalf of the Director, his case,



           18   and then that went over into the second day, and



           19   then the Director rested his case, and it was



           20   time for Mr. Bradley to present on behalf of the



           21   Respondent.



           22          At that point, Mr. Bradley submitted a



           23   written motion for judgment on the evidence; in
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            1   other words, asking that the Judge rule on the



            2   evidence that was -- I presented on behalf of the



            3   Director up to that point, and up to when I



            4   rested.



            5          And the ulti -- ultimately there was



            6   briefing and so forth, the Judge did not rule



            7   that day, but we went ahead and agreed that



            8   Mr. Bradley should go ahead and put on the



            9   evidence that the Respondent was prepared to



           10   offer provisionally and pending briefing and



           11   argument, which we had on the motion, and whether



           12   that motion, there was even any authority for the



           13   Administrative Law Judge, on behalf of the



           14   Commission, to grant such a motion.



           15          Now, the Commission does not have the



           16   authority to grant such a motion.  If you were --



           17   had -- way back in December for this hearing, had



           18   tried this case, which you have every right to do



           19   as a group en banc, as referred to in legal



           20   terminology, you could not have entertained such



           21   a motion.  You would have had to have listened to



           22   the entire thing.



           23               MR. SCHULTZ:  Five minutes remaining.
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            1               MR. BREMER:  And I got that from the



            2   law, the powers of the Commission.  It says that



            3   you may enter findings of fact and conclusions of



            4   law after a hearing, not in the middle of the



            5   hearing, not before it's over with, but after a



            6   hearing.



            7          The same thing should apply here.  You



            8   have no regulations which permit you to get into



            9   the trial rules except for a summary judgment



           10   motion and for purposes of discovery.  This whole



           11   thing of granting a motion like was granted here



           12   is not a topic that was available at the time



           13   this hearing took place.



           14          And then the next objection has to do with



           15   what the Administrative Law Judge -- the standard



           16   of evidence that the Administrative Law Judge



           17   used to determine whether the motion should be



           18   granted.  We have submitted material in our -- in



           19   our brief that the standard should have been



           20   whether there was a rebuttable inference, whether



           21   there was an inference.



           22          But what the Administrative Law Judge was



           23   holding us to was whether there had to be
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            1   substantial and reliable evidence, so a more



            2   rigorous standard was imposed.  This -- this case



            3   should be sent back for various reasons, and we



            4   have specific suggestions.  We may not have time



            5   within the time that's left, but I'm going to



            6   start through them, and tell you what the



            7   Complainant wants to happen.



            8          The Complainant, on that first issue --



            9               MR. SCHULTZ:  Three minutes



           10   remaining.



           11               MR. BREMER:  -- the Complainant asks



           12   that the Commission reject the recommendation and



           13   find that Ms. Shroff was qualified for protection



           14   as a disabled person, and to make other



           15   findings -- direct her to make other findings



           16   that would be consistent with that and issue --



           17   and address the other issues in the case.



           18          We also ask that the Commissioners find --



           19   remand and have the Direct -- the Administrative



           20   Law Judge, in her decision, find that a nexus did



           21   exist between what Ms. Shroff's disability was



           22   and what she was asking for as a reasonable



           23   accommodation.
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            1          We also ask that the Commission remand



            2   with instructions that the Indiana Civil Rights



            3   Law should be considered by the Administrative



            4   Law Judge in -- as an issue to rule on in this



            5   case.



            6          We also ask that the matter be remanded,



            7   that -- with instructions that the Administrative



            8   Law Judge is to rule on the full record of the



            9   hearing and not just on the Complainant's case.



           10          And we also ask that the Commission



           11   instruct the Administrative Law Judge to use the



           12   correct standard, the rebuttable inference



           13   standard, instead of substantial and reliable



           14   standard.



           15          Thank you.



           16               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



           17          At this time, we'll hear the Com -- we'll



           18   here from the Respondent.  You have 15 minutes.



           19               MR. BRADLEY:  Thank you, Chair Slash.



           20          This Commission should affirm the ALJ's



           21   ruling for four reasons.  First, Indiana law



           22   explicitly provides that the ALJ may grant



           23   motions presented to her.  There's authority from
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            1   the Indiana Court of Appeals that explains the



            2   standards that apply to such rulings.  The



            3   Complainant's argument today fails to acknowledge



            4   this controlling precedent disposing of that



            5   issue.



            6          Second, the ALJ properly applied Indiana



            7   precedent that prohibits parties from consenting



            8   to jurisdiction.  Because the parties cannot



            9   consent to jurisdiction over the ICRL claims, the



           10   ALJ and the Commission lack authority to rule on



           11   it, because there was never a probable cause



           12   finding, which is required by the law.



           13          Third, asthma is not a disability, and



           14   even if it was, Ms. Shroff failed to present any



           15   evidence that the cause is substantial limitation



           16   of a major life activity.  And even if her asthma



           17   could be a disability, she did not present any



           18   evidence linking her normal use of the apartment



           19   to that disability.



           20          Fourth, if we have time to get to it, the



           21   Indiana statutes do permit River Pointe to



           22   recover its attorneys fees and costs.  The



           23   Complainant's briefing improperly asks this
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            1   Commission to ignore that controlling precedent.



            2          I'm going to point out just a couple of



            3   key pieces of evidence that are material here.



            4   As Mr. Bremer has discussed, the aggrieved



            5   person's asserted disability is asthma.



            6   Ms. London, who is Ms. Shroff's daughter, did not



            7   present any evidence that she experienced any



            8   asthma symptoms or concerns.  Her claim should



            9   just outright be dismissed.



           10          As for Ms. Shroff, the Director's



           11   recitation of her medical history is not relevant



           12   here, because the evidence establishes she did



           13   not experience any asthma symptoms during her



           14   normal use of the apartment.  Her September 3rd,



           15   2015 letter to River Pointe didn't mention any



           16   asthma concerns or symptoms.  That's Exhibit 19



           17   in the record.



           18          Instead, the evidence establishes she only



           19   experienced asthma symptoms after she violently



           20   and destructively ripped up the carpets in the



           21   apartment.  She did not present any expert



           22   medical testimony or evidence regarding these



           23   life symptoms, and her symptoms were so minor
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            1   that either she did not need her rescue inhaler,



            2   she did not need a nebulizer, or, if needed, her



            3   rescue inhaler immediately resolved her symptoms.



            4          But again, she -- the record shows she



            5   only had symptoms after she tore out the carpets



            6   and padding.  It's also important to note she



            7   never went to a doctor or hospital due to these



            8   alleged symptoms, and she continued to return to



            9   the apartment after experiencing what she claimed



           10   were breathing problems.



           11          It's also important to point out that



           12   Ms. Shroff did not have any specialized training



           13   in identification of pet urine or mold, nor did



           14   she present any third-party evidence or testimony



           15   that the carpets were contaminated.



           16          To the contrary, there were four different



           17   nonparties who presented uncontroverted evidence



           18   that establishes that the carpets were not



           19   contaminated:  A man named Ed Frutig of Chem-Dry,



           20   who Ms. Shroff selected as a carpet cleaning



           21   company; Aladdin's, a carpet installation



           22   company; Enviro-Decon, a company who conducted



           23   mold testing and found no issues; and the
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            1   Mishawaka Department of Code Enforcement, who



            2   inspected the entire apartment.



            3          Mr. Bremer's recitation of what attorneys



            4   call the procedural history, just how we got



            5   here, is largely correct.  There was a hearing, a



            6   final hearing, on December 3rd and 4th.  The



            7   Complainant presented its case-in-chief -- well,



            8   I guess in this case the Director presented his



            9   case-in-chief -- that included testimony,



           10   cross-examination, and a number of exhibits that



           11   were admitted.



           12          Neither party ever presented rebuttal



           13   evidence, and that's important, because once the



           14   Director rested, the Complainant had put forth --



           15   or the Director had put forth all of his evidence



           16   in support of his allegations.  All of that



           17   evidence is at issue in the motion today.



           18          And as Mr. Bremer pointed out, once the



           19   Com -- once the Director rested, River Pointe



           20   made an oral and written motion for involuntary



           21   dismissal, which the ALJ ultimately granted, and



           22   that's why we are here.



           23          So, River Pointe's motion for involuntary
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            1   dismissal is limited to the evidence presented



            2   during the Director's case-in-chief, but as a



            3   practical matter, if this Commission reverses



            4   that ruling and returns the case to the ALJ, the



            5   ALJ will have the full panoply of evidence



            6   available to her to review the case.



            7          That will include River Pointe's evidence,



            8   and although it's not at issue, I will submit to



            9   you, Commissioners, that nothing in River



           10   Pointe's compels a different result other than



           11   judgment for River Pointe.  So, a reversal here



           12   is most likely going to result in the same



           13   substantive outcome.  River Pointe will succeed.



           14   But there's no need to reverse, because there's



           15   no evidence to support the Claimant's -- or the



           16   Director's claims, and the ALJ properly granted



           17   involuntary dismissal here.



           18          Let's first address the authority issue



           19   that Mr. Bremer raised.  The Administrative Law



           20   Judge has authority to adjudicate the motion at



           21   issue.  Both of the parties agreed that the Civil



           22   Rights Commission, like all state administrative



           23   agencies, enjoy those powers that are conferred
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            1   on it by the General Assembly.



            2          The parties also agree to the Commission's



            3   expressive statutory authority as found in



            4   Indiana Fair Housing Act, in Indiana Civil Rights



            5   Law, and the Administrative Orders and Procedure



            6   Act.  Each of these statutory schemes authorize



            7   an ALJ to rule on motions.  The Indiana Civil



            8   Rights Law says an Administrative Law Judge



            9   appointed under this subsection has the same



           10   powers and duties as a Commissioner sitting as an



           11   ALJ.  I'm going to come back to that in just a



           12   moment.



           13          The Indiana Fair Housing Act says that



           14   Indiana Code Section 4-21.5 governs hearing on



           15   Fair Housing Act claims.  Of course, we know



           16   Indiana Code Section 4-21.5 is the Administrative



           17   Orders and Procedures Act.  So, AOPA is



           18   referenced in both the Civil Rights and the Fair



           19   Housing Acts.



           20          AOPA says that the Administrative Law



           21   Judge may, among other things, rule on, quote,



           22   any other motion.  That's Indiana



           23   Code 4-21.5-3-25(e).  Similarly, 910 Indiana
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            1   Administrative Code, Article 2, Rule 7, Section 2



            2   empowers the ALJ to, quote, dispose of motions,



            3   procedural requests, and similar matters.



            4          These statutory provisions, the Indiana



            5   Administrative Procedures Act and the



            6   Administrative Code, govern this Commission, and



            7   they empower the ALJ to rule on motions, without



            8   limitation of the type of motion.  That includes



            9   River Pointe's motion here.  The Complainant



           10   argues that the Civil Rights Commission has not



           11   adopted the Trial Rules, thus, 41(b) motions are



           12   improper, but that ignores the statutes in the



           13   Administrative Code that I just described.



           14          Courts do not interpret statutes in the



           15   manner that renders any part of them meaningless,



           16   but that's what the Director is asking you to do



           17   here today; interpret the AOPA statute and the



           18   Administrative Code in a manner that renders



           19   meaningless the provision that authorizes ALJ's



           20   to grant motions.  That's impermissible.



           21   Instead, this motion was properly before the ALJ.



           22          We also cited the case of Bankhead versus



           23   Walker in our materials, where the Indiana Court
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            1   of Appeals adjudicated a nearly identical motion



            2   without any question of whether it was



            3   procedurally proper.  So, the ALJ has authority



            4   to rule on the motion.



            5          That brings us to the standard.  Trial



            6   Rule 41(b) provides the standard.  It's upon the



            7   weight of the evidence.  That typically means



            8   preponderance of the evidence under Indiana law.



            9   This is the lowest of three standards.  A civil



           10   procedure professor once described it in football



           11   terms as the ball is just over the 50-yard line



           12   into the enemy territory.



           13          The next standard's a little more



           14   amorphous; it's clear and convincing.  It's kind



           15   of the intermediate standard between



           16   preponderance, but less than beyond a reasonable



           17   doubt, and from our crime shows on TV, we all



           18   know beyond a reasonable doubt is the standard



           19   that applies in criminal proceedings.



           20          The Court of Appeals has confirmed that



           21   the preponderance of the evidence test is



           22   essentially a test of sufficiency of the



           23   evidence.  This is from the cases that the ALJ
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            1   relied on in her ruling.



            2          But all of this is nothing more than an



            3   academic exercise, because the ALJ correctly



            4   found there was no reliable evidence to create a



            5   rebuttable inference in favor of Complainant's



            6   claims.  We're not at the 50-yard line.  The ball



            7   hasn't even been kicked off yet.



            8          Similarly, the Director's argument



            9   regarding the standard of review is a red



           10   herring.  The Bankhead case I mentioned earlier



           11   resolves the Complainant's -- the issue that the



           12   Director raises here that provides the standard



           13   of review, which I just discussed.  So, the



           14   Director's argument about the standard is just



           15   simply a red herring and not in concert with



           16   controlling law.



           17          That brings us to the substance of the



           18   motion, and there's four reasons why it should be



           19   granted -- or affirmed, rather.  First, the



           20   parties cannot convert jurisdiction via consent.



           21   I explained earlier that the parties agreed



           22   Indiana legislature creates the administrative



           23   agencies and gives them their powers.

�







                                                                44







            1          The Indiana Court of Appeals has



            2   consistently held that the parties cannot confer



            3   jurisdiction upon an administrative agency by



            4   consent or agreement.  The cases cited there were



            5   the Howell and the Gorman cases.  The ALJ was



            6   proper in finding that it lacked jurisdiction to



            7   rule on the ICRL claim, because there was no



            8   probable cause finding.  A probable cause finding



            9   is necessary to proceed with a Civil Rights Law



           10   claim.



           11          Now, the Director does not dispute that



           12   there was a lack of probable cause.  Instead, he



           13   incorrectly argues that the parties consented,



           14   but jurisdiction issues trump procedural issues.



           15   Simply because the parties consented is



           16   irrelevant.  If the Court lacks jurisdiction, it



           17   cannot proceed, or in this case, if the ALJ or



           18   the Commission lacks jurisdiction, it can't



           19   proceed to the procedural rules.



           20               MR. SCHULTZ:  Five minutes remaining.



           21               MR. BRADLEY:  Thank you.



           22          The Indiana Court of Appeals has held that



           23   you can't consent to jurisdiction.  That disposes
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            1   of the Civil Rights Law issue.



            2          Second, as described in our briefing,



            3   asthma is not a disability recognized in the law.



            4   The parties don't really meaningfully dispute



            5   that the person's entitled to protection under



            6   the Fair Housing Act, the Civil Rights Laws, or



            7   the ADA if she is substantially limited in a



            8   major life activity.  Of course, what's key here



            9   is the word "substantial."



           10          The Director cites the federal cases



           11   interpreting the ADA in support of his arguments.



           12   It is a concession that federal cases control in



           13   these situations.  One such case the Director



           14   mentioned, I believe, was the EEOC versus



           15   AutoZone case that explains "substantially



           16   limited" means considerable or to a large degree.



           17          Although this is a general proposition of



           18   law that River Pointe does not dispute, the



           19   AutoZone case is distinguishable because it does



           20   not address asthma, nor do any of the cases cited



           21   in it.  Instead, the party in AutoZone suffered



           22   from a back injury that caused myofascial



           23   tenderness.  That prevented him from doing things
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            1   like the major life activity of chair upholstery.



            2          There's no evidence here that Ms. Shroff



            3   had a substantial impairment.  River Pointe



            4   instead cited five cases, each of which held that



            5   asthma, combined with other maladies, does not



            6   rise to the level of a disability.



            7          Moreover, there's no evidence here that



            8   Ms. Shroff presented any evidence of a



            9   substantial limitation of her life activity, and



           10   that's the point:  Substantial.  Nor does



           11   Complainant's briefing address this issue.  At



           12   best, Ms. Shroff testified that her asthma is



           13   controlled by the use of her inhaler.  This is



           14   hardly a substantial limitation, and the ALJ was



           15   correct here.



           16          Third, even assuming Ms. Shroff's asthma



           17   is a substantial limitation of a major life



           18   activity, there's no evidence of a nexus between



           19   the apartment and her asthma.



           20               MR. SCHULTZ:  Three minutes



           21   remaining.



           22               MR. BRADLEY:  Thank you.



           23          The Complainant failed to present any
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            1   reliable evidence of contamination in the



            2   apartment.  As I mentioned, four separate



            3   nonparties all reviewed it.  None of them found



            4   any issues.  Ms. Shroff does not have any



            5   training to identify mold or toxic substances.



            6   So, all that's left is her lay, self-serving



            7   testimony that the apartment had some



            8   contamination in it.



            9          This lack of credible evidence is crucial,



           10   because Ms. Shroff's presence in the apartment,



           11   by itself, did not trigger any asthma symptoms.



           12   Nor did Complainant point to any contrary



           13   evidence in its briefing or its presentation



           14   today.  Ms. Sharp's testimony is wholly



           15   irrelevant, which is addressed in the briefing,



           16   because it lends nothing to the fact that



           17   Ms. Shroff did not experience these symptoms



           18   during normal use.



           19          Instead, the evidence established that



           20   Ms. Shroff experienced asthma symptoms only after



           21   she destructively ripped up the carpets and the



           22   padding, and this bears repeating, I think, for



           23   the third time.  The only time Ms. Shroff
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            1   experienced any alleged asthma symptoms is after



            2   she voluntarily undertook to tear out the carpets



            3   and the padding.  This is hardly a normal,



            4   ordinary, or customary use of an apartment.



            5          And that's the point that the



            6   Administrative Law Judge made.  Ms. Shroff's use



            7   of the apartment in its normal condition did not



            8   cause any issues.  It wasn't until she misused



            9   the apartment that she began to allegedly



           10   experience issues.



           11          Even then, there's no evidence that



           12   suggests anything in the apartment caused those



           13   symptoms.  For all we know, it could have been



           14   the physical activity of tearing out the carpets



           15   that caused her to suffer symptoms.  The ALJ



           16   correctly found that the Complainant failed to



           17   establish a nexus between the apartment and



           18   Ms. Shroff's asthma.



           19          Fourth, and finally, the Administrative



           20   Law Judge correctly interpreted Indiana law



           21   regarding the recovery of attorneys fees and



           22   costs.  There's a statute here that's at issue,



           23   and one section of the Administrative Code.
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            1   Indiana Code 22-9.5-9-1 says that the



            2   Commission --



            3               MR. SCHULTZ:  One minute remaining.



            4               MR. BRADLEY:  Thanks.



            5          -- in any administrative hearing may award



            6   reasonable attorney fees to the prevailing party.



            7   Similarly, 910 IAC 2-7-9-G says that the



            8   prevailing party, except for the ICRC, may apply



            9   for attorneys fees.  There are two sections here



           10   that unambiguously state River Pointe is entitled



           11   to its fees.  Those sections must be applied as



           12   they are written, which is exactly what the ALJ



           13   did.



           14          An award of fees would not frustrate the



           15   purpose of the Civil Rights Law, or be



           16   inconsistent with the legislature's intent,



           17   because the Commission cannot get that far.  When



           18   faced with an unambiguous statute, it must be



           19   applied as it is written.  For these reasons, the



           20   Commission should affirm the ALJ's decision in



           21   all respects.



           22               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



           23          At this time, we'll allow for four minutes
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            1   each in response to one another.  We can begin



            2   with Mr. Bremer.



            3               MR. BREMER:  Thank you.



            4          The Administrative Law Judge does refer to



            5   the fact that if there is a limiting factor, that



            6   the whole idea that the Administrative Law Judges



            7   can dip into the trial rules and grant similar



            8   kinds of motions that are found in the trial



            9   rules -- I'm sorry; I don't have my video on.



           10   Someone turned me off here.



           11                (Pause in proceedings.)



           12               MR. BREMER:  Okay.  I'm on now.



           13   Thank you.



           14          So, the limiting factor is that the



           15   Commission has the authority to issue findings of



           16   fact and conclusions of law only after a hearing.



           17   It does not -- that's the limiting factor.  There



           18   is an indication that there is a legal restraint



           19   on just wholesale bringing in the Trial Rules,



           20   and particularly this kind of a motion that was



           21   granted in this case.



           22          Now, also, the Commission has cited to --



           23   I mean we have cited to you the -- a number of
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            1   cases, almost all of them, 56 different



            2   decisions, that are -- all have to do with the



            3   same agency, the Utility Regulatory Commission,



            4   and they did explicitly have a rule that said



            5   that they could draw upon the Trial Rules for



            6   guidance in ruling on motions.  So, the Civil



            7   Rights Commission does not have anything similar



            8   to that.



            9          She did have symptoms when she was in the



           10   apartment before she got into the uncovering the



           11   carpet, bringing it up to see if there were urine



           12   stains on the reverse of the carpet from cats and



           13   dogs and that sort of thing.  She was having



           14   trouble breathing.  She had to leave the



           15   apartment early.  That's in the record.



           16          And the real point is this:  She had a



           17   lifetime of experience with asthma and asthma



           18   symptoms.  She knew what caused her -- and what



           19   jeopardized her to get into a state where she



           20   would have difficulty breathing.  She was faced



           21   with the prospect of living in the place for



           22   months on end that would -- showed all of the



           23   warning signs of something --
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            1               MR. SCHULTZ:  One minute remaining,



            2   Mr. Bremer.



            3               MR. BREMER:  -- that was going to



            4   make her exhibit the symptoms of asthma.  The



            5   testimony of Ms. Sharp, who rented -- leased the



            6   apartment after Ms. Shroff left, and did not



            7   continue in the apartment, is that there was --



            8   there were noxious odors in that place.



            9          And this is exactly what Ms. Shroff



           10   identified as something that would prompt her to



           11   have constriction of her airways, have to use her



           12   equipment, to deal with that.  It's not



           13   reasonable to think that someone with asthma is



           14   going to have to be left with the choice of



           15   living in a place that's going to make them



           16   vulnerable to asthma outbreaks.



           17          Now, as far as the --



           18               MR. SCHULTZ:  That's four minutes.



           19               MR. BREMER:  -- ability of the



           20   Commission --



           21               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Mr. Bremer, I



           22   believe that's the end of your time.  We've



           23   reached the four-minute mark.
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            1               MR. BREMER:  Oh, I didn't hear what



            2   he said.  I'm sorry.



            3               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  That's okay.



            4   Thank you very much.



            5          Okay.  We'll hear from Respondent.



            6               MR. BRADLEY:  Yes.  Thank you, Chair



            7   Slash.



            8          I just have two quick points that I'll



            9   make in response.  The first one is:  The statute



           10   and the Administrative Code sections that I began



           11   with today both authorize an ALJ to rule on any



           12   motion.  There's no limitation there.  We don't



           13   disagree with the Director or Mr. Bremer that he



           14   cited 56 different cases from the IURC, and the



           15   IURC has adopted the Trial Rules, but that's not



           16   relevant here, because the Code and the



           17   Administrative Code both authorize the ALJ to



           18   grant motions.



           19          As to the symptoms, I simply -- I disagree



           20   with Mr. Bremer's statement.  I have found no



           21   evidence in the record, and the ALJ found no



           22   evidence in the record, that Ms. Shroff suffered



           23   from breathing problems before she began taking
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            1   out the carpets, and that's what's key here.



            2          Ms. Shroff testified that things like



            3   smoke and pet urine would exacerbate her asthma,



            4   yet there was evidence in the record presented



            5   that she is a smoker, or was a smoker, and that



            6   she maintains pet birds, which I learned during



            7   the hearing pet birds also urinate, and she can



            8   clean that urine with no problem.



            9          So, what this might have come down to is



           10   the fact that there just simply wasn't any



           11   evidence that while Ms. Shroff was in the



           12   apartment in its normal and ordinary condition,



           13   that it was -- that that caused her symptoms.



           14   And I'm confident that we can say there's no such



           15   evidence in the record.



           16          And so, based on that, even if



           17   Ms. Shroff -- even if, I'm sorry, asthma was a



           18   disability, which we do not concede, because it's



           19   not a substantial limitation according to the



           20   controlling precedent, there's just no nexus



           21   between the apartment and her asthma.  And for



           22   those reasons, we would ask that you affirm the



           23   Administrative Law Judge's order.
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            1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Thank you.



            2   That concludes the discussion portion of this



            3   oral argument.



            4          At this time, I want to make sure that we



            5   are going through the objections in a way that we



            6   are able to follow clearly for the record.  Let's



            7   see here.  Deputy Director Schultz, would you



            8   want to call each of the objections as they were



            9   submitted so that we might call for motions



           10   should they exist?



           11               MR. SCHULTZ:  So, unless there is an



           12   objection from the parties, I think procedurally



           13   the easiest thing to do, since we are dealing



           14   with a number of objections that have to be



           15   addressed individually, would be simply to have



           16   Mr. Bremer read off each individual one.



           17               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.



           18               MR. SCHULTZ:  Read it off, discuss if



           19   warranted, and then vote.  But again, I -- I



           20   don't want to -- I want to allow opposing counsel



           21   the opportunity to object to that procedure.



           22               MR. BRADLEY:  I think that's



           23   perfectly fine with me.  Mr. Bremer's going to
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            1   represent his objections as stated, so that's



            2   fine.



            3               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.



            4          And as we get started here, Commissioners,



            5   I did not -- I apologize that I did not call for



            6   any questions from Commissioners.  We didn't have



            7   any during the arguments, but I want to make sure



            8   that if there were any, that we have time to



            9   address them.



           10                     (No response.)



           11               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  We can



           12   proceed with the procedure as stated a moment



           13   ago, Mr. Bremer.



           14               MR. BREMER:  I'm going to address



           15   these in the order in which the objections are



           16   raised in the brief --



           17               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



           18               MR. BREMER:  -- this time around.



           19          The first objection was that the



           20   Administrative Law Judge lacked the statutory



           21   authority to grant the Respondent's motion.  And



           22   with regard to that, we're asking that the



           23   Commissioners reject that opinion and remand to

�







                                                                57







            1   the Administrative Law Judge with instructions to



            2   issue a decision based on the entire record of



            3   the hearing and not just at the point when the



            4   Complainant rested.



            5               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



            6          Commissioners, is there a motion or



            7   interest in this objection?



            8                     (No response.)



            9               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  I'm likely going



           10   to get some interesting pauses here, just in case



           11   there are folks that need to get off mute or need



           12   to think briefly.



           13                     (No response.)



           14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  We will



           15   move to -- hearing none, we will move to



           16   objection no. 2.



           17               MR. BREMER:  That is the objection



           18   that involved the inappropriate evidentiary



           19   burden that was utilized by the Administrative



           20   Law Judge in valuating the -- a motion for



           21   judgment on the evidence.  Now, that's assuming



           22   that you agree that the Judge had the authority



           23   to grant that motion.
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            1          So, this is a fallback one, where we're



            2   saying when you -- or asking that if you don't --



            3   if you -- if it comes to a point where that is --



            4   you feel that was appropriate to even entertain



            5   that motion, that the Administrative Law Judge



            6   receive this case back to evaluate the motion in



            7   light of the rebuttable inference standard



            8   instead of the substantial and reliable evidence



            9   standard that seems to have been used.



           10               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



           11          Commissioners, is there a motion or



           12   interest in further discussion on this objection?



           13                     (No response.)



           14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Hearing none,



           15   we'll move to objection no. 3.



           16               MR. BREMER:  The third objection has



           17   to do with the fact that the -- although the



           18   parties went into the hearing planning to



           19   adjudicate claims under both the Indiana Fair



           20   Housing Act and the Indiana Civil Rights Law, the



           21   Administrative Law Judge disregarded that, and



           22   also the regulation that permitted the parties to



           23   take that kind of action, which is cited in full
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            1   in the brief.



            2          What we want is for the Commissioners to



            3   remand this case back to the Administrative Law



            4   Judge with instructions to adjudicate the claim



            5   both under the Indiana Civil Rights Law -- under



            6   the Indiana Civil Rights Law as well as the



            7   Indiana Fair Housing Act.



            8               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



            9          Commissioners, is there a motion or



           10   interest in this objection?



           11                     (No response.)



           12               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Hearing



           13   none, we'll move to objection no. 4.



           14               MR. BREMER:  The next objection has



           15   to do with the finding of the Administrative Law



           16   Judge that Ms. Shroff did not qualify for



           17   protected status under the Indiana Fair Housing



           18   Act.



           19          On this one, we ask that the Commission



           20   not accept that and remand with instructions to



           21   the Administrative Law Judge to find that



           22   Ms. Shroff did have the status as a protected



           23   person, and to make other findings that would
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            1   be -- go along with that on the balance of the



            2   issues in the case.



            3               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



            4          Commissioners, is there a motion or



            5   further interest in objection no. 4?



            6                     (No response.)



            7               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Hearing



            8   none, we'll move to objection no. 5.



            9               MR. BREMER:  The next objection has



           10   to do with the Administrative Law Judge ruling



           11   that there was not a nexus as required by law



           12   between the disability of Ms. Shroff and the



           13   accommodation she sought, which was to be



           14   relieved of the obligation to live in the



           15   apartment under the lease.



           16          And on this one, we're asking that that be



           17   rejected and that the Administrative Law Judge,



           18   on remand, would be instructed to find that there



           19   was a sufficient nexus between the two.  Of



           20   course, that depends on the treatment of the



           21   objection that we just talked about before that.



           22               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



           23          Commissioners, is there a motion or
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            1   interest in objection no. 5?



            2               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I do have a



            3   question.



            4               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Uh-huh.  Please



            5   proceed.



            6               COMM. BLACKBURN:  At what point after



            7   Ms. Shroff moved in did she complain that the



            8   environment was so unhealthy she could not stay



            9   there?  How long had she been there before she



           10   complained?



           11               MR. BREMER:  Is that addressed to me?



           12               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Comm. Blackburn,



           13   are you addressing that question towards



           14   Mr. Bremer?



           15               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Yes.



           16               MR. BREMER:  Well, I have to add



           17   this:  Ms. Shroff never really did move in.  She



           18   just -- the situation she encountered, she took a



           19   few personal possessions there, never moved in



           20   any furniture in, never lived there overnight,



           21   anything like that.  But with that understanding,



           22   it was very soon.  It was like by the next day



           23   she was bringing this problem with the odor in
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            1   the apartment to the attention of the property



            2   manager.



            3               MR. BRADLEY:  Chair Slash, may I say



            4   something as well?



            5               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Sure.



            6               MR. BRADLEY:  I think the record



            7   evidence will show that the complaints escalated



            8   as time went on.  We don't disagree that



            9   Ms. Shroff really didn't move in.  There were a



           10   few minor things -- when the Varin -- the River



           11   Pointe folks went in, they thought no one lived



           12   there because there was no major furniture or



           13   anything.



           14          She did almost immediately complain about



           15   the smell and the odor, but that complaint, which



           16   is the Complainant's Exhibit No. 5, said nothing



           17   of asthma symptoms, trouble breathing or anything



           18   like that.  It wasn't until later that she began



           19   to complain about her asthma symptoms, at least



           20   that's what we believe the record evidence shows.



           21               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



           22          I'll ask the question once more:  In



           23   regards to objection no. 5, Commissioners have a
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            1   motion in regards to objection no. 5?



            2               COMM. BLACKBURN:  No.



            3               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Hearing



            4   none, we'll move to objection no. 6.  Thank you.



            5               MR. BREMER:  This has to do with the



            6   prevailing party provision.  The



            7   Administrative -- the award of attorneys fees,



            8   possibly against the Director, that was implied



            9   in what the Judge put in the recommended order,



           10   that that could be a possible outcome or a



           11   possible -- possibility, that the Respondent



           12   could seek and obtain the cost of their attorneys



           13   fees from the Director as a consequence of them



           14   winning this case.



           15          We have submitted extensive material in



           16   our brief on that, and we're recommending and



           17   asking that the Commissioners find that that is



           18   not going to be an avenue under the proper



           19   interpretation of the -- of the law for the



           20   Respondent to be able to recover attorneys fees



           21   like that, and to let the Administrative Law



           22   Judge know that that kind of thing should not be



           23   entertained.
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            1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



            2          Commissioners, is there a motion or



            3   interest in objection no. 6?



            4                     (No response.)



            5               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Hearing none,



            6   we'll move to objection no. 7.



            7               MR. BREMER:  This is minor.  There --



            8   we objected on the basis of there being material



            9   quoted in a footnote in the order that the



           10   Administrative Law Judge is asking you to adopt



           11   as a final order, in which the footnote itself



           12   explains that this material was not relied upon



           13   and was not in the record.  So, we're asking that



           14   the Administrative Law Judge's decision -- that



           15   particular footnote be purged from the decision.



           16               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Thank you.



           17          Commissioners, is there a motion or



           18   interest in objection no. 7?



           19               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Would you repeat



           20   it, please?



           21               MR. BREMER:  Yes, I'd be happy to.



           22   This was the objection, the seventh objection,



           23   that had to do with the impropriety of the
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            1   Administrative Law Judge specifying evidence that



            2   was not proper to be relied upon, again, in the



            3   decision as a whole, in a footnote, and we were



            4   objecting to that information appearing -- that



            5   footnote actually being in there with that



            6   information, because if this goes up on further



            7   review, we do not want that in there.  It wasn't



            8   used anyway.



            9               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



           10          With that clarity, Commissioners, is there



           11   a motion or interest in objection no. 7?



           12               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I would support its



           13   being removed.



           14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



           15          Is there a second to that motion?



           16                     (No response.)



           17               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Hearing none,



           18   thank you for the motion; however, we will move



           19   on to motion [sic] no. 8.



           20               MR. BREMER:  I've ran out of



           21   objections.



           22               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.



           23               MR. BREMER:  There were seven.
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            1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.  I



            2   just wanted to make sure that if there was



            3   anything further, that we were in good shape



            4   here.  I appreciate that, and thank you for



            5   following that procedural exercise in this way,



            6   making sure that since we are virtual and we are



            7   not holding things in the same space, that we are



            8   all on the same page.



            9          Okay.  So, with that, we have had the oral



           10   argument, we have had opportunity for both



           11   parties to address one another -- one another's



           12   objections and discussion.  We did not have any



           13   adoption of any of the objections as submitted,



           14   so at this time a motion is needed to affirm or



           15   to dissolve the ALJ's orders.  Is there a motion?



           16                     (No response.)



           17               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  At this time, is



           18   there a motion to affirm or dissolve the ALJ's



           19   order from the Commissioners?



           20               UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Mine's just a



           21   case.  This isn't even a productive meeting.



           22   It's a -- it's literally a -- like a trial.



           23               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Slash, I believe
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            1   that was not a -- not one of the attorneys, and I



            2   went ahead and muted the individual.



            3               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you very



            4   much.



            5          Commissioners, at this time we do need a



            6   motion to affirm or dissolve the ALJ's order in



            7   regard to this case.



            8               COMM. RAMOS:  Madam Chair, I'm sorry;



            9   I was on mute.  So, I recommend that we affirm



           10   the ALJ's decision.



           11               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



           12          Is there a second?



           13               COMM. JACKSON:  Comm. Jackson,



           14   second.



           15               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



           16          At this time, we shall call the roll.



           17               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Blackburn?



           18               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, aye.



           19               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Harrington?



           20               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.



           21               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Jackson?



           22               COMM. JACKSON:  Aye.



           23               MR. SCHULTZ:  Vice-Chair Ramos?
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            1               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.



            2               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Tolliver?



            3               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Aye.



            4               MR. SCHULTZ:  Chair Slash?



            5               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.



            6               MR. SCHULTZ:  Motion passes, six,



            7   zero.



            8               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you very



            9   much.



           10          That concludes today's oral argument.



           11   Thank you both for being present with us and for



           12   participating.



           13               MR. BREMER:  Thank you.



           14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  We still



           15   have a little bit of our agenda remaining here



           16   for the day.  The next case that we have in this



           17   section of our agenda is ICRC/Rickard/Small



           18   versus Varsity Properties Management Corporation,



           19   Case No. HOfs20060223.  It was submitted to the



           20   Commission of June 30th, 2021, and the ALJ



           21   dismissed the Indiana Fair Housing Act claims



           22   based on notice of election, and the ALJ



           23   dismissed the Indiana Civil Rights Law claim as
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            1   nonjurisdictional, and the objection period has



            2   passed and this matter is closed.



            3          I do not believe we have a vote on this



            4   one, but I'm going to ask for clarity.



            5               MR. SCHULTZ:  This is -- a vote is



            6   required to affirm or deny or modify this one.



            7               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



            8          Commissioners, is there a motion to



            9   affirm, modify or dissolve; right?  That's the



           10   three on this one, too?



           11               MR. SCHULTZ:  Or vacate, yes.



           12               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Move we --



           13               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Or vacate.



           14               COMM. BLACKBURN:  -- affirm.



           15               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Is there a



           16   motion?



           17               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I move we affirm.



           18               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.  That



           19   was Comm. Blackburn.



           20          Is there a second?



           21               COMM. HARRINGTON:  This is



           22   Comm. Harrington.  I second.



           23               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
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            1          Shall we call roll?



            2               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Blackburn?



            3               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, aye.



            4               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Harrington?



            5               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.



            6               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Jackson?



            7               COMM. JACKSON:  Aye.



            8               MR. SCHULTZ:  Vice-Chair Ramos?



            9               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.



           10               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Tolliver?



           11               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Aye.



           12               MR. SCHULTZ:  Chair Slash?



           13               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.



           14               MR. SCHULTZ:  Motion passes, six,



           15   zero.



           16               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



           17          The next case is Johnson versus Brook



           18   Knoll Village, Case No. EMra18040 --



           19               MS. SHAFFER:  Hi.  Am I able to ask a



           20   quick question?



           21               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Sure.  Can you



           22   state your name for the record, please?



           23               MS. SHAFFER:  Yeah.  My name is Lisa.
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            1   I'm just a student paying attention to the



            2   Commission today.  What was the motion that was



            3   passed on that first case?



            4               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Are you speaking



            5   in regard to the oral argument that we just held?



            6   This is a great teaching moment, I suppose.



            7               MS. SHAFFER:  Yes, I am.



            8               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Yes.  So, we did



            9   the -- the call on that one was we had a motion



           10   to affirm the ALJ's original finding in the ALJ's



           11   order.



           12               MS. SHAFFER:  Okay.  Perfect.  Thank



           13   you.



           14               THE REPORTER:  Chair Slash, could you



           15   have her state her last name, please?



           16               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Yes, please.



           17          Can you please state your first and last



           18   name?  And spelling is always helpful for the



           19   court reporter.



           20               MS. SHAFFER:  Yeah.  It's Lisa



           21   Shaffer, L i s a, S h a f f e r.



           22               THE REPORTER:  Thank you.



           23               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thanks.
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            1          Okay.  And I'll return back to the



            2   agenda.  The next case that we have, this was one



            3   that I was beginning as a -- just a moment ago,



            4   Johnson versus Brock Knoll Village, Case



            5   No. EMra18040181, submitted to the Commission on



            6   July 14th, 2021.  The ALJ dismissed the matter on



            7   its merits by granting a motion for summary



            8   judgment filed by the Respondent.  The objection



            9   period in this matter has closed.



           10          Is there a motion to affirm, modify or



           11   vacate this?



           12               COMM. RAMOS:  Ramos, motion to



           13   affirm.



           14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



           15          Is there a second?



           16               COMM. JACKSON:  Comm. Jackson,



           17   second.



           18               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



           19          Shall I call the roll?



           20               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Blackburn?



           21               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, aye.



           22               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Harrington?



           23               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.
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            1               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Jackson?



            2               COMM. JACKSON:  Aye.



            3               MR. SCHULTZ:  Vice-Chair Ramos?



            4               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.



            5               MR. SCHULTZ:  Vice-Chair Ramos?



            6               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.



            7               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Tolliver?



            8               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Aye.



            9               MR. SCHULTZ:  Chair Slash?



           10               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.



           11               MR. SCHULTZ:  Motion passes, six,



           12   zero.



           13               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



           14          The next case is Banks versus Taco Bell,



           15   Bell American Group, LLC, Case No. PAra18050248,



           16   submitted to the Commission on July 19th, 2021.



           17   The ALJ dismissed the matter after the parties



           18   reached a settlement.  The ALJ recommended that



           19   the Commission accept the consent agreement filed



           20   by the parties.  The objection period in this



           21   matter has closed.



           22          Is there a motion to affirm, modify or



           23   vacate the ALJ's order?
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            1               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I move to affirm.



            2               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



            3   That's Comm. Blackburn.



            4          Is there a second?



            5               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Comm. Harrington,



            6   second.



            7               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



            8          Shall we call the roll?



            9               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Blackburn?



           10               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, aye.



           11               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Harrington?



           12               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.



           13               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Jackson?



           14               COMM. JACKSON:  Aye.



           15               MR. SCHULTZ:  Vice-Chair Ramos?



           16               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.



           17               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Tolliver?



           18               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Aye.



           19               MR. SCHULTZ:  Chair Slash?



           20               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.



           21               MR. SCHULTZ:  Motion passes, six,



           22   zero.



           23               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
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            1          The next section of our agenda, ALJ



            2   Decisions that are Automatically Confirmed.  At



            3   this time we do not have any, and we also would



            4   not need a vote at all, either, because they're



            5   automatically adopted and approval is not needed.



            6   So, thank you very much for that.



            7          We'll now move to meeting dates for the



            8   remainder of 2021.  I'm glad to have everybody



            9   here with us today.  We have made it through the



           10   summer, which tends to be a little bit difficult



           11   for scheduling and making sure that we are all



           12   present.



           13          For the time being, we look that we should



           14   still be virtual, and hope that everyone remains



           15   safe and healthy and well.  The coming date that



           16   we have is September 17th.  Does any -- do any



           17   members of the Commission have conflicts with



           18   that date?



           19               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I have a distinct



           20   possibility that I won't be able to be in the



           21   meeting.  It's the day after my birthday, and I



           22   may not be around here, so I may have been



           23   assigned a case.  If you need to reassign that --

�







                                                                76







            1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Thank you.



            2               COMM. BLACKBURN:  -- you could.



            3               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Thank you.



            4               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Thank you.



            5               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  I will actually



            6   go ahead and do that.  I'll make an amendment to



            7   the further -- to the earlier record, if you



            8   don't mind me doing that here.  Slightly



            9   confusing moment, but I'll go ahead and do it,



           10   because you do have a birthday the day before.



           11   The Case EMha21030073 I will assign to myself,



           12   Chair Slash, and remove from Comm. Blackburn.



           13               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Thank you.



           14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  You're welcome,



           15   and Happy Early Birthday.



           16          Do any other Commissioners have conflicts



           17   with the September date?



           18                     (No response.)



           19               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  And then



           20   looking ahead, does anyone have an issue with the



           21   October date?



           22                     (No response.)



           23               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  I personally have

�







                                                                77







            1   an issue with the October date, but I do not have



            2   to stop the show.  I just would like to get it on



            3   the record to date that I may not be available



            4   for the October date.



            5               COMM. TOLLIVER:  I will not be



            6   available for the October date.



            7               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  So, shall



            8   we do a little bit of an out-of-class activity



            9   via e-mail to make sure that we have the right



           10   date for October, so that we have the right



           11   amount of Commissioners present?



           12               MR. SCHULTZ:  Yeah, we'll -- the ICRC



           13   staff will work with the Commissioners to



           14   identify an alternative date.



           15               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.  And



           16   we can look at November and December at a further



           17   time.  I do like to get us just a couple of



           18   months in advance, if that's okay with the other



           19   Commissioners.



           20          Okay.  So, at this time, we do not have



           21   any Election, Training or Other.  Thanks to the



           22   Commissioners that were able to participate in



           23   our earlier training.
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            1          Are there any Announcements?



            2               MR. SCHULTZ:  Just -- if I may, Chair



            3   Slash.  It's Tim Schultz.  Just a reminder that



            4   our ability to conduct these meetings 100 percent



            5   virtually is contingent on the emergency health



            6   order from the Governor that is currently in



            7   effect to the end of this month, but there's no



            8   way of knowing if that will be extended beyond



            9   August.



           10          So, just be mindful that if it's not



           11   extended, we have to go back to the regular



           12   open-door requirements, which would require three



           13   members to physically be present in order for



           14   the -- in order to conduct the meeting.



           15               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



           16          Any Commissioners have any -- any



           17   questions or concerns in regarding to that?



           18               COMM. RAMOS:  No.



           19               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.



           20          Are there any Announcements?



           21                     (No response.)



           22               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Is there



           23   anyone here for Public Comment today?
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            1                     (No response.)



            2               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  I didn't



            3   recall hearing anyone at the beginning, but I



            4   wanted to make sure, just in case.



            5          With that being said, we've used almost



            6   every minute of our time today, and we have



            7   arrived at 2:56, and I will go ahead and -- we'll



            8   go ahead and dismiss today's meeting.



            9               COMM. RAMOS:  Thank you.



           10               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Bye, everybody.



           11               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Thank you.



           12               MR. SCHULTZ:  Bye.



           13               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Bye.



           14                        -  -  -

                          Thereupon, the proceedings of

           15             August 20, 2021 were concluded

                               at 2:57 o'clock p.m.

           16                        -  -  -
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